E-0/9-/4 RECEIVED

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOXRD ° 201
APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION FORTHE oy v oo e
CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP FOR AN EXISTING HEALTH CARERGEIREN By BOARD

1. INFORMATION FOR EXISTING FACILITY

Current Facility Name Advocate BroMenn Medical Center

Address 1304 Franklin Avenue

City Normal . ZipCode 61761 County McLean

Name of current licensed entity for the facility

Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation, d/b/a Advocate BroMenn Medical Center

Does the current licensee: own this facility X OR lease this facility_ (if leased, check

if sublease o)

Type of ownership of the current licensed entity (check one of the following:)

~__Sole Proprietorship _X Not-for-Profit Corporation For Profit Corporation
Partnership _ Governmental  Limited Liability Company Other,

specify

Illinois State Senator for the district where the facility is located:

Sen. Jason Barickman :

State Senate District Number 53 Mailing address of the State Senator

- 2401 E. Washington Street, Suite 201, Bloomington, II. 61704

lllinois State Representative for the district where the facility is located:

Rep. Dan Brady

State Representative District Number 105 Mailing address of the State Representative

104 W. North Street, Normal, IL 61761

2. OUTSTANDING PERMITS. Does the facility have any projects for which the State Board
issued a permit that will not be completed (refer to 1130.140 "Completion or Project
Completion" for a definition of project completion) by the time of the proposed ownership
change? Yes X Noo. If yes, refer to Section 1130.520(f), and indicate the projects by Prcqect #

#12-104 Laboratory was obligated Oct 2, 2103
#14-027 Pharmacy permit was granted August 27, 2014 and is proceeding with due

diligence..

3. NAME OF APPLICANT (complete this information for each co-applicant and insert after
this page).
Exact Legal Name of Applicant
Advocate Health Care Network (to be renamed Advocate NorthShore Health Partners)
Address 3075 Highland Parkway
City, State & Zip Code Downers Grove. I, 60515
Type of ownership of the current licensed entity (check one of the following:)
___Sole Proprietorship X Not-for-Profit Corporation For Profit Corporation
Partnership _ Governmental __ Limited Liability Company
__ Other, specify




NAME OF APPLICANT (complete this information for each co-applicant and insert after

this page).
Exact Legal Name of Applicant Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation
Address 3075 Highland Parkway
City, State & Zip Code Downers Grove, IL 60515
Type of ownership of the current licensed entity (check one of the following:)

Sole Proprietorship X Not-for-Profit Corporation For Profit
Corporation Partnership Governmental Limited Liability
Company Other, specify

NAME OF APPLICANT (complete this information for each co-applicant and insert after

this page).

Exact Legal Name of Applicant NorthShore University HealthSystem
Address 1301 Central Street

City, State & Zip Code Evanston, I 60201

Type of ownership of the current licensed entity (check one of the following:)

____Sole Proprietorship _X Not-for-Profit Corporation _ For Profit Corporation
Partnership Governmental  Limited Liability Company _ Other,

specify '

e




4. NAME OF LEGAL ENTITY THAT WILL BE THE LICENSEE/OPERATING
ENTITY OF THE FACILITY NAMED IN THE APPLICATION AS A
RESULT OF THIS TRANSACTION.

Exact Legal Name of Entity to be Licensed

Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation, d/b/a Advocate BroMenn Medical Center

Address 1304 Franklin Avenue

City, State & Zip Code Normal, Il 61761

Type of ownership of the current licensed entity (check one of the following:)
Sole Proprietorship X Not-for-Profit Corporation For Profit Corporation
Partnership Governmental Limited Liability Company

Other, specify

5. BUILDING/SITE OWNERSHIP. NAME OF LEGAL ENTITY THAT WILL
OWN THE "BRICKS AND MORTAR" (BUILDING) OF THE FACILITY
NAMED IN THIS APPLICATION IF DIFFERENT FROM THE
OPERATING/LICENSED ENTITY

Exact Legal Name of Entity That Will Own the Site:
Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation

Address 3075 Highland Parkway
City, State & Zip Code _ Downers Grove, IL 60515
Type of ownership of the current licensed entity (check one of the following:)

Sole Proprietorship X Not-for-Profit Corporation For Profit
Corporation Partnership Governmental Limited Liability
Company Other, specify




6.

10.

11.

12.

TRANSACTION TYPE. CHECK THE FOLLOWING THAT APPLY TO THE

TRANSACTION:
o Purchase resulting in the issuance of a license to an entity different from current licensee;

o Lease resulting in the issuance of a license to an entity different from current licensee;

o Stock transfer resulting in the issuance of a license to a different entity from current
licensee;

o Stock transfer resulting in no change from current licensee;

o Assignment or transfer of assets resulting in the issuance of a license to an entity different
from the current licensee;

o Assignment or transfer of assets not resulting in the issuance of a license to an entity
different from the current licensee;

o Change in membership or sponsorship of a not-for-profit corporation that is the licensed
entity;

Change of 50% or more of the voting members of a not-for-profit corporation's board of

directors that controls a health care facility's operations, license, certification or physical
plant and assets;

o Change in the sponsorship or control of the person who is licensed, certified or owns the
physical plant and assets of a governmental health care facility;

o Sale or transfer of the physical plant and related assets of a health care facility not resulting
in a change of current o &
licensee;

o Any other transaction that results in a person obtaining control of a health care facility's
operation or physical plant and assets, and explain in "Attachment 3 Narrative
Description” -

APPLICATION FEE. Submit the application fee in the form of a check or money order for
$2,500 payable to the Illinois Department of Public Health and append as ATTACHMENT

#1.

FUNDING. Indicate the type and source of funds which will be used to acquire the facility
(e.g., mortgage through Health Facilities Authority; cash gift from parent company, etc.) and
append as ATTACHMENT #2.

ANTICIPATED ACQUISITION PRICE: $§_N/A See Attachment 2

FAIR MARKET VALUE OF THE FACILITY: $ 146,498,918 net book value of plant,
property and equipment, please see Attachment 2 (to determine fair market value, refer to 77
IAC 1130.140)

DATE OF PROPOSED TRANSACTION: _On or about January 1, 2015

NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION. Provide a narrative description explaining the transaction,
and append it to the application as ATTACHMENT #3.




13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT  (co-applicants must also provide this information).
Corporations and Limited Liability Companies must provide a current Certificate of Good
Standing from the Illinois Secretary of State. Limited Liability Companies and Partnerships
must provide the name and address of each partner/ member and specify the percentage of
ownership of each. Append this information to the application as ATTACHMENT #4.

TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS. Provide a copy of the complete transaction document(s)
including schedules and exhibits which detail the terms and conditions of the proposed
transaction (purchase, lease, stock transfer, etc). Applicants should note that the document(s)
submitted should reflect the applicant's (and co-applicant's, if applicable) involvement in the
transaction. The document must be signed by both parties and contain language stating that the
transaction is contingent upon approval of the Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review
Board. Append this document(s) to the application as ATTACHMENT #5. '

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. (Co-applicants must also provide this information) Provide a
copy of the applicants latest audited financial statements, and append it to this application as
ATTACHMENT #6. If the applicant is a newly formed entity and financial statements are not
available, please indicate by checking YES | and indicate the date the entity was formed

PRIMARY CONTACT PERSON. Individual representing the applicant to“whom all
correspondence and inquiries pertaining to this application are to be directed. (Note: other
persons representing the applicant not named below will need written authorization from the
applicant stating that such persons are also authorized to represent the applicant in relationship

to this application).

Name: Scott Powder, SR VP, Chief Strategy Officer, Advocate Health Care
Address: 3075 Highland Parkway

City, State & Zip Code: _Downers Grove, IL 60515

Telephone () Ext. (630) 929-8710

ADDITIONAL CONTACT PERSON. Consultant, attorney, other individual who is also
authorized to discuss this application and act on behalf of the applicant.

Name: Joe Ourth, Arnstein & Lehr LLP

Address: 120 S. Riverside Plaza, Suite 1200

City, State & Zip Code: _Chicago, lllinois 60606

Telephone () Ext. (312) 876-7815

ADDITIONAL CONTACT PERSON. Consultant, attorney, other individual who is also
authorized to discuss this application and act on behalf of the applicant.

Name: Sonja Reece, Director, Health Facilities Planning, Advocate Health Care
Address: 1304 Franklin Ave. :

City, State & Zip Code: _ Normal, IL 61761

Telephone () Ext. 309-268-5482




ADDITIONAL CONTACT PERSON. Consultant, attorney, other individual who is also
authorized to discuss this application and act on behalf of the applicant.

Name: Wendy Mulvihill, Strategic Planning Manager, Advocate Health Care

Address: 9401 S. Pulaski, Suite 201

City, State & Zip Code: _Evergreen Park, [L 60805

Telephone () Ext. 708-684-5765

ADDITIONAL CONTACT PERSON. Consultant, attorney, other individual who is also
authorized to discuss this application and act on behalf of the applicant.

Name: David Dahlquist, Esq., Winston &Strawn LLP
Address: 35 W. Wacker Drive

City, State & Zip Code: __ Chicago, II._60601-9703

Telephone () Ext. (312) 558-5660

ADDITIONAL CONTACT PERSON. Consultant, attorney, other individual who is also
authorized to discuss this application and act on behalf of the applicant.

Name: _ Gerald P. Gallagher, Chief Operating Officer, NorthShore University HealthSystem
Address: 1301 Central Street '

City, State & Zip Code: Evanston, IT. 60201

Telephone () Ext. __ (847) 570-5151

8 v




18. CERTIFICATION Advocate Health Care Network (to be renamed Advocate

NorthShore Health Partners)
I certify that the above information and all attached information are true and correct to the

best of my knowledge and belief. I certify that the number of beds within the facility will
not change as part of this transaction. I certify that no adverse action has been taken against
the applicant(s) by the federal government, licensing or certifying bodies, or any other
agency of the State of Illinois. I certify that I am fully aware that a change in ownership will
void any permits for projects that have not been completed unless such projects will be
completed or altered pursuant to the requirements in 77 IAC 1130.520(f) prior to the
effective date of the proposed ownership change. I also certify that the applicant has not
already acquired the facility named in this application or entered into an agreement to
acquire the facility named in the application unless the contract contains a clause that the
transaction is contingent upon approval by the State Board.

Signature of Authorized Officer - % S L“zrd““\
o~ Y 7 J

Typed or Printed Name of Authorized Officer James H. Skogsbergh

Title of Authorized Officer: _President and Chief Executive Officer
Address: : 3075 Highland Parkway

City, State & Zip Code: Downers Grove, IL._60515

Telephone (630) 990-5018 _ Date: (/. 't /

NOTE: complete a separate signature page for each co-applicant and insert following this
page.




CERTIFICATION Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation

I certify that the above information and all attached information are true and correct to the
best of my knowledge and belief. I certify that the number of beds within the facility will
not change as part of this transaction. I certify that no adverse action has been taken against
the applicant(s) by the federal government, licensing or certifying bodies, or any other
agency of the State of lllinois. I certify that I am fully aware that a change in ownership will
void any permits for projects that have not been completed unless such projects will be
completed or altered pursuant to the requirements in 77 TAC 1130.520(f) prior to the
effective date of the proposed ownership change. I also certify that the applicant has not
already acquired the facility named in this application or entered into an agreement to
acquire the facility named in the application unless the contract contains a clause that the
transaction is contmgent upon approval by the State Board. '

Signature of Authorized Officer %" S L’U L'v\-\[

Typed or Printed Name of Authorized Officer James H. Skogsberm

Title of Authorized Officer: President and Chief Executive Officer
Address: | 3075 Highland Parkway |
City, State & Zip Code: Downers Grove, IL 60515

Telephone (630)_990-5018 Date: (VI ) Z 0/ %

NOTE: complete a separate signature page for each co-applicant and insert following this
page.
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CERTIFICATION NorthShore University HealthSystem

I certify that the above information and all attached information are true and correct to the best
of my knowledge and belief. I certify that the number of beds within the facility will not
change as part of this transaction. I certify that no adverse action has been taken against the
applicant(s) by the federal government, licensing or certifying bodies, or any other agency of
the State of Illinois. I certify that I am fully aware that a change in ownership will void any
permits for projects that have not been completed unless such projects will be completed or
altered pursuant to the requirements in 77 IAC 1130.520(f) prior to the effective date of the
proposed ownership change. I also certify that the applicant has not already acquired the
facility named in this application or entered into an agreement to acquire the facility named in
the application unless the contract contains a clause that the transaction is contingent upon
approval by the State Board.

Signature of Authorized Officer WM é /‘; ZJM_- S

Typed or Printed Name of Authorized O{ﬁcer Mark R. Neaman

Title of Authorized Officer: President and Chief Executive Officer
Address: 1301 Central Street
City, State & Zip Code: Evanston, IT 60201
Telephone (847) 570-5005 Date: October 13,2014

NOTE: complete a separate signature page for each co-applicant and insert following this
page.




APPLICATION FEE

ATTACHMENT #1

A single check in the amount of $47,500 payable to the Illinois Department of Public Health has
been submitted covering 19 COE applications from Advocate and NorthShore.

10
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FUNDING

ATTACHMENT #2

Not Applicable. There is no monetary consideration being exchanged between the parties as
part of this transaction.

In response to question 10 of the COE application, the amount listed as Fair Market Value is
the Net Book Value from the most recent audited financials.
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NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION
ATTACHMENT #3

12. NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION. Provide a narrative description explaining the transaction.

Advocate Health Care Network (“Advocate”), Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation
(“AHHC”) and NorthShore University HealthSystem (“NorthShore”) have entered into an
Affiliation Agreement dated September 11, 2014. Under this Affiliation Agreement, subject to
Review Board and other regulatory approvals, Advocate and NorthShore agree to affiliate (the
“Affiliation”) their organizations and operate under the name “Advocate NorthShore Health

Partners.”

NorthShore is a not-for-profit, fully-integrated healthcare delivery system serving the Chicagoland
area whose operations include four hospitals within Illinois. Advocate is a not-for-profit
population health management company whose operations include 11 hospitals in Illinois and
additional healthcare facilities in which it has partial ownership interests. This application is part
of a series of 19 applications seeking Review Board approval for Certificates of Exemption
(“COEs”) for changes of ownership.

To effect the Affiliation, Advocate Health Network will change its name to “Advocate NorthShore
Health Partners” (“ANHP”). No new corporate entity will be formed as part of this
transaction. Upon consummation of this transaction, Advocate NorthShore Health Partners will
become the sole corporate member of NorthShore and will remain the sole corporate member of
AHHC (as well as Advocate’s other direct subsidiaries). Following consummation of this
transaction, the Board of Directors of ANHP will consist of 12 members, five designated by
NorthShore, five designated by Advocate and the Co-CEOs of ANHP, who will be Jim
Skogsbergh and Mark Neaman.

NorthShore (or one of its direct or indirect subsidiaries) currently operates the following four
hospitals and all are part of this series of COE applications:

Evanston Hospital, Evanston
Glenbrook Hospital, Glenview
Highland Park Hospital, Highland Park
Skokie Hospital, Skokie

Advocate (or one of its direct or indirect subsidiaries) currently operates the following 11 hospitals
and all are a part of this series of COE applications:

Advocate BroMenn Medical Center, Normal
Advocate Christ Medical Center, Oak Lawn
Advocate Condell Medical Center, Libertyville
Advocate Eureka Hospital, Eureka

Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital, Downers Grove
Advocate Good Shepherd Hospital, Barrington
Advocate Illinois Masonic Medical Center, Chicago
Advocate Lutheran General Hospital, Park Ridge
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Advocate South Suburban Hospital, Hazel Crest
Advocate Sherman Hospital, Elgin
Advocate Trinity Hospital, Chicago

In addition, Advocate(or one of its direct or indirect subsidiaries) has an ownership interest in the
following licensed health care facilities and are part of this series of COE applications.

BroMenn Comfort and Care Suites, Bloomington
Dreyer Ambulatory Surgery Center, Aurora
RML Chicago, Chicago

RML Specialty Hospital, Hinsdale

Sherman West Court, Elgin

All of the above listed Advocate related facilities are included in the series of COE applications
with the exception of Sherman West Court which is exempt because it is licensed under the
Nursing Home Care Act. The applicants will notify the Review Board upon the change of
ownership of Sherman West Court which will occur as part of the Affiliation.

Neither the licensed entity of the health care facilities listed above nor the legal entity that owns
the physical plant of such facilities will change as part of the Affiliation.

There is no monetary consideration being exchanged between the parties as part of the Affiliation.
The applicants have scheduled a January 1, 2015 closing, subject to obtaining regulatory
approvals.




BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT
ATTACHMENT #4

See Certificates of Good Standing for applicants on following pages.

14
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File Number 1707-692-2

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

1, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

ADVOCATE HEALTH CARE NETWORK, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED
UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON JUNE 14, 1923, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT
OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC
CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

oo

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 9TH
day of JUNE AD. 2014

"'\\ ‘_‘,‘ ) . .. 3 / f
i Y. E Q\
Authentication #: 1416001288 M W

Authenticate at: hitp:/Awww cyberdriveitlinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE
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File Number 1004-695-5

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do*
hereby certify that

ADVOCATE HEALTH AND HOSPITALS CORPORATION, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION,
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON SEPTEMBER 12, 1906, APPEARS
TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 9TH

day of JUNE AD. 2014

\"“\____ 19, e ’
o M
Authentication #: 1416001324

Authenticate at: http./mwww.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE




File Number 0567-540-5

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, JesseWhite, Secretary of State of the State of Illineis, do
hereby certify that

NORTHSHORE UNIVERSITY HEALTHSYSTEM, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION,
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON DECEMBER 04, 1891, APPEARS
TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 10TH
day of OCTOBER AD. 2014

®, o \
ol A,\;ﬂ--’v‘v .t 3 ’
Authentication #: 1428301484 E M W

Authenticate at: hitp./www.cyberdriveiliinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

17
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TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS

ATTACHMENT #5

Attached is a copy of the executed Affiliation Agreement, dated September 11,
2014, among NorthShore University HealthSystem, Advocate Health Care
Network, and Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation. Page 45 of the
Affiliation Agreement addresses the need to obtain certificates of exemption from
the Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board. See the following pages
for Affiliation Agreement.

. B e




£

EXECUTION VERSION

AFFILIATION AGREEMENT
dated September 11, 2014
among
NORTHSHORE UNIVERSITY HEALTHSYSTEM,
ADVOCATE HEALTH CARE NETWORK,
and

ADVOCATE HEALTH AND HOSPITALS CORPORATION

CHI:2860123.9

19
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AFFILIATION AGREEMENT FOR
NORTHSHORE UNIVERSITY HEALTHSYSTEM
AND
ADVOCATE HEALTH CARE NETWORK

This Affiliation Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of September 11, 2014
(the “Agreement Date’) by and among NorthShore University HealthSystem, an Illinois not-for-
profit corporation (“NerthShore”), Advocate Health Care Network, an Illinois not-for-profit
corporation (“Advocate” or, when referring to it herein with respect to events or circumstances
following the Closing, “ANHP”), and Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation, an Illinois
not-for-profit corporation (‘“AHHC”) (each a “Party” and collectively, the “Parties”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the healthcare community in the United States has been challenged to
provide a greater range of services, at lower costs and in a more efficient manner, and improve
the quality of patient care through collaboration and coordination, while simultaneously
experiencing significant change in government regulation, payment for services, technological
developments, patient demographics and demand as well as an increased need for capital,

WI-iEREAS, NorthShore is a not-for-profit, fully-integrated healthcare delivery system
serving the Chicagoland area and the principal teaching affiliate for the University of Chicage
Pritzker School of Medicine; '

WHEREAS, Advocate is a nationally-recognized, not-for-profit, population health
management company; '

WHEREAS, the Parties and their respective Affiliates share a common and unifying not-
for-profit health care mission to improve the quality and expand the scope and accessibility of
affordable health care and health care-related services for the residents of the areas which they
serve in a culture of compassion, respect, integrity and excellence, and to advance medical
education, training and research;

WHEREAS, the Parties consider it in the best interests of their respective communities
and constituencies to affiliate (the “Affiliation™) their organizations so as to better serve their
communities and constituencies in a manner that exemplifies their not-for-profit and charitable
missions and to enable NorthShore and Advocate to provide high-quality care in a cost-effective
manner,

WHEREAS, the Parties intend for the Affiliation to achieve significant benefits that
could not be achieved independently by either organization, including development of risk-based
and narrow network care delivery models, development and analysis of data to transform patient
care at reduced cost and reduce variation in clinical practice through evidence-based medicine,
improved coordination of patient care services in the most appropriate setting, reduction in the
duplication of resources, enhanced access to capital markets at lower cost, and other efficiencies
and cost reductions, increased access to specialized health care services and other clinical and
educational benefits;
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WHEREAS, to effect the Affiliation, Advocate’s name will be changed to “Advocate
NorthShore Health Partners” arid ANHP will become the sole corporate member of NorthShore;

WHEREAS, ANHP will remain the sole corporate member of AHHC;

WHEREAS, upon the consummation of the Affiliation, (a) ANHP will serve as the sole
corporate member of NorthShore and AHHC (and Advocate’s other direct subsidiaries) and shall
generally hold the same reserved powers with respect to each of NorthShore and AHHC (and
Advocate’s other direct subsidiaries), (b) except as otherwise expressly contemplated hereby,
ANHP shall have the exclusive authority to govern, direct, and oversee the property, funds and
affairs of the NorthShore Corporations (as defined below) and the Advocate Corporations (as
defined below) and (c) ANHP, in its capacity as the sole member of NorthShore and AHHC (and
Advocate’s other direct subsidiaries), may act on behalf of the NorthShore Corporations and the
Advocate Corporations;

WHEREAS, the Parties intend to operate ANHP, the NorthShore Corporations and the
Advocate Corporations following the Affiliation with a single mission and commitment to
preserve and improve the health of the individuals, families and communities they serve and to
improve quality and patient safety consistent with the current missions of Advocate and
NorthShore;

WHEREAS, the members of the Board of Directors of NorthShore (the “NorthShore
‘Poard”) immediately prior to the Affiliation shall remain the members of the NorthShore Board
following the Affiliation and certain members of the Board of Directors of AHHC (“AHHC
Board”) immediately prior to the Affiliation shall remain members of the AHHC Board
following the Affiliation, in each case, to continue to serve on such boards in accordance with
-the terms and conditions prescribed by NorthShore and AHHC, respectively; and

WHEREAS, the Boards of Directors of each of NorthShore and Advocate have
approved the Affiliation.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the representations, warranties, covenants and
agreements contained herein, the Parties hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION
1.1  Defined Terms. The following terms shall have the meanings specified below:

“Advocate Charitable Foundation” means the Advocate Charitable Foundation,
an Illinois not-for-profit corporation.

“Advocate Corporations” means, prior to the Affiliation, Advocate and each of
its Controlled Subsidiaries and, after the Affiliation, AHHC, North Side, Condell,
Sherman, AISPC and each other Controlled Subsidiary of Advocate (prior to the
Affiliation).
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“Advocate Disclosure Schedule” means the Advocate Disclosure Schedule
delivered by Advocate to NorthShore on the date hereof.

“Advocate Master Indenture” means the Amended and Restated Master Trust
Indenture dated as of September 1, 2011, as supplemented and amended to date, among
Advocate, the Advocate Obligated Group and U.S. Bank, National Association, as master
trustee.

“Advocate Medical Group” means Advocate Medical Group, an operating
division of AHHC.

“Advocate Obligated Group” means AHHC, North Sidé and Condell.
“Advocate System” means all of the Advocate Corporations, taken as a whole.

“Affiliate” means with respect to any Person, any other Person directly or
indirectly Controlled by or under common Control with such Person.

“AISPC” means Advocate Insurance SPC, a Cayman Islands corporation exempt
from taxation in that jurisdiction.

“ANHP Board” means the Board of Directors <f ANHP.
“ANPP Board” means the Board of Directors 3f ANPP.

“Applicable Laws” means all foreign, federal, state or local laws (including
common laws), statutes, regulations, ordinances, codes, rules, interpretations or guidance
of any Governmental Entity or any Governmental Ordérs, in each case, applicable to the
relevant entity and to the businesses and assets thereof.

“CHAMPVA” means the health benefits program in which the Department of
Veterans Affairs shares the cost of certain health care services and supplies with eligible
beneficiaries. ’

“CI Program” means the Clinical Integration program developed by APP,
including hospital-to-hospital clinical integration, joint contracting, and performance
standards and criteria, including clinical care delivery and management standards, quality
agsurance and utilization management criteria and standards, and risk management
programs, for use by APP in the implementation of payor agreements and other
components and dimensions of the program.

“Clinical Integration” means the integration of hospitals, physicians and other
providers into a network of providers that fosters the change in the provision of and
payment for patient care contemplated by the three-part aim of recent federal health
reform legislation — better care for individuals, better health for populations, and slower
growth in costs through improvements in care — and by the standards established by the
Federal Trade Commission for a network of providers to be clinically integrated under
thie antitrust laws throuigh means such as: (a) eliminating unnecessary clinical care
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variation through the adoption -of clinical pathways; (b) improving the economic
efficiency of providers; (¢) applying evidence-based medicine techniques and principles;
(d) implementing an active and on-going program to evaluate and modify the practice
patterns of all participating providers and create a high degree of interdependence and
cooperation among the providers to control costs and achieve quality; and (e) establishing
an integrated information technology platform.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

“Condell” means Advocate Condell Medical Center, an Illinois not-for-profit
corporation.

“Control” means (including, with corfelative meanings, “Controlled by” and
“under common Control with’’), with respect to any Person, the possession, directly or
mdirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management or policies of a
Person, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise.

“Controlled Subsidiary” means, with respect to a Person, each other Person that,
directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, is Controlled by such Person.

“Disclosure Schedule(s)” mieans, if singular, either the Advocate Disclosure
Schedule or the NorthShore Disclosure Schedule as the comtext so implies or, if plural,
the Advocate Disclosure Schedule and the NorthShore Disclosure Schedule.

“elCU” means the remote telemedicine monitoring and intervention by
elntensivist physicians and eRNs on behalf of intensive care unit patients. Remote
telemedicine monitoring includes real time vital sign monitoring, electronic medical
record (“EMR”) monitoring, and performing diagnostic and EKG imaging. Interventions,
which are made in collaboration with each patient’s attending/managing physician,
include writing orders for medications, procedures, and diagnostic testing and imaging
via computerized physician order entry (or other mutually agreed upon method).

“Employee Benefit Plan” means any of the following covering any current or
former employee, officer, director, consultant or agent of either NorthShore or any
ERISA Affiliate of NorthShore, on the one hand, or Advocate or any ERISA Affiliate of
Advocate, on the other hand, as applicable: (a) any “employee pension benefit plan™ as
defined in Section 3(2) of ERISA (including any “multiemployer” plans as defined in
Section 3(37) of ERISA), (b) any “employee welfare benefit plan” as defined in Section
3(1) of ERISA, including severance, sick leave, medical, dental, hospitalization, vision,
disability, life insurance, long term care insurance and pet insurance plans, policies, or
arrangements, and (¢) any retirement, deferred compensation, retention, change in
control, severance, bonus, thrift, equity compensation or incentive plan, agreement or
arrangement and any “fringe benefits” or perquisites (including benefits related to
automobiles, clubs, vacation or holiday pay, paid time off, child care, parenting, or
sabbatical), which does not constitute an employee benefit plan (as defined in Section
3(3) of ERISA), regardless of whether any of the foregoing items (a) through (c) are
funded, unfunded, insured, self-insured, written or oral.
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“Encumbrance” means any claim, charge, easement, encumbrance,
encroachment, security interest, option, pledge, mortgage, lien, pledge, or restriction
(whether on sale, transfer, disposition or otherwise), whether imposed by agreement or
Applicable Law.

“Environmental Laws” means all Applicable Laws concemning worker health
and safety, pollution or protection of the environment, including all those relating to the
presence, production, generation, handling, transport, treatment, storage, disposal,
distribution, labeling, testing, processing, emissions, discharges, releases or threatened
releases, or the manufacture or use, control or cleanup of, or exposure to, Hazardous
Materials.

“ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.

“ERISA Affiliate” means, with respect to any Person, each other Person that is
treated as a single employer with such Person pursuant to Section 414 of the Code.

“Federal Health Care Program” has the meaning ascribed thereto in 42 U.S.C.
§ 1320a-7b(f), and includes the Medicare and Medicaid programs, Indian health service
programs, TRICARE and CHAMPVA, and similar or successor programs whether
administered directly by a Govermnmental Entity or through contracted entities,

* administrative contractors, health maintenance organizations, commercial health plans

third party administrators, health. care services or other health insurance plans or
programs.

“Federal Trade Commission” means the United States Federal Trade
Commission.

“FPA” means NorthShore University HealthSystem Faculty Practice Associates,
an Illinois not-for-profit corporation.

“GAAP” means accounting principles as generally accepted in the United States

. as in effect from time to time.

“Governmental Entity” means any government, quasi-governmental or
administrative agency, instrumentality, bureau, board, directorate, commission, court,
department, official, political subdivision, tribunal, body or other instrumentality of any
government, whether federal, state, municipal, provincial, local, domestic, or foreign or
arbitrator, arbitration panel or other similar dispute-resolving panel or body or any
contractor acting on behalf of any of the foregoing.

“Governmental Order” means any order, decree, writ, stipulation, judgment,
determination, injunction or award entéred by any Governmental Entity.

“Hazardous Materials” means any material, substance or waste that is or
becomes characterized, classified, regulated or designated under Environmental Law as
hazardous, toxic, a pollutant, or radioactive, including petroleum, asbestos, noise,
radiation, odor, toxic mold and pesticideés.

5
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“Healthcare Laws” means all statutes, regulations and manual provisions
governing Federal Healthcare Programs and relationships with other third party payor
programs applicable to the relevant entity and to the businesses and assets thereof,
including 42 U.S.C. 1320a-7a, 42 U.S.C. §1320a-7b(b), 42 U.S.C. 1395nn, 31 U.S.C.
§3729 et seq., the administrative simplification provisions of the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”), and the Illinois Health Facilities
Planning Act, 20 ILCS 3960/1 (the “Health Facilities Planning Act”) and the
regulations promulgated pursuant to each such statute.

“HFSRB” means the Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board and, as
applicable, its predecessor organization, the Illinois Health Facilities Planning Board.

“HSR Act” means the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976.

“Indebtedness” means, with respect to a Person, all (a) obligations of such
Person for indebtedness for borrowed money, (b) Liabilities of such Person in respect of
any guarantees, letters of credit (to the extent drawn), performance bonds, surety bonds,
sureties or similar obligations issued by or on behalf of such Person, (¢) Liabilities of
such Person under any capital lease and (d) obligations of such Person for any accrued
but unpaid interest relating to any of the foregoing; provided that, notwithstanding
anything in the foregoing to the contrary, Indebtedness shall not include (i) any
intercompany accounts, payables or loans of any kind or nature between or among such
Person and any of its oiker System Corporations and (ii) any Liabilities under any lease
(other than any capital lease).

“Information Privacy and Security Laws” means all Applicable Laws
concerning the privacy or security of Personal Information or conceming call or
electronic monitoring or recording or any outbound communications (including outbound
calling and text messaging, telemarketing and e-mail marketing).

“Insurance” means policies of insurance and self-insurance programs or fidelity
bonds.

“Intellectual Property” means all worldwide (a) patents and patent applications,
including all provisionals, continuations, continuations-in-part, divisions, reissues, re-
examinations and extensions thereof, patent disclosures, inventions (whether or not
patentable) and improvements thereto, (b) trademarks, service marks, logos, trade dress
and trade names or other source-identifying designations or devices, all registrations and
applications therefor and all goodwill associated therewith (collectively, “Trademarks”),
(c) copyrights and design rights, whether registered or unregistered, and pending
applications to register the same and all moral rights associated therewith, (d) Internet
domain names and registrations thereof and social media accounts, and (e) confidential
ideas, trade secrets, computer software (including its source code), algorithms, know-
how, works-in-progress, concepts, methods, processes, inventions, invention disclosures
and formulae (collectively, “Trade Secrets™).
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“Imterim Financial Statements” means, with respect to a Party, the unaudited
financial statements of such Party’s System for thé month just ended, (a) prepared based
upon the information contained in books and records of such Party and such Party’s
System Corporations, (ii) presenting fairly in all material respects the financial position,
assets and liabilities and results of operation of such Party and its System Corporations
(taken as a whole) as of the date and for the periods referred to therein; and (c) prepared
in accordance with GAAP on a basis consistent with past practice of such Party (subject
to any normal year-end adjustments, which are not, in the aggregate, material).

“IRS” means the United States Internal Revenue Service.

“IT Assets” means, with respect to any Person, software, systems, servers,
computers, hardware, firmware, middleware, networks, data communications lines,
routers, hubs, switches and all other information technology equipment, and all
associated documentation, in each case, used or held for use in the operation of such
Person.

“Knowledge” when used in the case of Advocate, means the actual knowledge of
James Skogsbergh, William Santulli, Dominic Nakis, Kevin Brady or Mike Englehart
and, when used in the case of NorthShore, means the actual knowledge of Mark Neaman,
Gerald P. Gallagher, Gary Weiss or Bill Luehrs,

“Liability” or “Liabilities” means any direct g indirect liability, Indebtedness,
obligation, commitment, expénse (including legal fees and costs and any other amounts
paid incident to any compromise or settlement of any claim, lawsuit or arbitration),
damage, fine, penalty, claim, deficiency, guarantee or endorsement of or by any Person of
any type, whether accrued, unaccrued, absolute, contingent, matured or unmatured.

“Material Adverse Effect” means any change, effect, event, circumstance,
development or occurrence that has, or could reasonably be expected to have, or results
in, or could reasonably be expected to result in, with the passage of time, individually or
in the aggregate, (a) a material adverse effect on the business, assets, liabilities,
properties, operations; results of operations or condition (financial or otherwise) of the
Advocate System or the NorthShore System (as applicable), taken as a whole; (b) a loss
of licensure, accreditation, permits or approvals necessary for the Advocate System or the
NorthShore System (as applicable), taken as a whole, to operate in all material respects
consistent with historic practice; (c) a material adverse effect on the Party’s ability to
consummate the Affiliation or to perform its material obligations pursuant to this
Agréement; (d) actual or threatened exclusion from a material Federal Health Care
Program of a material part of the Advocate System or the NorthShore System. (as
applicable); or (e) loss of any Tax-exemption for a material entity in the Advocate
System or the NorthShore System, as applicable; provided; however, that none of the
following (or the results thereof) shall be a Material Adverse Effect: (i) any change in
any Applicable Law or accounting standard; (ii) any change in economic, regulatory,
political or business conditions or financial market conditions generally, or in the
industry in which the NorthShore System and the Advocate System operate; (iii) any
change in any government or private payor program generally applicable to operators of
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similarly situated businesses in the State of Illinois; (iv) any change arising in connection
with hostilities, acts of war (physical or cyber), sabotage or terrorism or military actions
or any escalation or material worsening thereof, or (v) any change resulting from the
public announcement of this Agreement, compliance with terms of this Agreement or the
consummation of the Transactions, unless, in the case of the foregoing clauses (i), (ii),
(iii) or (iv), such effect, event, development or change referred to therein
disproportionately affects the Advocate System or the NorthShore System, as applicable
and taken as a whole, relative to other participants in the industry in which they operate.

“Material Contracts” means the following categories of contracts, leases (capital
and operating), and other agreements entered into by or on behalf of any one or more of
the NorthShore Corporations or Advocate Corporations which are currently in effect:

) non-cancellable leases of real property by a NorthShore Corporation or an
Advocate Corporation, as applicable, and all leases of Owned Real Property;

(ii)  the Advocate Master Indenture and the NorthShore Master Indenture;*
(iii)  agreements or instruments regarding other Indebtedness;

(iv) all documents evidencing negative pledges or other covenant or transfer
restrictions on the assets of any NorthShore Corporation or any Advocate
Corporation, as applicable;* .

(v)  all joint venture agreements to which any NorthShore Corporation or Advocate

. Corporation is a party and which generates net income to (or results in a Liability

of) a Paty or a System Corporation in excess of Ten Million Dollars
($10,000,000) annually;*

(vi)  all agreements for employment, retention, severance or change in control or the
primary purpose of which is indemnification of another Person;

(viij all (x) Federal Health Care Programs or (y) contracts with pri\;éte insurance
companies that individually account for payments in excess of Twenty-Five
Million Dollars ($25,000,000) annually;*

(viii) all insurance policies, trust agreements and other related agreements, including
stop-loss and self-insurance arrangements;

(ix)  corporate integrity agreements;*

(x)  agreements which contain executory non-competition covenants binding upon a
NorthShore Corporation or an Advocate Corporation that could reasonably be
expected to include the primary service area of the other Party;*

(xi) agreements or commitments materially affecting ownership of, title to, or any
interest in real property other than those which are covered by clause (i) above;*
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(xii) collective bargaining agreements;*
(xiil) agreements with supporting/sponsor organizations;*
(xiv) joint purchasing agreements;*

(xv) agreements which would require a NorthShore Corporation (in the event of an
agreement to which an Advocate Corporation is party) or an Advocate
Corporation (in the event of an agreement to which a NorthShore Corporation is
party) to become obligated under or otherwise participate in such agreement as a
result of the Affiliation;*

(xvi) any other agreement: (a) that involves an obligation of a NorthShore Corporation
or an Advocate Corporation in excess (or expected to be in excess) of Twenty-
Five Million Dollars ($25,000,000) in any one year; (b) that involves an
obligation of a NorthShore Corporation or an Advocate Corporation in excess of
Fifty Million Dollars ($50,000,000) over the remaining term of the agreement; or
(c) the cancellation or termination of which would be reasonably likely to result in
a Material Adverse Effect, in each case, other than those which are covered by
clauses (i) to (xv) above.*

© “Medicaid” means the healthcdre program established under Title XIX of the
Social Security Act, which provides health insurance for low income individuals

: “Medicare” means the healthcare program established under Title XVIII of the
Social Security Act, which provides health insurance for individuals 65 and over,
individuals with end stage renal disease, and certain disabled individuals.

“NFPs” means, with respect to NorthShore, NorthShore, FPA and RMI, and, with
respect to Advocate, Advocate, AHHC, North Side, Condell, Sherman, EHS Home
Health Care Services, Inc., an Illinois not-for-profit corporation, Sherman West Court, an
Hlinois not-for-profit corporation and Sherman Home Health Care Corporation, an
Illinois not-for-profit corporation.

“North Side” means Advocate North Side Health Network, an Illinois not-for-
profit corporation.

“NorthShore Corporations” means NorthShore and each of its Controlled
Subsidiaries.

“NorthShore Disclosure Schedule” means the NorthShore Disclosure Schedule
delivered by NorthShore to Advocate on the date hereof.

“NorthShore Foundation” means the charitable and philanthropic foundation of
the NorthShore System.
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“Northshore Master Indenture” means the Restated Master Trust Indenture
dated as of September 23, 2010, as supplemented and amended to date, between
NorthShore and U.S. Bank National Association, as successor master trustee.

“NorthShore Research Institute” means the research institute established and
operated by the NorthShore Corporations.

“NorthShore System” means all of the NorthShore Corporations, taken as a
whole.

“NPA” means NorthShore Physician Associates, Inc., an Illinois corporation.

“Organizational Documents” means articles of organization, articles of
incorporation, operating agreements, bylaws and other equivalent organizational
documents.

“Permits” means any license, permit, franchise, certificate of authority, certificate
of need, authorization, approval, variance, exemption, consent, operating certificate,
franchise, or order, or any waiver of the foregoing, required to be issued by any
Governmental Entity, including Medicare and Medicaid certifications and provider and
supplier numbers.

“Permitted Encumbrance(s)” means all (a) liens for Taxes or assessments and
other similar charges not yet due and payable or which are being contested in good faith
by appropriate proceedings and for which appropriate reserves are being maintained in
accordance with GAAP; (b) easements, quasi-easements, licenses, covenants, rights-of-
way, rights of re-entry or other similar restrictions, including any other agreements,
conditions or restrictions that would be shown by a current title report or other similar
report or listing none of which materially interfere with occupancy or use of the real
property to which they apply; (c) mechanics, materialmen and similar liens arising in the
ordinary course of business; (d) Encumbrances that do not materially interfere with the
operations of the entity’s assets in a manner consistent with the current use of such assets
of such the entity; () restrictions on transfer arising under applicatle securities laws; (f)
zoning, entitlement, building, environmental and other land use regulations imposed by
Governmental Entities which are not violated by the current use and operation of the
applicable real property; (g) liens arising under worker’s compensation, employment
insurance, social security, retirement and similar legislation for amounts not yet due and
payable or the amount or validity of which is being contested in good faith by appropriate
proceedings; and (h) purchase money liens and liens of landlord’s, lessors and licensors
arising under lease agreements or license arrangements.

“Person” means an individual, corporation, partnership, limited liability
company, joint venture, association, trust or other entity or organization, including a
Governmental Entity.

“Personal Infermation” means (a) any information with respect to which there is
a reasonable basis to believe that the information can be used to identify an individual,
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including demographic information; (b) social security numbers; and (c) any information
that is regulated or protected by one or more Information Privacy and Security Laws.

“PHO Director” means has the meaning set forth in the Amended APP Bylaws.

“Post-Closing Period” means the period from the Closing Date to the date that is
six (6) years following the Closing Date.

“Pre-Closing Period” means the period from the Agreement Date to the earlier of
(a) immediately prior to the Closing and (b) the termination of this Agreement in
accordance with its terms.

“Proceeding” means any claim, charge, complaint, demand, action, suit,
litigation, arbitration, proceeding, audit, examination, hearing or investigation by or
before any Governmental Entity.

“RMI” means Radiation Medicine Institute, an 1llinois not-for-profit corporation.

“Sherman” means Advocate Sherman Hospital, an Illinois not-for-profit
corporation.

“Social Security Act” means the United States Social Security Act of 1933,

“System” means, with respect to NorthShore, the NorthShore System, and with *°

respect to Advocate, the Advocate System.

“System Corporations” means each of the Advocate Corporations and the
NorthShore Corporations.

“System Director” has the meaning set forth in the Amended APP Bylaws,

“Tax” means any federal, state, local, foreign or other tax, levy, impost, fee,
assessment or other government charge, including any income, business, occupation,
franchise, property, payroll, personal property, sales, transfer, use, employment,
commercial rent, occupancy, or withholding tax, and any premium, including penalties
and additions in connection therewith.

“Transaction Documents” means this Agreement and each other agreement
delivered (or to be delivered) pursuant to this Agreement in connection with the Closing.

“Transactions” means the Affiliation and each of the other transactions
contemplated hereby to occur at the Closing.

“TRICARE” means the health insurance program established by the U.S.
Department of Defense for members of the military and military retirees, and their
families

11
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1.2

opposite such term:

CHI:2860123.9

Other Terms. Each of the following terms is defined in the Section set forth

Term Section
Accreditations 5.18
Advocate Preamble
Advocate Closing Documents 82
Advocate Co-CEO 3.5(a)
Advocate Directors 3.3(b)(ii)
Affiliation Recitals
Agreement Preamble
Agreement Date Preamble
AMHC Preamble
AHHC Board Recitals
Amended Advocate Articles of Incorporation 3.1(2)
Amended Advocate Bylaws 3.1(a)
Amended AHHC Articles of Incorporation 3.1(d)
Amended AHHC Bylaws 3.1(d)
Amended APP Articles of Incorporation 3.1(H)
Amended APP Bylaws 3.1
Amended NorthShore Articles of Incorporation 3.1(c)
Amended NorthShore Bylaws 3.1(c)
Amended NPA Atticles of Incorporation 3.1(e)
Amended NPA Bylaws 3.1(e)
ANHP Preamble
ANPP 3.1(e)
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NorthShore Closing Documents

Term Section
APP 3.1(e)
Audited Financial Statements 5.6(a)
Business Associate Agreement 521(e)
Closing 81
Closing Date 8.1
Co-CEO(s) 3.5()
Confidentiality Agreement 11.6
Disclosed Material Contracts 5.13(a)
DME MAC 5.17(a)
Employment Laws 5.20
EMR Definition of;ICU
End Date 10.1(e) )
Financial Statements 5.6(a)
Health Facilities Planning Act Definition of; !
Healthcare Laws
HIPAA Definition of
Healthcare Laws
Initial Advocate Directors 3.3(a)(ii)
Initial ANHP Directors 3.3(a)
Initial NorthShore Directors 3.3(a)()
MAC 5.17(a)
NorthShore Preamble
NorthShore Board Recitals
83

13
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Term Section

NorthShore Co-CEO 3.5(a)

NorthShore Directors 3.3(b)i)

Owned Real Property 5.11(a)

Party(ies) Preamble

RAC 5.17(a)

Required Filings 6.3(b)

System Intellectual Property 5.21(a)

System IT Assets 5.21(d)

Trade Secrets Definition of
Intellectual Property

Trademarks Defizition of
Inteljl‘gctual Property

Unaudited Financial Statements 5.6(a)

W&S 11.6

i ZPIC 5.17(a)

1.3 Interpretaticn.

(a) The words “hereof,” “herein” and “hereunder” and words of like import used in
this Agreement shall refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular provision of
this Agreement.

{b) The captions or headings are included for convenience of referencé only and shall
be ignored in the construction or interpretation hereof.

(c) References to Articles, Sections, Exhibits and Schedules aré to Articles, Sections,
Exhibits and Schedules of this Agreement unless otherwise specified.

{d) All Exhibits and Schedules attached hereto or referred to herein are incorporated
i and made a part of this Agreement as if set forth in full herein.

(e) Any capitalized terms used in any Exhibit or Schedule but not otherwise defined

therein shall have the meaning as defined inthis Agreement.
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(f) Any singular term in this Agreement shall be deemed to include the plural, and
any plural term the singular.

(g) Whenever the words “include,” “includes” or “including” are used in this
Agreement, they shall be deemed to be followed by the words “without limitation,” whether
or not they are in fact followed by those words or words of like import.

(h) References to any agreement or contract are to that agreement or contract as
amended, modified or supplemented from time to time in accordance with the terms hereof
and thereof.

(1) References to any Person include the successors and permitted assigns of that
Person.

(1) References from or through any date mean, unless otherwise specified, from and
including or through and including, respectively.

(k) References in this Agreement to a statute shall be to such statute, as amended
from time to time, and to the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

(I) References to “days” means calendar days unless specified otherwise.

h el

(m)References to “Dollars” and “$” means Uniied States Dollars.

(n) All references to the “Advecate Corporations”. (as defined above) shall be
construed to mean “each of the Advocate Corporations” or “any of the Advocate
Corporations” where appropriate.

(0) All references to the “NorthShore Corporaiions” (as defined above) shall be
construed to mean “each of the NorthShore Corporations” or “any of the NorthShore
Corporations” where appropriate.

ARTICLE 2
RATIONALE AND VISION OF THE TRANSACTIONS

The Parties share a common understanding and belief that health care is transforming
from a transactional, acute-care ori¢ntation to a value-based, consumer driven, population health
management orientation based upon evidence-based practices and coordination of care for
patients in the inpatient, outpatient, post-acute care and home settings. They believe that the
financial and regulatory environment for heaith care providers has become, and will continue to
be, extremely challenging, characterized by intense cost pressures, shifts in care settings to
ambulatory, home and other settings, rapid growth in consumerism, and new industry entrants
and business models. The Parties share the belief that the development of an integrated delivery
system model of multi-specialty physician-hospital alignment focused on population health
management provides the best opportunity to make health care more affordable by providing
clinically integrated, high quality, cost-effective health services in a seamless continuum of care
and enhanced access to such services for patients throughout the communities they serve. In
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furtherance of their charitable missions, by undertaking the Affiliation, the Parties intend to
further develop leading EMRs and data analytics platforms, and to integrate management and
clinical operations of hospitals, physicians and other entities to transform the care that patients
receive, resulting in a combined service capability with seamless access for caregivers and
patients, thereby reducing costs, improving quality and enhancing access while creating
exceptional patient experiences.

ARTICLE 3

GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

3.1 Amendment of Organizational Documents. It is the intent of the Parties that,

. subsequent to the Closing, ANHP shall have and exercise centralized authority to establish the

goals and strategic directions of the Affiliation, including particularly the authority to initiate and
direct strategic and capital planning, clinical alignment and integration, and the standardization
of best practices throughout the organization consistent with the terms of this Agreement.
Effective as of the Closing,

(a) the articles of incorporation of Advocate shall be amended and restated in
substantially the form set forth in Exhibit A-1 (the “Amended Advocate Articles of
Incorporation”) and the bylaws of Advocate shall be amended and restated in substantially
the form set forth in Exhibit A-2 (the “Amended Advocate Bylaws”) to reflect, among other
things, (i) a name change to “Advocate NorthSjore Health Partners” and (ii) the governance
and organizational changes described in this Article 3;

(b) ANHP shall become the sole corporate member of NorthShore;

(c) the articles of incorporation of NorthShore shall be amended and restated (the
“Amended NorthShore Articles of Incorporation”) and the bylaws of NorthShore shall be
amended and restated (the “Amended NorthShore Bylaws”) to reflect, among other things,
(i) ANHP as its sole corporate member, (ii) the delégation of certain powers, including those
relating to fundraising and related back office functions, the NorthShore Research Institute,
clinical appointments, medical staff privileging, department chair appointmenis and
physician compensation, to the NorthShore Board, and (iii) the other govemance and
organizational changes described in this this Article 3;

(d) the articles of incorporation of AHHC shall be amended and restated (the
“Amended AHHC Articles of Incorporation”) and the bylaws of AHHC shall be amended
and restated (the “Amended AHHC Bylaws™) to reflect, among other things, (i) the
delegation of certain powers, including those relating to fundraising and related back office
functions, clinical appointments, medical staff privileging, department chair appointments
and physician compensation, to the AHHC Board and (ii) the governance and orgariizational
changes set forth in this Article 3;

(e) the articles of incorporation of NPA shall be amended and restated (the
“Amended NPA Articles of Incorporation’) and the bylaws of NPA shall be amended and
restated (the “Amended NPA Bylaws™) to permit it to participate in Advocate Health
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Partners, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation doing business as Advocate Physician Partners
(“APP” or, when referring to it herein with respect to events or circumstances following the
Closing, “ANPP”);

(f) the articles of incorporation of APP shall be amended and restated (the
“Amended APP Articles of Incorporation™) and the bylaws of APP shall be amended and
restated (the “Amended APP Bylaws™) to, among other things, (i) permit NPA and
physicians affiliated with the NorthShore Corporations to participate in it, (ii) reflect a name
change to “Advocate NorthShore Physician Partners” and (iii) provide for the governance
structure set forth in Section 3.7,

(g) in addition to the other amendments and restatements set forth in this Section 3.1
the Organizational Documents of each Advocate Corporation shall be amended (i) to provide
that, upon dissolution or liquidation thereof, the assets of such Advocate Corporation be
distributed as a majority (or, during the Post-Closing Period, at least three-fourths (3/4)) of
the members of the ANHP Board may determine and (ii) to conform to the terms set forth in
this Agreement; and

(h) in addition to the other amendments and restatements set forth in this Section 3.1
the Organizational Documents of each NorthShore Corporation shall be amended (i) to
provide that, upon dissolution or liquidation thereof, the assets of such NorthShore
Corporation be distributed as a majority (or, during the Post-Closing Period, at least three-
fourths (3/4)) of the members of the. ANHP Board nmiay determine and (ii) to conform to the
terms set forth in this Agreement.

3.2 Board; Term.

(a) During the Post-Closing Period and unless otherwise approved pursuant to
Section 3.6, the ANHP Board shall consist of twelve (12) members who shall be designated
and appointed as set forth in Section 3.3 and who shall (i) serve terms of three (3) years with
a maximum of three (3) terms and (ii) be seventy (70) years of age or younger at the time
such person’s term (including any subsequent term) commences; provided, however, the
Parties agree that this clause (ii) does not apply to any members of the NorthShore Board as
of the Agreement Date or any members of the Advocate Board as of the Agreement Date.

(b) Following the Post-Closing Period, the ANHP Board shall consist of the number
of members prescribed by the articles of incorporation and bylaws of ANHP, who shall be
designated and appointed as provided in the articles of incorporation and bylaws of ANHP
and who shall (i) serve terms of three (3) years with a maximum of three (3) terms and (ii) be
seventy (70) years of age or younger at the time such person’s term (including any
subsequent term) commences; provided, however, the Parties agree that this clause (ii) does
not apply to ariy members of the NorthShore Board as of the Agreement Date or any
members of the Advocate Board as of the Agreement Date.

33 Designation of Members of ANHP Board.

(a) The members of the ANHP Board immediately following the Closing (the
“Initial ANHP Directors”) shall be designated and appointed as follows:

17

CHI:2860123.9

40

{10



o five (5) (together with the director designated pursuant to clause (iii)
below, the “Initial NorthShore Directors™) of whom shall be designated by the Board of
Directors of NorthShore serving immediately prior to the Closing Date;

(i)  five (5) (together with the director designated pursuant to clause (iv)
below, the “Initial Advocate Directors”) of whom shall be designated by the Advocate
Board of Directors serving immediately prior to the Closing Date (provided that the
Initial Advocate Directors shall include one (1) representative from each of the
Evangelical Lutheran Church in America and the United Church of Christ),

(iii)  one (1) of whom shall be the NorthShore Co-CEO (as defined below) who
shall serve on the ANHP Board ex officio with a vote; and

(iv)  one (1) of whom shall be the Advocate Co-CEQ (as defined below) who
shall serve on the ANHP Board ex officio with a vote.

(b) During the Post-Closing Period, the members of the ANHP Board, including the
successors to the Initial ANHP Directors, shall be designated and appointed as follows:

i) five (5) of whom, including the successors to the Initial NorthShore
Directors (all such successors, together with the Initial NorthShore Directors and the
director designated pursuant to clause (iii) below, the “NorthShore Directors”), shall be
designated by the other NorthShore Directors then serving on the ANHP Board,

(i) five (5) of whom, including the successors to the Initial Advocate
Directors (all such successors, together with the Initial Advocate Directors and the
director designated pursuant to clause (iv) below, the “Advocate Directors™), shall be
designated by the other Advocate Directors then serving on the ANHP Board (provided
that the Advocate Directors shall include one representative from each of the Evangelical
Lutheran Church in America and the United Church of Christ),

(iii)  one (1) of whom shall initially be the NorthShore Co-CEO who shall serve
on the ANHP Board ex officio with a vote and, following the resignation of the
NorthShore Co-CEO as a member of the ANHP Board pursuant to Section 3.5(b), such
Person as shall be designated and appointed by the NorthShore Directors then serving on

the ANHP Board; and

(iv) one (1) of whom shall be the Advocate Co-CEO or, following the
resignation of the NorthShore Co-CEOQ, the Chief Executive Officer of ANHP who shall
serve on the ANHP Board ex officio with a vote.

(c) Following the Post-Closing Period, the ANHP Board shall be self-perpetuating.

34 Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson of ANHP Board.

(a) During the Post-Closing Period, there shall exist a chairperson and a vice-
chairperson of the ANHP Board, who shall be designated and appointed as follows:
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) for the period from the Closing Date to the date that is three (3) years
following the Closing Date, (A) the chairpérson of the ANHP Board shall be designated
and appointed by the Advocate Directors and (B) the vice-chairperson of the ANHP
Board shall be designated and appointed by the NorthShore Directors; and

(ii)  for the period from the date that is three (3 ) years following the Closing
Date to the last day of the Post-Closing Period, (A) the chairperson of the ANHP Board
shall be designated and appointed by the NorthShore Directors and (B) the vice-
chairperson of the ANHP Board shall be designated and appointed by the Advocate
Directors.

(b) Following the Post-Closing Period, the ANHP Board shall determine the manner
for selecting a chairperson and vice-chairperson of the ANHP Board.

35 Co-CEOs; Senior Management.

(a) For the period from the Closing Date to the date that is two (2) years following
the Closing Date, the senior management of ANHP shall be led by Co-Chief Executive
Officers (each, a “Co-CEQ” and together, the “Co-CEOs”), one of whom shall be referred
to herein as the “Advocate Co-CEQ” and one of whom shall be referred to herein as the
“NorthShore Co-CEQ.” Effective immediately following the Closing, the Advocate Co-
CEO shall be Mr. James Skogsbergh (or, if Mr. Skogsbergh is unable or unwilling to serve as
Co-CEO as of the: Closing, such Person as is designated by the majority of the Advogate
Directors and reasonably acceptable to the majority of the NorthShore Directors) and the

NorthShore Co-CEO shall be Mr. Mark Neaman (or, if Mr. Neaman is unable or unwilling to -

serve as Co-CEO as of the Closing, such Person as is designated by the majority of the
NorthShore Directors and reasonably acceptable to the majority of the Advocate Directors).
Mr. Skogsbergh’s successor as Advocate Co-CEOQ, if necessary, shall be selected by a
majority of the Advocate Directors and Mr. Neaman’s successor as NorthShore Co-CEQ, if
necessary, shall be designated in writing by Mr. Neaman, provided, however, that any
successor (other than Gerald P. Gallagher) so selected shall be subject to the reasonable
approval of a collective majority of (i) a majority of the NorthShore Directors (other than Mr.
Neaman if he is then a member) and (ii) the Advocate Co-CEO. For the avoidance of doubt,
each Co-CEQ shall also maintain his position as President and Chief Executive Officer of his
respective System following the Closing.

(b) Effective as of the date that is two (2) years following the Closing Date:

6)) Mr. Neaman or, if applicable, his successor will resign as Co-CEO of
ANHP, President and Chief Executive Officer of NorthShore and a NorthShore Director,
in each case, subject and pursuant to the terms and conditions of any agreement between
Mr. Neaman or, if applicable, his successor, on the one liand, and ANHP or NorthShore,
on the other hand, and

(ii)  Mr. Skogsbergh or, if applicable, his successor shall assume the role of
sole Chief Executive Officer of ANHP subject and pursuant to the terms and conditions
of any agreement between Mr. Skogsbergh or, if applicable, his successor and ANHP.
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(c) The senior management of ANHP shall be structured immediately following the
Closing as set forth in the organizational chart agreed to by the Co-CEOs prior to the
Agreement Date, unless otherwise approved by the ANHP Board.

(d) During the Post-Closing Period, neither Co-CEOQ, nor, following the date that is
two (2) years following the Closing Date, the ANHP CEO may be removed as Co-CEO or
CEO of ANHP, as applicable, without the approval of at least three-fourths (3/4) of the
members of the ANHP Board.

3.6 Special Consent and A pproval Rights.
(a) During the Post-Closing Period,

(i) each of the following actions shall require the approval of at least three-
fourths (3/4) of the members of the ANHP Board; provided however, if at any time there
are more than twelve (12) members of the ANHP Board, then each of the following
actions also shall require the approval of at least a majority of the NorthShore Directors,
on the one hand, and at least a majority of the Advocate Directors, on the other hand:

(A) amendment or restatement of the Amended Advocate Articles or
tlie Amended Advocate Bylaws;

(B)  the granting of a blocking, approval or other right tg any Person
with respect to any actions of any NorthShore Corporation or Advocate
Corporation; - :

(C)  except as contemplated in the Amended NorthShore Articles, the
Amended NorthShore Bylaws, the Amended AHHC Articles, ifle Amended
AHHC Bylaws or in this Agreement, the delegation to or reservation for the board
of directors, committee of the board of directors or similar governing body of any
System Corporation other than ANHP of any power or authority;

(D) amendment or restatement of the Amended APP Articles of
Incorporation or the Amended APP Bylaws; and

(E) any dissolution or liquidation of ANHP, any NorthShore
Corporation or any Advocate Corporation and the distribution of the assets
thereof upon such dissolution or liquidation; provided, however, it is the Parties
intent as of the Agreement Date that the final distribution of the assets of the
NorthShore Corporations, on the one hand, and the assets of the Advocate
Corporations, on the other hand, be made as closely as is reasonably practicable to
the distribution that would have occurred pursuant to the Organizational
Documents of each entity as in effect immediately prior to the Closing;

(ii)  any change in the number of members of the ANHP Board shall require
the approval of at least a miajority of the NorthShore Directors, on the one hand, and at
least a majority of the Advocate Directors, on the other hand;
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(ii))  each of the following actions shall require the approval of at least three-
fourths (3/4) of the members of the ANHP Board; provided however, if at any time there
are more than twelve (12) members of the ANHP Board, then each of the following
actions shall also require the approval of at least a majority of the NorthShore Directors:

(A) amendment or restatement of any of the following:
(1)  the Amended NorthShore Articles;
(2) the Amended NorthShore Bylaws;
(3)  the Amended NPA Articles of Incorporation;
(4)  the Amended NPA Bylaws; and

{5)  the Organizational Documents of any of the other
NorthShore Corporations;

(B) any amendment, restatement or termination of, or other material
alteration in the relationship with the counterparty to, any of the following
agreements:

) that certain Standard License and Support Agreement,
dated August 8, 2001, as amended or modified froifi time to time, between
NorthShore and Epic System Corporation;

%

(2)  that certain Master Affiliation Agreement, dated July 16,
’ 2008, as amended or modified from time to time,"among NorthShore, the
> University of Chicago and the University of Chicago Medical Center,

(3)  that certain Sub-Agreement, dated April 14, 2009, as
amended or modified from time to time, among NorthShore, the
University of Chicago and the University of Chicago Medical Center; and

~ (4 that certain Member Provider Group Agreement, dated July
27, 2012, as amended or modified from time to time, between NorthShore
and Mayo Foundation for Medical Education and Research;

(C) any NorthShore Corporation being required to participate in any
faith-based initiative of any Advocate Corporation or otherwise;

(D) the discontinuance of the “NorthShore” name with respect to the
businesses, facilities and services of ANHP;

(E) any acquisition by a NorthShore Corporation that requires the
granting of a seat on the board .of directors (or similar governing body) of a
NorthShore Corporation to a Person(s) designated by the target of such
acquisition; and
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(F) any material reduction or other modification to any capital
expenditure approved by the NorthShore Board prior to the Agreement Date,
including reasonable reductions or modifications intended to support the
collective goal of NorthShore and Advocate to create efficiencies and synergies
among the two Systems; and

(iv)  each of the following actions shall require the approval of at least three-
fourths (3/4) of the members of the ANHP Board; provided however, if at any time there
are more than twelve (12) members of the ANHP Board, then each of the following
actions shall also require the approval of at least a majority of the Advocate Directors:

(A) amendment or restatement of any of the following:
(1)  the Amended AHHC Atticles;
(2)  the Amended AHHC Bylaws; and

(3)  the Organizational Documents of any of the other Advocate
Corporations;

(B) any amendment, restatement or termination of, or other material
alteration in the relationship with the counterparty to, any of the following
agreemerits: ,

(1) that certain Master Educational Affiliation Agreement, .

dated July 1, 2012, between the Advocate Obligated Group and the Board
of Trustees for the University of Illinois for Undergraduate Medical
Education and Graduate Medical Educatipn;

(2)  that certain Master Affiliation Agreement, dated May 8,

2011, between the Advocate Obligated Group and Rosalind Franklin

* University of Medicine and Science, through its Chicago Medical School;
and

(3)  that certain Master Affiliation Agreement, dated June 20,
2012, between the Advocate Obligated Group and Midwestern University;

(C) any material change to or termination of the Advocate
Corporations’ relationship with United Church of Christ or the Evangelical
Lutheran Church in America;

(D) the discontinuance of the “Advocate” name with respect to the
businesses, facilities and services of ANHP;

(E) any material reduction or other modification to any capital
expenditure approved by the Advocate Board of Directors prior to the Agreement
Date, including reasonable reductions or modifications intended to support the
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collective goal of NorthShore and Advocate to create efficiencies and synergies
among the two Systems; and

(F)  any acquisition by an Advocate Corporation that requires the
granting of a seat on the board of directors (or similar governing body) of an
Advocate Corporation to a Person(s) designated by the target of such acquisition.

(b) During the period from the Closing Date to the date that is two (2) years from the
Closing Date, the discontinuance of the “NorthShore” name with respect to the businesses,
facilities and services of any of the NorthShore Corporations shall require the approval of at
least a majority of the NorthShore Directors.

3.7 ANPP Governance. During the Post-Closing Period,

(a) one (1) physician nominated by NPA shall serve as a PHO Director of the ANPP
Boarg;

(b) one (1) representative nominated by the NorthShore Board shall serve as a
“System Director” on the ANPP Board,

(c) one (1) physician executive nominated by FPA shall serve as a “System Director”
on the ANPP Board; and oo

(d) NPA and FPA shall each designate 1io less than one (1) physician representative
to serve on each of the ANPP consolidated finance, quality improvement, credentialing, and
utilization management committees.

3.8  Other Subsidiaries. During the Post-Closing Period, except as otherwise set forth
in this Agreement or expressly reserved in the applicable Organizational Documents, ANHP will
exercise all powers currently exercised by NorthShore or Advocate with respect to the
NorthShore Corporations and the Advocate Corporations, respectively. The Parties shall use all
commercially reasonable efforts to cause the Organizational Documents of each of their
respective System Corporations to be amended effective as of the Closing to reflect or otherwise
provide for (i) the reservation of power to ANHP described in the preceding sentence and (ii) the
organizational structure contemplated by this Agreement.

ARTICLE 4

POST-CLOSING COVENANTS

4.1 General Commitments, including Commitments to Quality and Patient

Safety. Following the Closing, ANHP, NorthShore and AHHC will use reasonable efforts to:

(a) operate all Advocate Corporations and NorthShore Corporations with a single
mission and commitment to preserve and improve the health of the individuals, families, and
communities they serve;
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(b) continue to improve quality of care and patient safety consistent with the current
missions of Advocate and NorthShore and with the goal of continuing to provide excellence
in patient care and population health management capabilities to patients in the communities
they serve;

(¢) make health care more affordable by the creation of efficiencies and reduction of
costs through the implementation of means such as best clinical practices, use of an
integrated EMR platform, and the consolidation of redundant administrative functions;

(d) serve their patient communities through the maintenance of charity care policies
and practices that are consistent with the missions of Advocate and NorthShore, as permitted
and/or required by Applicable Law;

(e) continue their commitments to their patient communities through academic
medical training and excellence and clinical research principally in conjunction with
NorthShore’s ongoing relationship with the University of Chicago and Advocate’s
relationships with the University of Illinois at Chicago Health Sciences Center, Rosalind
Franklin University and Midwestern University;

(f) create, to the extent feasible, a unified credit structure to (i) permit the necessary
flow of financial support between and among the Advocate Corporations and the NorthShore
Corporations and (i) permit ANHP to access the most effective capital structure to benefit
ANHP as a whole; -

(g) improve quality, safety, and efficiency, reduce costs, transform care delivery by
use of data analytics and evidence-based medicine, realign clinical services, and further
develop population health management strategies and techniques through Clinical
Integration;

(h) incorporate the use of electronic information technology to support the CI
Program, including (i) the electronic capability to exchange claims data and medical record
information; (ii) the electronic capability to measure and conduct analyses (e.g., ANPP
paiticipating providers’ clinical performance, clinical outcomes, cost-effectiveness,
compliance quality programs, and patient experience), (iii) an electronic data
warehouse/patient registry of claims data, EMR data and other appropriate and available data
elements; (iv) a disease and wellness registry; (v) an eICU; and (vi) management and support
functions for the CI Program;

(i) promote the participation of all ANPP physicians in the eICU program, which is a
critical component to the quality and outcomes standards in the CI Program;

(j) cause all hospitals that are part of ANPP to meet hospital-specific clinical
integration and quality measures, which are updated annually based on external reporting
requirements, improvement opportunity, impact on the population served, efficiency, and
overall impact for population health, but which presently include metrics in the following
areas: length of stay, readmissions, inpatient core measures composite, emergency
department core measures composite, falls, infection control composite, ICU ventilator days,
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and patient experience, including both hospital inpatients and the emergency department (as
quantified in Press-Ganey Surveys); and

(k) cause all hospitals that are part of ANPP to participate in hospital-specific
initiatives in the areas of transfusion safety, high reliability training, and serious safety event
rate tracking. ‘

4.2  Charity Care and Qther Policies. The Parties will use reasonable efforts to
develop, adopt and implement, as of or as soon as practicable following the Closing, each of the

following:

(a) standardized charitable assistance policies for patients that (i) reflect material
concepts present in the Parties’ existing policies; (ii) are designed to best meet the needs of
the communities served by ANHP; and (iii) are consistent with industry standards and
Applicable Law;

(b) a financial approval policy;
(c) an audit policy; and

(d) such other policies as the Parties shall reasonably agree are necessary or desirable
to standardize systems and procedures for all System Corporations.

4.3  Indebtednéss. Following the Closing, the Parties will use reasonable efforts,
taking into account the terms and. conditions of the current indebtedness of the Advocate
- Corporations and the NorthShore Corporations and the prevailing financial, credit.and capital
market conditions, to refinance or restructure the existing debt of the Advocate Corporations and
the NorthShore Corporations as of or as soon as practicable following the Closing to permit the
consolidation of the Advocate Corporations and the NorthShore Corporations into a single
obligated group, so that the parties may mutually benefit from more favorable credit terms
resulting from the expected comibined credit rating of the NorthShore Corporations and the
Advocate Corporations.

4.4 Medical_Staff Continuity. Neither the Transactions, nor the consummation
thereof, shall, without considering anything else, (a) affect, change or require a change to (i) the
miedical staff privileges held by any member of a medical staff of a NorthShore Corporation or
an Advocate Corporation as of the Closing Date; (ii) the bylaws, rules and regulations, or
credentialing procedures of the medical staff of any NorthShore Corporation or Advocate
Corporation as of the Closing Date; or (iii) any agreement with any physician member of the
staff of any NorthShore Corporation or Advocate Corporation, whether as an employee or
iridependent contractor or (b) result in a need for any reapplications for credentials or privileges
by members of the medical staff of any NorthShore Corporation or Advocate Corporation as of
the Closing Date.

4.5  Physician Matters.
(a) Following the Closing,
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(1) subject to Section 4.5(b), the Parties will use reasonable efforts to create a
single, unified employed medical group, including by combining Advocate Medical
Group and FPA and by establishing consistent standards for physician alignment within
the combined Advocate System and NorthShore System; and

(ii)  all non-employed physicians affiliated with any NorthShore Corporation
or Advocate Corporation will be invited to join the CI Program subject to the terms and
conditions of such program and such physicians acknowledging that, as a participant in
the CI Program, any incentives available will be based upon actual performance on the CI
Program metrics and initiatives and any incentive payments will be made contingent
upon the implementation of the CI Program:.

(b) During the Post-Closing Period, the non-employed physicians affiliated with the
NorthShore Corporations shall have the right to (i) maintain and appoint their own
department chairpersons and (ii) appoint at least one physician affiliated with a NorthShore
Corporation to each committee that is part of the CI Program.

4.6  ANPP Matters.
(a) Following the Closing,

(i) - afl ANPP physicians shall have full access to the ANPP organizationai
infrastructure supporting the CI Program, including a field operations advisor with
working knowledge of ANPP systems and programs, a quality improvement nurse to
support clinical initiatives, and access to the ANPP call center for information about
ANPP and ANPP decision support staff.

(i1) ANPP shall provide a disease/weéllness registry and other populanon
health solutions to each of the physicians participating in NPA; and

(iii) ANPP shall make the following Clinical Integration programs and
interventions available to ANHP physicians and/or patients as reasonably necessary and
appropriate:

(A) collaborative quality improvement sessions;
(B) patient-centered medical home initiative;
(C) EMR implementation and support;

(D)  online and interactive disease registries for diabetes, asthma, CAD,
childhood immunizations, pediatric wellness, adult wellness, and senior wellness,
as well as any other disease registries developed after the Closing Date;

(E) such clinical integration roundtable meetings as ANPP deems
necessary and appropriate, acting reasonably, which roundtable meetings will
focus on the CI Program metrics and available clinical support or interventions;
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(F)  such other online and in-person continuing medical education
programs as ANPP makes generally available to its participating physicians;

(G) patient outreach programs, including mailing of educational
materials and reminders to patients;

(H) pharmacy academic detailing for NorthShore physician offices;

0y} use of the Advocate ambulatory clinical pathways, which currently
include:

(1)  recommended reference guideline;

(2) clinical practice guideline (a 1-2 page practical summary of
key points on the recommended reference guideline);

(3)  supported clinical education program development; and

(4)  clinical pathways in the areas of depression screening and
management, management of hypertension, childhood obesity, asthma
management (pediatric and adult), type 2 diabetes, and pediatric wellness;
and L

o Q)] such other tools, forms, and programmatic support as ANPP makes

available to physicians related to all Clinical Integration registry initiatives to _

promote evidence-baséd medicine and patient engagement, including reporting on
_quality and cost measurement activities.,

(bY Upon the later of (i) January 1, 2016 or (ii) the expiration of that certain
Management Services Agreement, dated January 1, 2012, between NPA and Valence Health,
Inc., ANHP shall use reasonable efforts to transition the infrastructure for all back office
services of NPA and FPA to ANPP.

(¢) From and after January 1, 2016, ANHP shall use reasonable efforts to cause all
non-employed physicians affiliated with either the NorthShore System or the Advocate
System to participate in all agreements regarding Clinical Integration to which ANPP is
party.

(d) The Parties shall use reasonable efforts to consolidate that certain State of Illinois
Contract, dated February 24, 2014, between the Department of HealthCare and Family
Services and Community Care Partners, LLC for Caré Coordination Services in the
Accountable Care Entities Program by an Accountable Care Entity and that certain State of
Illinois Contract, dated July 17, 2014, between the Department of HealthCare and Family
Services and Advocate Health Partners for Care Coordination Services in the Accountable
Care Entities Program.

4.7 Research Institute.  Following the Closing, the Parties will use reasonable

efforts to promote and continue to support the mission of the NorthShore Research Institute and
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to allow all physicians and other professional personnel of the Advocate Corporations and the
NorthShore Corporations access to and the ability to participate in the NorthShore Research
Institute, which has built a national and international reputation in six areas of research,
specifically cancer, cardiovascular, imaging, medical genetics, neuroscience and peri-neonatal.

4.8 Corporate Headquarters. The initial corporate headquarters of ANHP shall be
located at 3075 Highland Parkway, Downers Grove, Illinois.

49  Donor Restricted Funds. As soon as practicable following the Closing Date and
to the extent permitted under Applicable Law, ANHP shall form a single foundation (the
“ANHP Foundation”) for charitable gifis made thereafter to any of the Advocate Corporations
or the NorthShore Corporations, but only if and to the extent consistent with Applicable Law and
donor-imposed terms and conditions. All funds received by the ANHP Foundation, the
Advocate Charitable Foundation or the NorthShore Foundation shall be held and utilized in
accordance with all Applicable Laws and subject to donor-imposed restrictions and conditions.
If such restrictions or conditions cannot be complied with, such funds may be redirected with the
permission of the donor(s) or modified as permitted by Applicable Law to permit the use by the
ANHP Foundation, the Advocate Charitable Foundation or the NorthShore Foundation, as
applicable, of the applicable funds. In the event that the applicable foundation cannot use such
funds as provided above, then consistent with Applicable Law, the applicable foundation shall
return such funds to donors or otherwise dispose of such funds consistent with the terms of such
gifts. ’
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410 Further Assurances. Each Party shall execute and deliver after the Closing such
further certificates, agreements and other documents and take such other actions as the other
parties may reasonably request to consummate, implement or evidence the Transactions.

5 ARTICLE 5 .

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

As of the date hereof and the Closing Date (except, in each case, for representations and
warranties that address matters as of a particular date, in which case as of such date) and except
as set forth in such Party’s Disclosure Schedule, each of NorthShore and Advocate hereby
represents and warrants, on its behalf and on behalf of such Party’s System Corporations (it
being understood that neither Party is making any representations and warranties with respect to
the other Party or the other Party’s System Corporations):

51  Authority. Such Party and each of its System Corporation has the full capacity,
right, power, and authority, without the need for any additional corporate authorization, to
execute and deliver, to the extent applicable, this Agreement and each of the other Transaction
Documents and to carry out the Transactions. All corporate and other acts or proceedings
required to be taken by such Party and each of its System Corporations to authorize the
execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement and each of the other Transaction
Documents to which it is a party and the Transactions have been duly and properly taken.
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5.2  Validity. Assuming that this Agreement and each other Transaction Document is
a valid and binding obligation of each of thé other parties héreto and thereto, this Agreement has
been, and the other Transaction Documents are or shall be at the time of execution, duly
executed and delivered and constitute lawful, valid, and legally binding obligations of such Party
and each of its System Corporations, enforceable in accordance with their respective terms,
except as such enforcement may be limited by bankruptcy, moratorium, insolvency or other
similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally and except that the
availability of equitable remedies is subject to the discretion of the court before which any
Proceeding therefor may be brought. '

53 No Conflict. Except as set forth in Section 5.3 of such Party’s Disclosure
Schedule and for compliance with the 2007 Decision and Order issued by the Federal Trade
Commission with respect to Advocate, the 2008 Decision and Order issued by the Federal Trade
Commission with respect to NorthShore, the HSR Act arid the HFSRB, neither the execution of
this Agreement or any Transaction Document nor the performance of the Transactions
contemplated hereby by such Party or any of its System Corporations:

(a) shall result in the creation of any Encumbrance, other than a Permitted
Encumbrance, upon such Party or any of its System Corporations or any of their respective
assets or properties or the termination or acceleration of any Indebtedness of such Party or its
System Corporations;

(b) is prohibited by, violates or conflicts with any prcvision of, gives rise to a right of
termination or acceleration under, nor constitutes a default under or a breach of (with or
without the giving of notice or consent) (i) the Organizational Documents of such Party or
any of its System Corporations; (ii) any Material Contract by which such Party, or any of
such Party’s System Corporations or any of their respective assets are bound, (iii) any
material Applicable Law or any Governmental Order applicable to such Party, its System
Corporations or any of iheir respective assets, or (iv) the terms of any Permits held by such
Party or such Party’s System Corporations necessary to own, lease or operate their properties
and assets and carry on their business and operations as now conducted; or

(c) requires such Paity or any of its System Corporations to obtain any authorization,
consent, exemption, dpproval or other action of or requires such Party or any of its System
Corporations to provide any notice to, or make any filing with, any Governmental Entity
under the provisions of any Applicable Law or Governmental Order to which such Party or
any of its System Corporations is subject;

except in the case of clauses (a), (b)(ii) and (b)(iv), as would not have a Material Adverse Effect
on such Party or such Party’s System Corporations.

5.4 Organization; Standing; Power; Capitalization; Governance.

(a) Each of such Party and such Party’s System Corporations and the jurisdiction in
which it was organized, incorporated or otherwise formed, as applicable, is set forth in
Section 5.4(a) of such Party’s Dicclosure Schedule. Each of such Party and such Party’s
System Corporations is duly organized, incorporated or otherwise formed, as applicable,
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validly existing and in good standing under the laws of its state of organization or
incorporation, as applicable. Such Party and each of such Party’s System Corporations has
all requisite power to own and operate its properties and to camry on its business as now
conducted. Such Party and each of such Party’s System Corporations is, where applicable,
duly qualified to do business and is, where applicable, in good standing in every jurisdiction
in which its ownership of property or the conduct or nature of its business as now conducted
requires it to qualify, except, in each case, where the failure to be so qualified or in good
standing would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on such Party
and its System Corporations.

(b) Such Party has made available to the other Party true, correct and complete copies
of the Organizational Documents as currently in effect, of each of such Party’s System
Corporations set forth on Schedule 5.4(b). Neither such Party nor any of such Party’s
System Corporations is in material default under or in material violation of any provision of
its Organizational Documents.

(c) Except as set forth in Section 5.4(c) of such Party’s Disclosure Schedule, (i) all of
the issued and outstanding equity, if any, of each of such Party’s System Corporations is
owned or otherwise held by another of such Party’s System Corporations and (ii) no other
Person has a right pursuant to Organizational Documents, contract or otherwise to vote
equity held by, designate a member of the board of directors or similar governing body of or
approve or block a corporate action to be taken by such Party or any of such Party’s Systern
Corporations. Except as set forth in Section 5.4{2) of such Party’s Disclosure Schedule,
neither such Party nor any of its System Corporations owns or otherwise holds any capital
stock or other securitiés of any other Person other than the equity interests of such Party’s
System Corporations and capital stock or other securities held for the primary purpose of
investment. There are no outstanding options, warrants or other similar rights to acquire
from such Party or any of such Party’s System Corjorations, or any other obligations of such
Party or any of such Party’s System Corporations to issue, any shares of capital stock or
other equity ownership interests or securities convertible into or exchangeable for shares of
capital stock or other equity ownership interests of such Party or any of such Party’s System
Corporations. There are no outstanding stock appreciation rights, phantom stock rights or
other similar rights with respect to such Party or any of such Party’s System Corporations.
There are no voting trusts, proxies, or other agreements or understandings with respect to the
voting of the capital stock or other equity ownerslip interests of such Party or such Party’s
System Corporations.

5.5 Non-Exclusion. Such Party, directly or through its System Corporations, has a
program in place to determine prior to employment or engagement (as applicable) and thereafter
on a regular basis whether any of its clinical staff is (a) excluded from participating in any
Federal Health Care Program; (b) to such Party’s Knowledge, subject to sanction or been
indicted or convicted of a crime, or pled nolo contendere or to sufficient facts, in connection with
any allegation of violation of any Federal Health Care Program requirement or any Applicable
Law related to the provision of health care; (c) debarred or suspended from any federal or state
procurement or non-procurement program by any Governmental Entity, or (d) designated a
“Specially Designated National” or a “Blocked Person” by the Office of Foreign Asset Control
of the U.S. Department of Treasury.

30
CHI:2860123.9

53




5.6 Financial Statements.

(a) NorthShore hereby represents and warrants that it has separately disclosed to
Advocate true, correct and complete copies of its audited consolidated financial statements as
of and for the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2013, and Advocate hereby represents
and warrants that it has separately disclosed to NorthShore true, correct and complete copies
of its audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31,
2012 and 2013 (collectively, the “Audited Financial Statements”). NorthShore hereby
represents and warrants that it has separately disclosed to Advocate true, correct and
complete copies of its unaudited financial statements as of and for the calendar quarter
ending June 30, 2014, and Advocate hereby represents and warrants that it has separately
disclosed to NorthShore true, comrect and complete copies of its unaudited financial
statements as of and for the calendar quarter ending June 30, 2014 (collectively, the
“Unaudited Financial Statements” and, together with the Audited Financial Statements, the
“Financial Statements”).

(b) Such Party’s Financial Statements: (i) have been prepared based upon the
information contained in books and records of such Party and such Party’s System
Corporations, {ii) present fairly in all material respects the financial position, assets and
liabilities and results of operation of such Party and its System Corporations (taken as a
whole) as of the date and for the periods referred to therein; and (iii) have been prepared in
accordance with GAAP on a basis consistent with past practice of such Party (subject, in the
casé®of the Unaudited Financial Statements, to any normal year-end adjus(tients, which are
not, in the aggregate, material).

(c) To such Party’s Knowledge, there are currently no, and there have not been any,
disgiités with such Party’s auditors over the reporting or presentation of information in thie
Finzscial Statements of such Party or a material item noted in a letter to nzanagement with
respect to such Financial Statements.

5.7 Accounting Records: Internal Controls. Each of such Party and such Party’s
System Corporations maintains and complies in all material respects with a system of internal
accounting controls sufficient to provide assurances that (a) transactions are executed with
management’s general or specific authorization; (b) transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of such Party’s financial statements and to maintain accountability for items
therein; (c) access to assets is permifted and liabilities incurred only in accordance with
management’s general or specific authorization; and (d) the reporting of such items is compared
with actual levels at regular intervals. To such Party’s Knowledge, the data processing
equipment, data transmission equipment, related peripheral equipment and software used by such
Party and its System Corporations (including any disaster recovery facility) to generate and
receive accounting and patient records are adequate to operate in all material respects the System
Corporations after the Closing as historically operated.

5.8 Interim Changes. Except as contemplated by this Agreement and except as
separately disclosed to the other Party, since the date of the balance sheet contained in such
Party’s Unaudited Financial Statements, there has not been, occurred or arisen, other than in the
ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice, any of the following:
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(a) any Material Adverse Effect in, relating to, or affecting the condition, assets,
personnel, properties, liabilities or business of such Party or such Party’s System
Corporations;

(b) any loan, advance, agréement, arrangement or transaction between such Party or
any of its System Corporations, on the one hand, and any employee thereof or any Person in
which such Party, its Affiliates, or an employee of either has any direct or indirect interest,
on the other hand,

(c) any grant, incurrence, discharge or satisfaction of any Encumbrance affecting or
relating to any material asset of such Party or such Party’s System Corporations;

(d) any material change by such Party or any of its System Corporations in
accounting methods, principles, or practices or any change in depreciation or amortization
policies or rates therefore adopted by it;

(e) any payment or commitment by such Party or any of its System Corporations to
pay any bonus, severance, pension, profit sharing, incentive, retention, termination or special
compensation of any kind to any of its officers, directors, consultants, agents, or employees
in excess of five percent (5%) per annum for any individual,

“(f) any purchase, sale, transfer, abandonment or other disposition of material assets
by such Party or any of its System Corporagions;

(g) any merger or consolidation of or by such Party or any of its System Corporations
with any other Person, or any acquisition by it of all or any part of the stock, membership or
partnership interests or the business or assets, of any other Person;

_ (h) any material change in the annual reports or actuarial reports of any of such
Party’s or any of such Party’s System Corporation’s Employee Benefit Plans; or

(i) any understanding with respect to any commitment (contingent or otherwise) to
do any of the foregoing.

5.9 Tax Exempt Matters.

Except as separately disclosed to the other Party:

(a) Other than such Party’s NFPs, none of such Party’s System Corporations are
exempt from federal income taxation under Section 501(a) of the Code or public charities or
private foundations as defined in Section 509(a) of the Code.

(b) Each of such Party’s NFPs is exempt from federal income taxation under Section
501(cX3) of the Code (or Section 501(c)2) or 501(cX25) of the Code) and from Taxes
imposed by the State of Illinois and its political subdivisions under the Applicable Laws of
Illinois. Each of such Party’s NFPs (i) has received a determination letter from the IRS that
it is an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code which is a public charity and
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not a private foundation or (ii) is included in a group exemption letter from the IRS
recognizing on a group basis exemption under Section 501(c) of the Code.

(c) None of such Party’s NFPs has had its federal, state or local tax-exempt status
revoked, or, to such Party’s Knowledge, proposed to be revoked by any Governmental
Entity. To such Party’s Knowledge, none of such Party’s NFPs is under investigation by any
Governmental Entity regarding its exemption from federal income taxation under Section
501(c)(3) of the Code or its exemption from Taxes imposed by the State of Illinois under the
Applicable Laws of Illinois. No NFP of such Party has taken or omitted to take any action
which could reasonably be expected to jeopardize its tax exempt status.

(d) Each partnership or other joint venture arrangement between any of such Party’s
NFPs, on the one hand, and any Person other than a tax-exempt organization described in
Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, on the other hand, complies in all material respects with
applicable guidelines and interpretive authorities of the IRS.

(e) The contract review, conflict of interest and similar policies of each of such
Party’s NFPs are established and followed so as to be reasonably expected to fully comply
with the applicable guidelines and interpretative authorities of the IRS or other applicable
Governmental Entity and the conflict of interest policies of each of such Party’s NFPs are
substantially in compliance with the form prescribed by the IRS.

(f) Each of such Party’s NEPs has satisfied the applicable requirements to be entitled
to a full exemption from property tax and sales tax in the State of Illinois.

(g) Such Party and each of such Party’s System Corporations have complied in all
material respects with all tax covenants and representations set forth in any agreement,
certificate or other document related to the outstanding tax-exempt debt of such Party or
such Party’s System Corporation. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, each
lease, management contract or other agreement for private use of bond-finance property to
which such Party or any of such Party’s System Corporations is party complies with such
bond documents and the applicable guidelines and IRS Revenue Procedure 97-13, 1997-1
C.B. 632.

5.10 Insurance. Each Party’s System Corporations maintain Insurance sufficient in all
material respects to insure them against risks, losses and liabilities that similarly-situated health
care companies customarily insure against. To such Party’s Knowledge, (a) all Insurance of such
Party and its System Corporations has been issued under legal, valid and enforceable policies or
binders, (b) all such policies or binders are in full force and effect, (c) neither such Party nor any
of such Party’s System Corporations is in default with respect to its payment obligations under
any such policies or binders and (d) no notice of cancellation or termination has been received
with respect to any such policy or binder.

5.11 Properties.

(a) Such Party has separately disclosed to the other Party an accurate, correct -and
complete list of all real party owned by such Party or one or more of such Party’s System
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Corporations (“Owned Real Property”), including a street address, total square feet and
current use of any and all buildings located thereon.

(b) Such Party or one of such Party’s System. Corporation is the sole legal and
equitable owner of all right, title, and interest in and has good, marketable, and insurable title
in fee simple absolute to, and, other than any leasehold interest therein, is in possession of, all
Owned Real Property including the buildings, structures, sidetracks, and improvements
sitiiated thereon and appurtenances thereto, in each case free and clear of all Encumbrances
except for Pérmitted Encumbrances,

(¢) To such Party’s Knowledge, the Owned Real Property is in compliance with all
applicable zoning, building, health, fire, water, use, and similar statutes, codes, ordinances,
laws, rules and regulations, except as would not prohibit such Party and such Party’s System
Corporation’s from using such property for its intended purpose. To such Party’s
Knowledge, the zoning of each parcél of Owned Real Property permits the existing
improvements. To siich Party’s Knowledge, the members of its System Corporation have all
material licenses, certificates of occupancy, permits, and authorizations required to utilize the
Owned Real Property. To such Party’s Knowledge, the members of its System Corporation
have all necessary easements and rights including easements for all utilities, services,
roadway, railway, and other means of ingress and egress.

(d) To. such Party’s Knowledge, all buildings, structures, improvements, fixtures,
- Eivilities, equipment, and -all components of all buildings, structures, and wther improvements
included within the Owned Real Property, including the roofs and structural elements thereof
and the heating, ventilation, air conditioning, plumbing, electrical, mechanical, sewer, waste
water, storm water, paving and parking equipment, systems and facilities included therein,
aie in good operating condition and repair, subject to normal wear and maintenance and other
immaterial issues and are usable in the régular and ordinary course of business, and o
material maintenance, repair, or replacement thereof has been deferred the cost of which
would exceed One Hundred Million Dollars ($100,000,000) for any single occurrence for
NorthShore and Two Hundred Fifty Million Dollars ($250,000,000) for any single
occurrence for Advocate.

(¢) Except as would not have a Material Adverse Effect on such Party or such Party’s
System Corporation, (i) such Party and such Party’s System Corporations have good and
valid title to all of the tangible personal property shown to be owned by them on the balance
sheet contained in such Party’s Unaudited Financial Statements (except for such personal
propeity sold or disposed of subsequent to the date thereof in the ordinary coursé of business
and not in violation of this Agreement), free and clear of all Encumbrances, except for
Permitted Encumbrances and (ii) such Party and such Party’s System Corporation. have title
to, or a leasehold interest in, all material assets necessary to conduct the business of such
Party and such Party’s System Corporations substantially as currently conducted.

5.12 Permits. Each hospital operated by such Party or any of its Systerh Corporations
holds a valid and unrestricted hospital license issued by the Illinois Department of Health. Such
Party and each of such Party’s System Corpotations holds all other Permits, the nonpossession of
or noncompliance with which could reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse
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Effect, and, to such Party’s Knowledge, all other Permits as are necessary or appropriate to
operate in all material respects its business as currently operated, each of such Permits is valid
and in full force and effect, such Party and each of such Party’s System Corporations is in
compliance in all material respects with each such Permit owned or possessed by such System
Corporation, and there is no pending or threatened Proceeding that is reasonably likely to result
in the termination, revocation, limitation, or impairment of any such Permit.

5.13 Material Contracts.

(a) Section 5.13(a) of such Party’s Disclosure Schedule lists all of those Material
Coritracts with an asterisk (*) next to them in thé definition of Material Contracts (such
Material Contracts so disclosed or required to be so disclosed, the “Disclosed Material
Contracts”) to which such Party or any of such Party’s System Corporations is a party or by
which it is bound as of the Agreement Date. Such Party has made available to the other
Party (or an advisor designated by the other Party) a complete copy of each Disclosed
Material Contract.

(b) Neither such Party nor any of such Party’s System Corporations is in breach,
violation or default of or under any term or provision of any Material Contract to which it is
party or by which it is bound that has had, or could reasonably be expected to result in a
Material Adverse Effect to such Party or such Party’s System Corporations. All Material
Contracts to which such Paity or any of such Party’s System Corporations is a party or by
which it is boum are legally valid and binding in accordance with their terms and izadull
force and effect against such Party and such Party’s System Corporations, as applicable, and,
to the Knowledge of such Party, the other parties thereto, except, in each case, as
enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and
other simiilar laws and equitable principles relating to or limiting creditor’s rights generally.
Such Party and such Party’s System Corporations, as applicable, have duly performed all
obligations under each Material Contract to the extent that such obligations to perform have
accrued and no breach or default, or alleged breach or default, or event which would (with
notice, the passage of time, or both) constitute a breach or default of any Material Contract
by such System Corporation, or, to the knowledge of such Party, any other party or obligor
with respect thereto, has occurred, except, in each case, for such breaches that would not
reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect to such Party or such Party’s
System Corporations.

5.14 Taxes.

(a) Such Party and each of such Party’s System Corporations have filed with the
appropriate taxing authorities all retums (including information retumns and other material
information) in respect of Taxes required to be filed through the Agreement Date. All such
returns were true, correct and complete in all material respects. All Taxes due prior to the
Agreement Date have been timely paid or reserved for on such Party’s financial statements.
To such Party’s Knowledge, its System Corporations do not have any material liability for
Taxes in excess of the amounts so paid, or to be so paid. There are no Encumbrances for
Taxes (other than for current Taxes not yet due and payable) on the assets of such Party or
any of such Party’s System Corporations.
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(b) Such Party and each of such Party’s System Corporations have timely and
properly withheld (i) all required amounts from payments to its employees, agents,
contractors, nonresidents, shareholders, lenders, and other Persons and (ii) all sales, use, ad
valorem, and value added Taxes. Such Party and each of such Party’s System Corporations
timely remitted all withheld Taxes to the proper Governmental Entity in accordance with all
Applicable Laws.

(c) Except as separately disclosed to the othér Party, no Tax return (including
information reporting returns) filed by such Party or any of such Party’s System Corporations
has been audited by the IRS or other applicable Governmental Entity in the past six (6) years.
No audits or other Proceedings are in progress, pending, or, to such Party’s Knowledge,
threatened with regard to any Taxes or Tax returns of such Party or any of such Party’s
System Corporations. Neither such Party nor any of such Party’s System Corporations has
received in the past six (6) years a notice from any Governimental Entity that such Party or
any of such Party’s System Corporation is required to pay Taxes or file returns in a
jurisdiction in which such Party or such Party’s System Corporation, as applicable, does not
file returns or pay Taxes.

(d) Neither such Party nor any of such Party’s System Corporations has a request for
a private letter ruling, a request for administrative relief, a request for technical advice, a
request for a change of any method of accounting, or any other request that is pending with
the IRS or any other Governmental Entity that relates to the Taxes or Tax returns of such
Party or such Party’s System Corporation, as applicable. 2!

(¢) Neither such Party nor any of such Party’s System Corporations has engaged in
any transaction that could affect the income Tax liability for any taxable year not closed by
the applicable statute of limitations (i) which is a “reportsble transaction” (i) which is a
“listed transaction” or (iii) a “significant purpose of whichwis the avoidance or evasion of
United States federal income tax” within the meanings of Code Sections 6662, 66624, 6011,
6012, 6111, or 6707A or Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder or pursuant to notices
or other guidance published by the IRS (irrespective of the effective dates).

5.15 |Litigation. Except as separately disclosed to the other Party, (a) there is no
Proceeding pending or, to such Party’s Knowledge, threatened -against any of such Party’s
System Corporations by or before any Governmental Entity that could reasonably be expected to,
if resolved adversely to such Party or any of its System Corporations, result in aggregate
Liabilities of such Party and such Party’s System Corporations equal to or greater than One
Hundred Million Dollars ($100,000,000) with respect to NorthShore or Two Hundred Fifty
Million Dollars ($250,000,000) with respect to Advocate, otherwise result in a Material Adverse
Effect with respect to such Party and its System Corporations or adversely affect such Party’s
ability to perform in any material respect its obligations under this Agreement and (b) neither
such Party nor any of its System Corporations is subject to any outstanding Governmental Order
with respect to which such Party or any of its System Corporations has any future obligations
and, a default or breach thereof, could reasonably be expected to result in aggregate Liabilities of
such Party and such Party’s System Corporations equal to or greater than One Hundred Million
Dollars ($100,000,000) with respect to NorthShore or Two Hundred Fifty Million Dollars
($250,000,000) with respect to Advocate, otherwise result in a Material Adverse Effect with
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respect to such Party and its System Corporations or adversely affect such Party’s ability to
perform in any material respect its obligations under this Agreément.

516 Compliance with Law. Except as separately disclosed to the other Party, such
Party and each of such Party’s System Corporations is and, has been during the past six (6)
years, in compliance with all Applicable Laws, including all applicable Healthcare Laws, and
Governmental Orders applicable to such Party and each such Party’s System Corporations, as
applicable, except for such instances of noncompliance which have not resulted, or could not
reasonably be expected to result, in aggregate Liabilities of such Party and such Party’s System
Corporations equal to or greater than One Hundred Million Dollars ($100,000,000) with respect
to NorthShore or Two Hundred Fifty Million Dollars ($250,000,000) with respect to Advocate or
a Material Adverse Effect with respect to such Party and its System Corporations. Except as set
forth in Section 5.16 of such Party’s Disclosure Schedule, to the Knowledge of such Party,
neither such Party nor any of such Party’s System Corporations has received any written notice
that such Party or its System Corporations are not in compliance with any Applicable Law,
except for such instances of noncompliance which have not resulted, or could not reasonably be
expected to result, in aggregate Liabilities of such Party and such Party’s System Corporations
eéqual to or greater than One Hundred Million Dollars ($100,000,000) with respect to NorthShore

or Two Hundred Fifty Million Dollars ($250,000,000) with respect to Advocate or a Material -

Adverse Effect with respect to such Party and its System Corporations.

517 Payors
B

(a) As necessary, such Party and each of its System Corporations (i) is qualified for
participation in the Medicare and Medicaid programs, (ii) has current and valid provider and
supplier agreements with the Medicare and Medicaid programs for the services and items
that it provides, (iii) is in compliance with the conditions of participation in such programs in
all material respects, and (iv) has received all apprawals or qualifications necessary for it to
participate in such programs. There is no pending or, to such Party’s Knowledge, threatened
Proceeding under any Federal Health Care Program involving such Party or any of its System
Corporations. Neither such Party nor any of its System Corporations has received any
written notice or notices of any dispute with any Governmental Entity, any Medicare
Administrative Contractor (“MAC”), Durable Medical Equipment Medicare Administrative
Contractor (“DME MAC”), Recovery Audit Contractor (“RAC”), Zone Program Integrity
Contractor (“ZPIC”), or any other Person regarding any payments for services or items
provided to beneficiaries of Federal Health Care Programs that involve amounts in excess of
Twenty-five Million Dollars ($25,000,000) in the aggregate, other than with respect to
adjustments thereto made in the ordinary course of business or in regard to disputes that are
being contested by such Party or one of its System Corporations in good faith and by
appropriate proceedings. To such Party’s Knowledge, neither such Party nor any of its
System Corporations is currently subject to any outstanding reimbursement or billing audit
by any Governmental Entity, MAC, DME MAC, RAC, or ZPIC other than routine
reimbursement or billing audits in the ordinary course.

(b) (i) All billing practices of such Party and each of its System Corporations with
respect to all third party payors, including Federal Health Care Programs and private
insurance companies, have been in compliance in all material respects with all Applicable
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Laws, including all Healthcare Laws, and conditions of participation, contracts, polices,
manuals, policies, rules, standards, procedures and requirements of such Federal Health Care
Programs and other third party payors, and (ii) neither such Party nor any of its System
Corporations has billed or received any payment or reimbursement in excess of amounts
allowed by Applicable Law, including Healthcare Laws or received an overpayment that has

- not been returned within sixty (60) days of such System Corporation becoming aware of such
excess or overpayment. Such Party and each of its System Corporations providing health
care services or items has used and uses its commercially reasonable efforts to collect all
copayments, deductibles, and coinsurance amounts as required to be paid by and collected
from beneficiaries of any Federal Health Care Program or other third party payor, except
where such Party or its applicable System Corporation’s policies in accordance with
Applicable Law permit the waiver of such collection, or where explicit permission to waive
such collection has been obtained in writing from the applicable Federal Health Care
Program or other third party payor.

(c) All (i) claims for reimbursement for services rendered or items sold or supplied
by such Party and each of its System Corporations have been prepared and filed with the
applicable Governmental Entity or other third party payor in accordance, in all material
respects, with all Applicable Laws, rules, regulations polices and procedures pertaining to the
applicable Federal Healthcare Program or other third party payor, and (ii) such claims have
been prepared in an accurate and complete manner and have been timely submitted to the
appropriate Federal Healthcare Program or other third party payor. Such Party and each of
its System Corporations has paid or made provision to re-pay through proper recordation of -~
any net liability any identified overpayments received from any Federal Healthcare Program
or other third party payor, and, neither such Party nor any of its System Corporations has
received reimbursement in excess of amounts provided or permitted by Applicable Law,
including Healthcare 1-aw, or third party payor contract that has not been returned to such ***
payor in accordance With Applicable Law or such Party’s or such System Corporation’s '™
contract with the third party payor. To such Party’s Knowledge, there are no material
irregularities nor are there any reasonable grounds to anticipate the commencement of any
investigation or inquiry or other Proceding, or the assertion of any claim or demand by any
Governmental Entity, Federal Healthcare Program or other third party payor related to any
activity, practice or policy of such Party or any of its System Corporations, any claim for
payment or reimbursement made by such Party or such Party or any of its System
Corporations, or any practice or reimbursement received by such Party or any of its System
Corporations.

5.18 Accreditation. With respect to such Party’s and each of its System Corporation’s
current accreditations by various organizations (the “Accreditations”): (a) each hospital
operated by such Party or one of its System Corporations is accredited by The Joint Commission
or DNV Healthcare, Inc.; (b) such Party’s and each of its System Corporation’s Accreditations
have been duly obtained, are held by the respective System Corporations, are current and valid,
and are in full force and effect; (c) to the Knowledge of such Party, no event has occurred or
other fact exists with respect to such Party’s or any of its System Corporation’s Accreditations
that allows, or after notice or lapse of time or both would allow, revocation, suspension,
restriction, limitation or termination of any of such Party’s or any of its System Corporation’s
Accreditations or would result in any other impairment of the rights of the holder of any such
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Party’s or any of its System Corporation’s Accreditations that, individually or in the aggregate,
could reasonably be likely to result in a Material Adverse Effect, and (d) no notice or threatened
notice from any accreditation organization with respect to the revocation, suspension, restriction,
limitation or termination of any of such Party’s or any of its System Corporation’s Accreditations
has been issued, received, or, to the Knowledge of such Party, proposed or threatened.

5.19 Employee Benefit Plans.

(a) Such Party has separately disclosed to the other Party a complete and accurate list
of all Employee Benefit Plans that such Party, any of such Party’s System Corporations or
any of their respective ERISA Affiliate maintains, sponsors, is a party to, participates in, has
a commitment to create or to which such Party, any of such Party’s System Corporations or
any of their respective ERISA Affiliates contributes or has or has had any obligation to
contribute.

(b) Except as set forth in Section 5.19(b) of such Party’s Disclosure Scheduie, none
of the Employee Benefit Plans of such Party or any of such Party’s System Corporations is a
“multiemployer plan,” as defined in Section 4001(a)(3) of ERISA, and none of such Party,
any of its System Corporations nor any of their respective ERISA Affiliates presently
contributes to, has contributed to, or has any Liability with respect to a muitiemployer plan.

(¢) Each of such Party’s and each of such Party’s System Corporation’s Employee
Benefit Plans that is intended to be qualified under Sectign 401(a) of the Code is the subject
of a favorable letter of determination or opinion Jetter from the IRS regarding the qualified
status of such plan and the tax-exempt status of any trust which forms a part of such plan
under Section 501(a) of the Code, and no event has occurred which will or could result in the
revocation of such determination letter or the tax qualified status of such plan. All required
reports (including Form 5500 Annual Reports) have begn timely filed and summary plan
descriptions, summaries of material modifications and summary annual reports have beer:
distributed to participants with respect to each of such Party’s and each of such Party’s
System Corporation’s applicable Employee Benefit Plan in accordance with Applicable Law.
All contributions or other payments (including all employer contributions and employee
salary reduction contributions) have been timely paid to each such Employee Benefit Plan.

(d) All of the Employee Benefit Plans of such Party and each of such Party’s System
Corporations comply with and have been administered in form and in operation in all
material respects in accordance with their terms and all Applicable Laws, including ERISA
and the Code, and to such Party’s Knowledge, no event has occurred which will or could
cause any of such Employee Benefit Plans to fail to comply with such requirements and no
notice has been issued by any Governmental Entity questioning or challenging such
compliance.

(¢) Theré have been no “prohibited transactions™ as defined in Section 4975 of the
Code or Section 406 of ERISA with respect to any Employee Benefit Plans of such Party or
any of such Party’s System Corporations. Neither such Party nor any of such Party’s System
Corporations has received any notice that any Employee Benefit Plan of such Party or any of
such Party’s System Corporations is currently under governmental investigation or audit,
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and, to such Party’s Knowledge, no such investigation or audit is threatened. To such Party’s
Knowledge, no fiduciary of any Employee Benefit Plans of such Party or any of such Party’s
System Corporations has any Liability for breach of fiduciary duty or any other failure to act
or comply in connection with the administration or investment of the assets of any such
Employee Benefit Plan.

(f) Except as set forth in Section 5.19(f) of such Party’s Disclosure Schedule, no
Employee Benefit Plans of such Party or any of such Party’s System Corporations is subject
to Title 1V of ERISA and neither such Party nor any of such Party’s System Corporations
contributes to a plan that is subject to Title IV of ERISA or has been obligated to contribute
to such a plan within the last six (6) years.

(g) Except as seperately disclosed to the other Party, none of such Party, any of such
Party’s System Corporation or any of their respective ERISA Affiliates has any liability or
contingent liability for providing, under ariy Employee Benefit Plans of such Party or any of
such Party’s System Corporations or otherwise, any post-retiremeént continuing medical or
life insurance benefits, other than statutory liability for providing group health plan
continuation coverage under Part 6 of Subtitle B of Title I of ERISA and Section 4980B of
the Code or applicable state law.

(h) Except as set forth in Section 5.19(h) of such Party’s Disclosure Schedule, there
are no actions, suits or' claims (other than routine claims for benefi its) pending or, to such
Party’s Knowledge, threatened involving any Employee Beriefit Plans of such Party or any of
such Party’s System Corporations or the assets thereof and no facts exist that could give rise
to any such actions, suits or claims (other than routine claims for benefits). Except as set
forth in Section 5.19(h) of such Party’s Disclosure Schedule, there have been no acts or, to
such Party’s Knowledge cinissions that would impair the ability of such Party or such Party’s
System Corporation (or arzy successor thereto) to unilaterally amend or terminate any of their
Employee Benefit Plans. -

520 Emplovees and Employee Relations. With respect to such Party and -each of
such Party’s System Corporations, (a) there is no pending or, to the Knowledge of such Party,
threatened in writing employee strike, work stoppage, material slowdown or other collective
bargaining dispute; (b) to such Party’s Knowledge, no demarid has been made for recognition by
a labor organization by or with respect to any employees of such Party or such Party’s System
Corporations and no union organizing activities by or with respect to any employees of such
Party or such Party’s System Corporations is taking place; (c) except as set forth in Section
5.20(c) of such Party’s Disclosure Schedule, none of the employees of such Party or such Party’s
System Corporations is represented by any labor union or organization; (d) except as set forth in
Section 5.20(d) of such Party’s Disclosure Schedule, neither such Party nor any of its System
Corporations is party to or currently negotiating any collective bargaining agreement and there
are not otheérwise any labor unions or labor organizatioris that such Party or any of such Party’s
System Corporations bargains with as of the Agreement Date; (¢) to such Party’s Knowledge,
such Party and each of its System Corporations are in compliance in all material respects with all
Applicable Law respecting employment and employment practices (“Employment Laws”),
including provisions thereof relating to wages, hours, equal opportunity, fair labor standards,
nondiscrimination, workers compensation, collective bargaining and the payment of social
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security and other Taxes; and'(f) except as separately disclosed to the other Party, there are no
pending or, to such Party’s Knowledge, threatened Proceedings alleging a breach by such Party
or any of such Party’s System Corporations of any applicable Employment Laws.

S.21  Intellectual Property; Information Technology; Privacy.

(a) Such Party and each of such Party’s System Corporations owns or has the right to
use all Intellectual Property used in the conduct of its business (the “System Intellectual
Property”™). All System Intellectual Property owned by such Party or any of such Party’s
System Corporations is exclusively owned by such Person free and clear of all
Encumbrances and, to such Party’s Knowledge, is valid and enforceable. Such Party and
such Party’s System Corporations have each taken commercially reasonable efforts to protect
their System Intellectual Property. Such Party and each of such Party’s System Corporations
is in material compliance with its obligations under the terms of any agreement pursuant to
which such Person has rights in any System Intellectual Property, and none of such Party,
any of such Party’s System Corporations nor, to such Party’s Knowledge, any third party is
in default under any such agreement. Other than in the ordinary course of business or as set
forth in Section 5.21(a) of such Party’s Disclosure Schedule and to the Knowledge of such
Party, neither such Party nor any of its System Corporations has granted to any third party
any exclusive license or right to the commercial use of any of the System Intellectual
Property. To such Party’s Knowledge, no third party has interfered with, infringed upon, .
misappropriated, or otherwise violated any System Intellectual Property owned by such Pa11y
or any of such Party s*Eystem Corporations.

o
T

(b) The business of such Party and each of such Party’s System Corporations as
previously and as presently conducted and prior and current products and services of such
Party and each of stch Party’s System Corporations have not and do not infringe or:~

otherwise violate any Irtellectual Property, privacy, or publicity rights of any third party. To .

such Party’s Knowledge, neither such Party nor any of such Party’s System Corporations has
been named in any pending suit, action or proceeding which involves a claim of infringement
or other violation of any Intellectual Property, privacy or publicity rights of any third party.

(c) The Transactions will not have an adverse effect on any material right, title or
interest of such Party or any of such Party’s System Corporations in and to any System
Intellectual Property, and all such System Intellectual Property shall be owned or available
for use by such Party or such Party’s System Corporation, as applicable, on identical or
substantially similar terms and conditions immediately following the Closing, without
payment of additional fees.

(d) The IT Assets of such Party and such Party’s System Corporations (the “System
IT Assets™) are adequate for the operation of the business of such Party and such Party’s
System Corporations as currently conducted. To such Party’s Knowledge, the System IT
Assets are free from viruses and malware, and have not malfunctioned or failed, in each case,
except as would not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect to such
Party or such Party’s System Corporations. Except as separately disclosed to the other Party,
such Party’s System IT Assets have not suffered a material security breach. Such Party and
such Party’s System Corporations have implemented backup, security and disaster recovery
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measures and technology consistent with reasonable industry practices and reasonably
necessary to protect Personal Information against accidental, unauthorized or unlawful
destruction, loss, alteration, disclosure and access, and against all other unlawful activities, in
compliance with applicable Information Privacy and Security Laws.

(e) The collection, monitoring, maintenance, creation, transmission, use, disclosure,
storage, disposal and security of Personal Information by such Party and such Party’s System
Corporations complies in all material respects with (i) all agreements that address the
provisions for business associate contracts required by 45 C.F.R. § 164.504(e) or 164.314(a),
as amended (each, a “Business Associate Agreement”), to which such Party or such Party’s
System Corporation, as applicable, is a party and (ii) applicable Information Privacy and
Security Laws. Such Party and each of such Party’s System Corporations has all necessary
authority, consents and authorizations to receive, use and disclose the Personal Information
in such Party’s or its System Corporation’s, as applicable, possession or under its control in
connection with the operation of its business, except as would not reasonably be expected to
be material to the business of such Party and such Party’s System Corporation, taken as a
whole. Such Party and each of such Party’s System Corporations has posted, in accordance
with applicable Information Privacy and Security Laws, privacy policies governing its use of
Personal Information on its websites.

(©) Such Party and each of such Party’s System Corporations has entered into a
Business Associate Agreement in each case in which such Party or its System Corporation,
as applicable, provides protected health inform&tion (as defined in 45 C.F.R. § 160.103)to a
third party acting as a business associate of such Party or its System Corporation, as
applicable, as required by, and in conformity with, applicable Information Privacy and
Security Laws and any Business Agreements, except as would not reasonably be expected to
be material to the business of such Party and-Such Party’s System Corporation, taken as a
whole. i

(g) Except as set forth in Section 5.21(g) of such Party’s Disclosure Schedule, neither
such. Party nor any of such Party’s System Corporations (i) is, to such Party’s Knowledge,
under investigation by any Governmental Entity for a violation of any Information Privacy
and Security Laws, (ii) has received any notices or audit requests from the United States
Department of Health and Human Services Office for Civil Rights, Department of Justice,
Federal Trade Commission, or the Attomey General of any state relating to any such
violations, or (iii) to such Party’s Knowledge, has otherwise been accused of violating any
Information Privacy or Security Law.

(h) Except as set forth in Section 5.21(h) of such Party’s Disclosure Schedule, there
has been no breach of Personal Information for which notification by such Party or any of
such Party’s System Corporations to individuals, customers and/or Governmental Entities is
required under any applicable Information Privacy and Security Laws or agreements to
which such Paity or any of such Paity’s System Corporation is a party and which were, or
would reasonably be expected to be, material to the business of such Party and such Party’s
System Corporation, taken as a whole.
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(i) Such Party and each of such Party’s System Corporations has in place for its
employees who have access to Personal Information held by such Party or such Party’s
System Corporations training (in accordance with applicable industry standards) with respect
to compliance with all applicable Information Privacy and Security Laws, except for such
instances of non-receipt as would not reasonably be expected to be material to the business of
such Party and such Party’s System Corporation, taken as a whole.

5.22 Environmental

(a) Such Party and each of such Party’s System Corporations are, and at all times
within the past five (5) years have been, in material compliance with all applicable
Environmental Laws.

(b) To the Knowledge of such Party, neither such Party nor any of such Party’s
System Corporations has, within the past five (5) years, received any written notice or report
from any Person or Governmental Entity that alleges that such Party or any of such Party’s
System Corporations is in material violation of any Environmental Law or has any material
Liability arising under applicable Environmental Laws relating to such Party, any of such
Party’s System Corporations or their facilities, except with respect to matters that have been
fully resolved without material future obligations related to any injunctive relief, or
contribution, cost recovery or penalty payment arising out of or relating to such matters.

(c) Neither such Party nor any of such Party’s System Corporations has treated,
stored, disposed of, arranged for or permitted the disposal of, transported, handled, released,
or exposed any Person to any Hazardous Material, or owned or operated any property or
facility contaminated by any Hazardous Material, so as to have given rise to material
liabilities, contingent or ctherwise, pursuant to Environmental Law.

(d) Neither such Party nor any of such Party’s System Corporations, (i) to such
Party’s Knowledge and except in accordance with all Applicable Laws, has manufactured,
sold, marketed, installed, distributed or repaired products containing asbestos or silica, or (ii)
has had any material liability arise, contingent or othierwise, with respect to the presence or
alleged presence of asbestos or asbestos-containing materials in any such product or at or
upon any property or facility.

(e) Except as set forth in Section 5.22(e) of such Party’s Disclosure Schedule, neither
such Party nor any of such Party’s System Corporations has provided a written indemnity
with respect to, or otherwise become subject to by operation of law, any liabilities of any
other Person with respect to Environmental Laws or Hazardous Materials.

(f) For purposes of this Section 5.22, material compliance or material liability shall
only include such matters as have resulted, or could reasonably be expected to result in,
aggregaté Liabilities of such Party and such Party’s System Corporations equal to or greater
than One Hundred Million Dollars ($100,000,000) with respect to NoithShore or Two
Hundred Fifty Million Dollars ($250,000,000) with respect to Advocate or a Material
Adverse Effect with respect to such Party and its System Corporations
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523 Charitable Foundation Matters. Such Party and each of such Party’s System
Corporations has complied in all material respects with all Applicable Laws regarding charitable
solicitations.

524 Brokers. Neither such Party nor any of such Party’s System Corporations has
any Liability to pay any brokerage commissions, finders’ fees or similar compensation in
connection with the Transactions based on any arrangement or agreement made by such Party or
by any of such Party’s System Corporations prior to the Closing Date.

ARTICLE 6
PRE-CLOSING COVENANTS
6.1 Interim Conduct of Business.

(a) During the Pre-Closing Period, except (i) as otherwise permitted or contemplated
by this Agreement, (ii) as set forth on Schedule 6.1(a) or (iii) with the prior written consent
of Advocate (with respect to NorthShore and the NorthShore Corporations) or NorthShore
(with respect to Advocate and the Advocate Corporations), each of Advocate and NorthShore
shall, and shall cause their respective System Corporations to,

€y operate their respective businesses in the ordinary course of business and
in the same rpanner, in all material respects, as previously conducted; and iy

(ii)  use reasonable efforts to preserve their respective business organizations
intact and maintain, in all material respects, their existing relations with patients,
physicians, suppliers, regulators, payors, lessees, creditors, lessors, employees and
business associates.

(b) During the Pre-Closing Period, except (i) as otherwise permitted or contemplated
by this Agreement, (ii) as set forth on Schedule 6.1(a) or (iii) with the prior written consent
of Advocate (with respect to NorthShore and the NorthShore Corporations) or NorthShore
(with respect to Advocate and the Advocate Corporations), neither Advocate nor NorthShore
shall, and each of Advocate and NorthShore shall cause their respective System Corporations
to not,

) make any changes, or permit any changes to be made, in their respective
Organizational Documents;

(i)  if applicable, take any action that would jeopardize its tax-exempt status;

(iii)  except as required by GAAP, make any material changes in its accounting
methods or practices;

(iv) fail to comply in all material respects with all Applicable Laws;

(v)  fail to keep, hold, and maintain all material certificates of need, certificates
of exemption, accreditations, surety bonds, licenses and other Permits necessary for the
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conduct and operation of its business, consistent with prior practices in the ordinary
course of business; and

(vi) enter into any agreement to do any of the foregoing.

6.2  Information and Notification; Pre-Closing Transition Activities. During the
Pre-Closing Period:

(a) each of NorthShore and Advocate shall promptly notify the other of any material
Proceedings credibly asserted or actually commenced against any of its System Corporations,
or any of their respective officers, directors, shareholders or members;

(b) by the fifteenth (15"‘) business day of each month, each of NorthShore and
Advocate shall provide the other with the Interim Financial Statements for such Party’s
System for the immediately preceding month; and

(c) each Party shall, and shall cause each of its System Corporations to, give to the
other Party and to its representatives, access to books, records, systems and personnel
pertaining to the businesses, properties and assets of such Party’s System, as may be
reasonably requested by the other Party in order to perform confirmatory due diligence, as
well as training and integration plarining related tasks; provided, that such access (i) shall be
during normal business hours on reasonable advance notice; (ii) shall be subject to and in
accordance with guidelines approved by the Parties’ antitrust counsel; and (iii) shall not be
required to the extent it would result in the disclosure of competitively sensitive information
“or unduly interfere with the operations of such Party’s System Corporations or the work of
such Party’s System Corporations’ personnel or the activities of such Party’s System
Corporations’ patients or guests. ;

6.3 Conditions; Third Party Authorizations.

(a) During the Pre-Closing Period, on and subject to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, .each of NorthShore and Advocate shall, and shall cause their respective System
Corporations to, use commercially reasonable efforts to cause the conditions set forth in .
Article 7 to be satisfied and to consummate the Transactions as promptly as practicable after
the Agreement Date. Further, during the Pre-Closing Period, each of NorthShore and
Advocate shall use, and shall cause each of its System Corporations to use, commercially
reasonable efforts to obtain all consents, approvals, exemptions and authorizations of third
parties, whether governmental or private, make all filings, and give all notices that may be
necessary or desirable to effect the Affiliation, including those consents, approvals,
exemptions;, and authorizations disclosed on the Disclosure Schedules corresponding to
Section $.3.

(b) In addition to, and not limitation of, the foregoing, the Parties shall work together
in good faith to (i) notify of and obtain approval for the Affiliation from (A) applicable
United States federal government regulators, including the Federal Trade Commission and
(B) applicable state government regulators and (ii) obtain a certificate of exemption from the
HFSRB and any approval by the Illinois Department of Health to consummate the Affiliation
(the notifications, approvals and certificates referenced in clauses (i) and (ii), the “Required
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Filings”). NorthShore and Advocate acknowledge that they have each retained independent
antitrust counsel. Subject to Applicable Laws, the Parties shall (A) cooperate in all respects
with each other in connection with any investigation or other inquiry by or before a
Governmental Entity relating to the Required Filings; (B) respond promptly to any request
for information from a Governmental Entity in relation to the Required Filings; (C) keep the
other Parties informed in all material respects and on a reasonably timely basis of any
material communication received by such Party from, or given by such Party to, any
Governmental Entity in connection with the Required Filings; and (D) provide the other
Parties with an opportunity to participate in any material meetings with any Governmental
Entity and provide the other Parties with an opportunity to review and provide comments on
any material draft submissions, filings or other communications to be provided to any
Govemnmental Entity (any information contained in such draft submissions, filing or other
communications that is competitively sensitive may be redacted from the version provided
to the receiving Party, subject to a non-redacted version being provided to the receiving
Party’s external counsel), and such providing Party shall give due consideration to the
comments received.

(c) In furtherance and not in limitation of the covenants of the Parties contained in
this Section 6.3, each of the Parties shall use its commercially reasonable best efforts to
resolve such objections, if any, as may be asserted by a Governmental Entity or other Person
with respect to the.Transaction; provided, however, that nothing in this Section 6.3 shall
require any Party or any of its Affiliates to agree to dispose or divest of any of such Party’s
(or its Affiliates) miaferial assets or businesses or to enter itito a hold separate arrangement. ***

6.4  Exclusivity. Duting the Pre-Closing Period, NorthShore shall not, nor shall it
cause its directors, officers, employees or agents to, directly or indirectly, solicit, encourage or
initiate, provide information or otherwise participate in discussions concerning, a material
acquisition, divestiture-or combination with, any healthcare system, hospital, or other health care
facility within the Chicago-Gary-Kenosha Metropolitan Statistical Area as defined by the US
Census Bureau, and Advocate shall not, nor shall it cause its directors, officers, employees or
agents to, directly or indirectly solicit, encourage cr initiate, provide information or otherwise
participate in discussions concerning a material acquisition, divestiture, or combination with any
healthcare system, hospital, or other health care facility that could reasonably be expected to
interfere with its ability to consummate the Transactions; provided, further, that notwithstanding
anything herein to the contrary, Advocate shall obtain the written approval of NorthShore prior
to entering into any letter of intent and/or definitive agreement with regards to the acquisition,
divestiture, or combination with any healthcare system or hospital. The Parties acknowledge and
agree that a breach or threatened breach of this Section 6.4 by a Party would cause the non-
breaching Party to suffer immediate and irreparable harm that could not be fully remedied with
the payment of monetary damages. As such, in addition to any other remedies available, a non-
breaching Paity shall be entitled to specific performance, preliminary and permanent injunctive
relief, and other available equitable remedies to restrain a breach or threatened breach of this
Section 6.4, either pending or following a trial on the merits, and without the need to post bond
or other security.

6.5  Non-Solicit; No Hire. Duririg the Pre-Closing Period and for the two (2) year
period following the termination of this Agreement pursuant to Article 10, neither Advocate nor
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NorthShore shall, and shall each of its Controlled Subsidiaries not to, directly or indirectly,
induce or attempt to induce any member of either Advocate or NorthShore’s executive team,
including the CEQ, COO, CFO, Medical Group President, Hospital President, or other key
executive level officer, to leave his or her employment with the other party or hire any such
person.

ARTICLE 7
CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO OBLIGATIONS OF PARTIES

7.1  Conditions of Fach Party’s Obligation. The obligation of each Party to

consummate the Transactions is subject to the satisfaction (or waiver by such Party) on or before
the Closing of the following conditions:

(a) a certificate of exemption from the HFSRB, as required by the Health Facilities
Planning Act, shall have been obtained with respect to the Affiliation (and such certificate of
exemption shall be in full force and effect as of the Closing),

(b) all applicable waiting periods (and any extensions thereof) under the HSR Act
shall have expired or otherwise been terminated without the Federal Trade Commission or
the Antitrust Division of the Department of Justice, as applicable, taking any action which
has not been terminated or resolved; and '

(c) no later than September 30, 2014, Advocate shall have delivered to NorthShore
"evidence; in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to NorthShore, demonstrating that
the Illinois Conference Council of the United Church of Christ has agreed to permit the
amendment of the articles of incorporation and bylaws of Advocate (and each other
Advocate Corporation) as contemplated by Section 3:1 and hag otherwise approved the
Affiliation. :

7.2  Conditions of NorthShore’s Obligation. The obligation of NorthShore to
consummate the Transactions is subject to the satisfaction (or waiver by NorthShore) on or
before the Closing of the following conditions:

(a) Advocate and AHHC shall each have performed in all material respects all of the
obligations and complied in all material with each of the covenants, agreements and
conditions required to be performed by or complied with by it on or before the Closing;

(b) the representations and warranties of Advocate set forth in Article 5 shall be true
and correct (disregarding, for purposes of this Section 7.2(b), any exception or qualification
in such representations and watranties relating to materiality or Material Adverse Effect) at
and as of the Closing Date as though then made (other than those representations and
warranties that address matters as of a particular date, in which case such representations and
warranties shall be true and correct as of such particular dates), except where the failure of
such representations and warranties to be so true and correct has not had and could not
reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Material Adverse Effect
with respect to Advocate and its System Corporations.
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(c) no Applicable Law shall exist, no Governmental Order (preliminary or otherwise)
shall be in effect, and no Proceeding shall be pending, in each case, wherein an unfavorable
judgment, decree, or order would prevent the carrying out of this Agreement by any Party or
the Affiliation or declare unlawful the Affiliation or result in a Material Adverse Effect with
respect to Advocate and its System Corporations;

(d) neither Advocate nor any of its System Corporations shall: (i) be in receivership
or, with respect to the Advocate’s material System Corporations only, dissolution; (ii) have
made any assignment for the benefit of creditors; (iii) have admitted in writing its inability to
pay its debts as they mature; (iv) have been adjudicated bankrupt; or (v) have filed a petition
in voluntary bankruptcy, a petition or answer seeking reorganization or an arrangement with
creditors under the federal bankruptcy law or any other similar law or statute of the United
States or any state, nor shall any such petition have been filed against Advocate or any of its
System Corporations;

(¢) no Material Adverse Effect with respect to Advocate and its System Corporations
shall have occurred; and

(f) Advocate shall have delivered, or caused to be delivered, on or before the Closing
Date, the Advocate Closing Documents. '

7.3  Conditions of the Obligations of Advocate and AHHC. The obligations of

Advocate and AHHC to consummate the Transactions is subject to the satisfaction (or waiver by
Advocate) on-or before the Closing of the following conditions:

(2) NorthShore shall have performed in all material respects all of the obligations and
complied in all material with each of the covenants, agresments and conditions required to be
performed by or complied with by it on or before the Closing;

(b) the repr.esentations and warranties of NorthShore set forth in Article S shall be

true and correct (disregarding, for purposes of this Section 7.3(b), any exception or
qualification in such representations and warraities relating to materiality or. Material

Adverse Effect) at -and as of the Closing Date as though then made (other than those .

representations and warranties that address matters as of a particular date, in which case such
representations and warranties shall be true and correct as -of such particular dates), except
where the failure of such representations and watranties to be so true and correct has not had
and could not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Material
Adverse Effect with respect to NorthShore and its System Corporations.

(c) no Applicable Law shall exist, no Governmental Order (preliminary or otherwise)
shall be in effect, and no Proceeding shall be pending, in each case, wherein an unfavorable
Jjudgment, decree, or order would prevent the carrying out of this Agreement by any Party or
the Affiliation or declare unlawful the Affiliation or result in a Material Adverse Effect with
respect to NorthShore and its System Corporations;

(d) neither NorthShore nor any of its System Corporations shall: (i) be in receivership
or, with respect to the NorthShore’s material System Corporations only, dissolution; (ii) have
made any assignment for the benefit of creditors; (iii) have admitted in writing its inability to
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pay its debts as they mature; (iv) have been adjudicated bankrupt; or (v) have filed a petition
in voluntary bankruptcy, a petition or answer seeking reorganization or an arrangemeit with
creditors under the federal bankruptcy law or any other similar law or statute of the Unitéd
States or any state, nor shall any such petition have been filed against NorthShore or any of
its System Corporations;

(e) no Material Adverse Effect with respect to NorthShore and its System
Corporations shall have occurred; and

(f) NorthShore shall have delivered, or caused to be delivered, on or before the
Closing Date, the NorthShore Closing Documents.

ARTICLE 8
CLOSING

81  Closing Date; Closing. Subject to the satisfaction or waiver by the appropriate
Party of all the conditions precedent set forth in Article 7 and upon the terms and subject to the
conditions set forth in this Agreement, the consummation (the “Closing™) of the Transactions
shall take place at the offices of Winston & Strawn LLP located at 35 West Wacker Drive,
Chicago, Illinois, 60601 at 11:00 am (Chicago time) on the fifth (5 ") business day following the
satisfaction or due waiver of all of the closing conditions set forth in Article 7 (other than those
to be satisfied at the Closing but subject to the satisfaction or due waiver of such conditions at
the Closing) or at such other place or on such other date and/or time as agreed upon by the
Parties; provided, however, in no event shall the Closing take place prior to January 1, 2015
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Parties. The date on which the Closing occurs is
referred-to herein as the “Closing Date.” The Closing shall be effective as of 12:01 am.
(Chicago time) on the Closing Date. .

82  Deliverables of Advocate. At or before the Closing, Advocate shall deliver to
NorthShore the following (each of the following referred herein as the “Advocate Closing
Documents”):

(a) the Amended Advocate Articles of Incorporation, the Amended AHHC Articles
of Incorporation and the Amended APP Articles of Incorporation, in each case, certified by
the Secretary of State of the Illinois;

(b) a cértificate of the Secretary of Advocate certifying as to (i) the Amended
Advocate Articles of Incorporation and the Amended Advocate Bylaws, (ii) the resolutions
of the Advocate Board of Directors approving the execution of this Agreement and the
consummation of the Transactions, and (iii) the incumbency and signatures of its officers;

(c) a certificate of the Secretary of AHHC certifying as to the Amended AHHC
Articles of Incorporation and the Amended AHHC Bylaws;

(d) a certificate of the Secretary of APP certifying as to the Amended APPArticles of
Incorporation and the Amended APP Bylaws;
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(e) evidence, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to NorthShore, of the
appointment of the Initial Advocate Directors, the Initial NorthShore Directors and the Co-
CEOs to the ANHP Board,

(f) evidence, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to NorthShore, of the
amendment of the organizational documents of the Advocate Corporations as required by

Section 3.1(g);

(g) resignations of those members of the Advocate Board who are not serving as
Initial Advocate Directors;

(h) evidence, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to NorthShore, of the
appointment of Mark Neaman as Co-Chief Executive Officer of ANHP and assumption of
NorthShore’s compensation and benefit obligations with respect to Mr. Neaman; and

(i) a certificate executed by Advocate’s President and Chief Executive Officer,
certifying as to the satisfaction by Advocate of the conditions to closing set forth in Sections
7.2 and 7.3 as applicable to Advocate.

83  Deliverables of NorthShore. At or before the Closing, NorthShore shall deliver

to Advocate the following (the “NorthShore Closing Documents”)'

(a) the Amended NorthShore Articles of Incoxporatl%\ and the Amended NPA
Articles of Incorporation, in each case, certified by the Secretary of State of the Illinois;

(b) a certificate of the Secretary of NorthShore certifying as to (i) the Amended
NorthShore Articles of Incorporation and the Amended NorthShore Bylaws, (ii) the
resolutions of the NorthShore Board approving the execution of this Agreement and the
consummation of the Transactions, and (iii) the incumbency and signatures of its officers;

(¢) a certificate of the Secretary of NPA certifying as to Amended NPA Articles of
Incorporation and the Amended NPA Bylaws; and

(d) a certificate executed by NorthShore’s President and Chief Executive Officer,
certifying as to the satisfaction by NorthShore of the conditions to closing set forth in
Sections 7.2 and 7.3 as applicable to NorthShore.

ARTICLE 9

ENFORCEMENT OF OBLIGATIONS

The Parties expressly agree that, after the Closing, the NorthShore Directors (acting
by a majority vote) have standing to enforce the covenants, obligations and other agreements
of Advocate under or pursuant to this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents and
shall have the right to select and retain legal counsel, consultants and advisors and to initiate
legal proceedings for a breach by Advocate of this Agreement or any other Transaction
Documents and to otherwise enforce the rights of NorthShore and the other NorthShore
Corporations under this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents. The Parties
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expressly agree that, after the Closing, the Advocate Directors (acting by a majority vote)
have standing to enforce the covenants, obligations and other agreements of NorthShore
under or pursuant to this Agreément and the other Transaction Documents and shall have the
right to select and retain legal counsel, consultants and advisors and to initiate legal
proceedings for a breach by NorthShore of this Agreement or any other Transaction
Document and to otherwise enforce the rights of Advocate and the other Advocate
Corporations under this Agreement and the other Transaction Documents.

ARTICLE 10
TERMINATION

10.1 Termination. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, this Agreement

may be terminated at any time before Closing only as follows:

(a) by mutual written consent of the Parties, acting through their respective boards of
directors;

{(b) by any Party if any Applicable Law that makes consummation of the Affiliation
illegal or otherwise prohibited is enacted, adopted, promulgated or enforced, or any final,
nonappealable Governmental Order is entered making illegal or otherwise enjoining the
consummation of the Affiliation substantially on the terms contemplated by this Agreement,
and, prior to that termination, the Parties shall have used commercially reasonable efforts to
resist, resolve or lift, as applicable, any such Applicable Law or Governmental Order;
provided, however, that the right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 10.1(b)
shall not be available to any Party whose breach of any provision of this Agreement causes or
results in the imposition of such Governmental Order. or the failure of such Governmental
Order to be resisted, resolved or lifted, as applicable; .

(c) by Advocate or NorthShore if NorthShore or Advocate, as the case may be, has
breached any of its representations, warranties, covenants or agreements contained in this
Agreement, which breach (i) would give rise to the fajlure of a condition set forth in Article
7, and (ii) is not curable, or if curable, is not cured within thirty (30) days of when written
notice of such breach is given by the terminating Party;

(d) by any Party if it is reasonably apparent that a condition set forth in Article VII
cannot be satisfied prior to the End Date (as defined below); provided, however, that the right
to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 10.1(d) shall not be available to any
Party whose failure to fulfill any obligation under this Agreement shall have been the cause
of'the failure of such condition to be satisfied on or prior to the End Date; or

(e) by Advocate or NorthShore if the Closing has not occurred on or before
December 31, 2015 (the “End Date”); provided that a Party shall not be entitled to terminate
this Agreement pursuant to this Section 10.1(e) if such Party’s breach of this Agreement has
prevented the consummation of the Transaction.

10.2 Effect of Termination.
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(a) A termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 10.1 shall:

) terminate all further obligations of the Parties hereunder (other than
Section 6.5, this Section 10.2 and Article 11, the provisions of which shall survive the
Termination in accordance with their terms); and

(ii) be the sole and exclusive remedy for breach of any representation,
warranty or covenant made by another Party under this Agreement and there shall
otherwise be no Liability on the part of any Party to the other (except for willful breaches
of this Agreement prior to the time of termination).

(b) In the event of terinination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 10.1, each Party
shall be responsible for its own fees and/or costs related to the negotiation, due diligence, and
execution of this Agreement and attempted consummation of the Transactions.

ARTICLE 11

GENERAL PROVISIONS

11.1 Amendment. Except as otherwise provided herein, any provision of this
Agreement may be modified or amended prior to the Closing only by mutual written consent of
the Parties and after the Closing only by the written consent of at least a majority of the
NorthShore Directors, on the ane hand, and at least a majority of the Advocate Directors, on the
other hand.

11.2 Assignment. Neither this Agreement nor any of the rights or obligations under
this Agreement may be assigned by NorthShore without the prior written consent of Advocate or
by Advocate or AHHC without the prior written consent of NorthShore. Subject to the
foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties and their
respective successors and permitted assigns, and no other Person shall have any right, benefit or
obligation under this Agreement.

: 11.3 Equitable Relief. The Parties acknowledge and agree that a breach or threatened

breach of this Agreement by a Party would cause the non-breaching Party to suffer immediate
and irreparable harm that could not be fully remedied with the payment of monetary damages.
As such, in addition to any other remedies available, a non-breaching Party shall be entitled to
specific performance, preliminary and permanent injunctive relief, and other available equitable
remedies to restrain a breach or threatenéd breach of this Agreement, ¢ither pending or following
atrial on the nierits, and without the néed to post bond or other security.

11.4 Attorneys’ Fees. If any Party brings an action for any relief or collection against
the other Party, declaratory or otherwise, arising out of this Agreement, the losing Party shall pay
to the prevailing Party a reasonable sum for attorneys® fees and costs actually incurred in
enforcing (but not otherwise bringing) such action, all of which shall be deemed to have accrued
upon the commencement of such action and shall be paid whether or not such action is
prosecuted to judgment. Any judgment or order entered in such action shall contain a specific
provision providing for the recovery of attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in enforcing such
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judgment. For the purpose of this Section 11.4, attorneys’ fees shall include fees incurred in
connection with discovery, post judgment motions, contempt proceedings, garnishment and levy.

11.5 Choice of Law; WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL.

(a) This Agreement, the legal relations among the Parties and any action, whether
contractual or non-contractual, instituted by any Party with respect to matters arising under or
growing out of or in connection with or in respect of this Agreement, including the
negotiation, execution, interpretation, coverage, scope, performance, breach, termination,
validity or enforceability of this Agreement, shall be governed by and construed and
interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois applicable to contracts made
and performed in such State and without regard to conflicts of law doctrines, except to the
extent that certain matters are preempted by federal law or are governed as a matter of
controlling law by the law of the jurisdiction of incorporation of the respective Parties. Each
Paity hereby irrevocably submits to and accepts for itself and its System Corporations and
properties, generally and unconditionally, the exclusive jurisdiction of and service of process
pursuant to the laws of the State of Illinois and the rules of its courts, waives any defense of
forum non conveniens and agrees to be bound by any judgment rendered thereby arising
under or out of, in connection with or in respect of this Agreement or any related document
or obligation.

(b) EACH OF THE PARTIES IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY AND ALL RIGHT
TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED
TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS.

- 11.6 Confidentiality. The Parties understand and agree that they remain bound by that
certain Confidentiality Agreement, dated April 14, 2014, by and between NorthShore and AHHC
(the “Confidentiality Agreement”) and that no Party may disclose the terms of this Agreement
or any of the Transactions, including by issuance of any press release or public announcement
relating to the subject matter of this Agreement, without the prior written consent of the other
Party; provided, however, that notwithstanding anything herein or in the Confidentiality
Agreement to the contrary, a Party may make any public disclosure it believes in good faith is
required by Applicable Law (including any disclosure required pursuant to any securities
regulation or contractual undertaking applicable to the outstanding debt securities of any Party or
binding on any Party), in which case the disclosing Party shall use its commercially reasonable
efforts to advise and consult with the other Party prior to making such disclosure.

11.7 Dispute Resolution. In the event of any controversy or dispute related to or
arising out of this Agreement or the Transactions, the Parties agree to meet and confer in good
faith to attempt to resolve the controversy or dispute without an adversary proceeding. If the
controversy or dispute is not resolved to the mutual satisfaction of the Parties within thirty (30)
business days of notice of the controversy or dispute, subject to Section 11.5, any Party: may
bring whatever action or proceeding it believes to be appropriate.

11.8 Entire Agreement. Subject to Section 11.6, this Agreement is the entire
understanding and agreement of the Parties to this Agreement regarding its subject matter, and
supersedes any other prior oral or written agreemerts, representations, understandings or
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discussions among the Parties to this Agreement with respect to such subject matter, including
that certain Letter Agreement, dated July 15, 2014, between Advocate and NorthShore. In the
event of any inconsistency or conflict between the terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement and the terms and conditions set forth in the attachments or exhibits to this
Agreement or in the Confidentiality Agreement, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall
govern.

11.9 Expenses. Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, each Party shall pay
its own respective expenses (including legal, due diligence, accounting, broker, consulting, out-
of-pocket and other expenses incident to this Agreement) in connection with this Agreement and
the Transactions; provided, that the Parties shall equally share the filing fee costs of all Required
Filings, and provided, further, that the Parties will share equally in the costs and expenses of all
outside parties jointly retained by the Parties, including consultants, accountants, experts, or
other such parties reasonably necessary to complete the Affiliation.

11.10 Notices. All communications hereunder shall be in writing and mailed by
certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or transmitted by hand delivery, national
overnight express, or facsimile transmission, addressed as follows:

if sent to NorthShore, shall be mailed, delivered or sent by facsimile transmission at:

NorthShore University HealthSystem
am 1301 Central Street o
Evanston, IL 60201
- Attn: President and Chief Executive Officer
(F) 847-859-8952

"

with respect to any such communications, with copies thereof (whith shall not constitute no‘tice)
to:

NorthShore University HealthSystem
1301 Central Street -
Evanston, IL 60201

Attn: Chief Operating Officer

(F) 847-859-8952

and to:

Winston & Strawn

35 W. Wacker Drive

Chicago, IL

Attention: David Dahlquist, Esq.
(F) 312-558-5700

if to Advocate or AHHC, shall be mailed, delivered or sent by facsimile transmission at:
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c/o Advocate Health Care

3075 Highland Parkway

Downers Grove, IL 60515

Attention: President and Chief Executive
Officer

(F) 630-929-9920

with respect to any such communications, with a copy thereof (which shall not constitute notice)
to:

Advocate Health Care

3075 Highland Parkway

Downers Grove, IL 60515

Attention: Senior Vice President and
General Counsel

(F) 630-929-9920

The address information in this Section 11.10 shall be used until such time as any Party notifies
the other of a change of address pursuant to this Section 11.10. Each notice or other
communication which shall be mailed, delivered or transmitted in the manner described above
shall be deemed sufficiently effective (a) if given by mail, three (3) days after such
communication is depesited in the mails with first class postage prepaid, addressed as aforesaid,
(b) if given by facsimile transmission, when transmitted to the applicable number so specified in
(or pursuant to) this Section 11.10, or (¢) if given by any other means, when actually delivered at
such address.

11.11 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable for
any reason, it shall be adjusted rather than voided, if possible, in order to achieve the intent of the
Parties to the greatest extent possible. All other provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full
force and effect. .

11.12 Waiver. No delay or failure to require performance of any provision of this
Agreement shall constitute a.waiver of the performance of such provision or any other instance.
Any waiver granted by a Person must be in writing, and shall apply solely to the specific instance
expressly stated. The failure of any Party to insist, in any one or more instances, on performance
of any of the terms, covenants, and conditions of this Agreement shall not be construed as a
waiver or relinquishment of any rights granted hereunder or of the future performance of any
such term, covenant, or condition, and the obligations of the Parties with respect thereto shall
continue infull force and effect.

11.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together shall be considered but one
in the same agreéement. This Agreement may be executed and delivered by facsimile or
electroni¢ transmission of a file in “pdf” or similar format and upon such delivery, each
signature shall be deemed to have the same effect as if the original signature had been delivered
to the other Parties.
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11.14 Drafting of Agreement. Each Party has been represented by counsel selected by
such Party in connection with the negotiation and drafting of this Agreement, and this
Agreement has been jointly drafted by such counsel, and no presumption or burden of proof shall
arise favoring or disfavoring any Party by virtue of the authorship of any of the provisions of this
Agreement.

11.15 Schedules and Other Documents. The Schedules and all Exhibits and
documents referred to herein or attached to this Agreement are integral parts of this Agreement
and are incorporated herein as if fully set forth herein, and all statements appearing therein shall
be deemed to be part of, or limitations on, this Agreement, and the representations and warranties
contained herein. If there is a conflict between this Agreement and a Schedule, the Schedule
shall control. Ifthere is a conflict between this Agreement and any Exhibit, this Agreement shall
control. '

11.16 Legal Representation; Related Matters. It is acknowledged by each of the
Parties that the NorthShore Corporations have retained Winston & Strawn LLP (“W&S”) to act
as their counsel in connection with the Transactions and that W&S has not acted as counsel for
any other Party in connection with the Transactions and that none of the other Parties has the
status of a client of W&S for conflict of interest or any other purposes as a result thereof.
Advocate hereby agrees, on behalf of itself and the other Advocate Corporations, that, in the
event that a dispute arises after the Closing between ANHP and/or one or more of the Advocate
Corporations, on the one hand, and one or more of the NorthShore Corporations, on the other
hand, W&S may represent such NorthShore Corporation(s) in such dispute even though the
interests of such NorthShore Corporation(s) may be directly adverse to ANHP and/or one or
more Advocate Corporations, and even though W&S may have representéed ANHP and/or such
Advocate Corporation(s) in a matter substantially related to such dispute, or may be handling
ongoing matters for ANHP and/or such Advocate Cotporation(s). Advocate further agrees, on
behalf of itself and the other Advocate Corporations, at, as to all communications among W&S
and one or more NorthShore Corporations that relate in any way to the Transactions, the
attorney-client privilege and the expectation of client corifidence belongs to the NorthShore
Corporations and may be controlled by the NorthShore Corporations and shall not pass to or be
claimed by ANHP or any Advocate Corporation.

[signatures on next page]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Affiliation Agreement as of the

Agreement Date.

P

NORTHSHORE UNIVERSITY
HEALTHSYSTEM

o Dot D e

Name: k R.Neaman (
Its Premdent and Chief Executive Officer

ADVOCATE HEALTH CARE NETWORK

By:

Name: James H. Skogsbergh

its: President and Chief Executive Officer
[y R KT
ADVOCATE HEALTH AND HOSPITALS

CORPORATION

By:

-Name: James H. Skogsbergh

ts: President and Chief Executive Officer

[Signature Page to Affiliation Agreement]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have exccuted this Affiliation Agreement as of the
Agreement Date.

NORTHSHORE UNIVERSITY
HEALTHSYSTEM

By:
Name: Mark R. Neaman
Its: President and Chief Executive Officer

ADVOCATE HEALTH CARE NETWORK

By: AW R S \"”1‘ )“"‘)L
Name: James H. Skogsbergh
. Its: President and Chief Executive Officer

ADVOCATE HEALTH AND HOSPITALS
CORPORATION

By: Joe & S‘lw-gsLo.,l

Name: James H. Skogsbergh Y
Its: - President and Chief Executive Officer

[Signature Page to Affiliation Agreement]
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Exhibit A-1
Amended Advocate Articles of Incorporation

See attached.
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FORM NFP 110.30R (rev. Dec. 2003)
ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT
RESTATED ARTICLES

OF INCORPORATION

General Not For Profit Corporation Act

Josse White, Secretary of State
Department of Business Servicas
Springfield, IL 62756

Telephone (217) 782-1832
www.cybsrdrivelllinois.com

Remit payment in the form of a

check or money order payable
to the Secretary of State.

File # Filing Fee: $100.00 Approved:
——————Suhmitin duplicate ————Type or Print cleary In black Ink—————Do not wiite above this line—————————

1. Corporate name (Note 1) ADVOCATE HEALTH CARE NETWORK

2. Manner of adoption of amendment:
The following amendment to the Articles of Incorporation was adopted on In the manner

indicated below (Check one only):

v

{Month, Day & Year)

By affirmative vote of a majority of the directors in office, at a meeting of the board of directors, In accordance
with Section 110.15. (Note 2)

By written cénsent. signed by all the diractors in office, in.compliance with Sections 110.15 and 108.45
(Note 3) .

By members at a meeting of members entitled to vote by the affirmative vote of the members having not less
than the minimum number of votes necessary to adopt such amendment, as provided by this Act, the articles
of incorporation or the bylaws, in accordance with Section 110.20. (Note 4)

By wrilten consent signed by members entitled to vote having not less than the minimum number of votes
necessary to adopt such amendment, as provided by this Act, the articles of incorporation, or the bylaws, in
compliance with Sections 107.10 and 110.20. (Note 5)

3(a). List all provisions of the restated articles of incorporation that amend the existing articles of incorporation. (Attach
additional pages If extra space is needed.)

See aftached document.

3(b). Text of the Restated Articles of Incorporation (Note 6)
(Attach additional pages if extra space is needed.)

See attached document
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4.  The undersigned corporation has caused these ariicles to be signed by a duly authorized officer, who affirms, under
penalties of perjury, that the facts stated herein are true. (Al signatures must be in BLACK INK.)

Dated | 2014 ADVOCATE HEALTH CARE NETWORK®

{Month & Day) (Yesr) (Exsct Nems of Corporation)

{Any Authonized Officer's Signeture)

(Print Name and Tillo)

5. Ifthere are no duly authorized officers, then the persons dasignated under Section 101.10(b)(2) must sign below and print

name and title.

The undersigned affirms, under penalties of perjury, that the facts stated herein are true.
Dated (Month, Day & Year)

Signature Print Name and Title

NOTES
Notg1: State the true and exact corporate name as it appears on the records of the Secretary of State, BEFORE any
amendment herein reported.

Note 2:  Directors may adopt amendments without member approval only when the corporation has no members, or no
members entitled to vote pursuant to §110.15

Note 3:  Director approval may be (1) by vote at a director's meeting (either annual or special) or (2) by consent, in writing,
. without a meeting. -

Note 4:  Allamendments not adopted under Sec. 110.15 require (1) that the board of directors adopt a resolution setting forth
the proposed amendment and (2) that the members approve the amendment.

Member approval may be (1) by vote at a members meeting (either annual or special) or (2) by consent, In wriling,
without a meeting. ’

To be adopted, the amenidment must receive the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least 2/3 of the
outstanding members entitled to vote on the amendment, (but if class voling applies, then also at least a 2/3 vote
within each class Is required).

The articles of incorporation may supersede the 2/3 vote requirement by specifying any smaller or larger vote
requirement not less than a majority of the outstanding votes of such members entitied to vote and not less than
a majority within each when class voting applies. (Sec. 110.20)

Note 6: 'When member approval Is by written consent, alt members must be given notice of the proposed amendment at
least & days before the consent is signed. If the amendment is adopted, members who have not signed the consent
must be promptly notified of the passage of the amendment. (Sec. 107.10 & 110.20)

Note 6:  The text of the restated articles of incorporation must set forth the following: ]
(i)  The date of incorporation, the name under which the corporation was incorporated, subsequent names, if any,
that the corporation adopted pursuant to amendment of its articles of incorporation, and the effective date of any

such amendments; _
(i) the address of the registered office and the name of the registered agent-on the date of filing the restated

articles of incorporation.

If the registered agent and/or registered office have changed, it will be necessary to accompany this document with
form NFP 105.10.
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ATTACHMENT TO ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT and
RESTATED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF

ADVOCATE HEALTH CARE NETWORK

Pursuant to Section 110.30 of the General Not For Profit Corporation Act of 1986 of the
State of Illinois, the Articles of Incorporation of Advocate Health Care Network, an Illinois not-
for-profit corporation (the “Corporation”), are hereby amended and restated to read in their
entirety as follows:

Article 1 ( amended and restated). Name.  Advocate Health Care Network was
incorporated on June 14, 1923, as the Lutheran Deaconess Home and Hospital of Chicago. The
Articles of Incorporation were amended to change the name to Lutheran General and Deaconess
Hospitals on June 30, 1958; to Lutheran Institute of Human Ecology on May 4, 1977, to
Lutheran Genetal Health Care Systern on March 31, 1986; to Lutheran General HealthSystem on
July 20, 1992; and to Advocate Health Care Network on January 1, 1997. Effective upon the
filing of these Articles of Amendment and Restated Articles of Incorporation, the name of the
Corporation is changed to ADVOCATE NORTHSHORE HEALTH PARTNERS.

e

Article 2 (restated). .Registered Agent and Registered Office. The Registered Agent
and Registered office are:

‘Gaii D. Hasbrouck
Advocate NorihShore Health Partners
3075 Highland Parkway, Suite 600
Downers Grove, Illinois 60515

Article 3 (amended and restated). Purpeses. The Corporation is organized éxclusively
for charitable, educational and scientific purposes, including:

(a) to promote, support, benefit, develop and perform the functions of Advocate
Health and Hospitals Corporation (“AHHC”), NorthShore University Health System
(“NorthShore™) and their respective successor(s) and other organizations described in
sections 509(a)1) or 509(a)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the
"Code") (such corporations, their successors and other organizations are collectively referred
to herein as the "Organizations™), by operating and providing leadership, control and
support in the development and provision of a comprehensive, clinically integrated, high
quality, cost-effective health delivery system focused on population health management for
the benefit of such Organizations and the patients they serve;
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(b) to operate and provide leadership, control and support of the provision of
services to the public through programs for the charitable, educational and scientific needs
of the community which accomplish the purposes of the Organizations;

(c) to support and benefit the Organizations through community development and
other activities for the general benefit of the community and through financial and other
resource control coordination consistent with the purposes of the Organizations; and

(d) to sponsor, develop, promote and encourage public participation in public
services and programs that are charitable, educational or scientific.

The Corporation shall not engage in the practice of medicine.

Article 4 (amended and restated). Restrictions on Corporate Activities.
Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Articles of Incorporation or the bylaws of the
Corporation (the “Bylaws"):

(a) No part of the net earnings of the Corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or
be distributable to, its members (except for a member that qualifies as an exempt
organization under Section 501(cX3) of the Code), directors, officers, or other private
persons, except that the Corporation shzil be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable
compensation for services rendéered, to make indemnity payments as specifically authorized
in the Bylaws, and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purpose set
forth above;

- (b)  No substantial part of the activities of the Corporation shall be the carrying
.on of propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation (except to the extent
permitted pursuant to an election made under Section 501(h) of the Code), and the
Corporation shall not participate in, or intervene in (including the publishing or distribution
-of statemeénts) any political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for
public office; and

(c) The Corporation shall not carry on any activities not permitted to be carried
on by a corporation exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code (or
the corresponding provision of a future United States Internal Revenue Law) or by a
corporation, the contributions to which are deductible under Section 170(c)(2) of the Code
(or the corresponding provision of a future United States Internal Revenue Law). .

Article 5 (amended and restated). Dissolution. Upon atiy dissolution or liquidation of the
Corporation during the period from the [Insert: Effective Date] to [Insert: the date that is six (6)

years following the actual Effective Date], the assets of the Corporation shall be distributed to
61379 V6 9/11/2014 839 AM
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one or more entities, each of which shall qualify as an exempt organization under section
501(c)(3) of the Code (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal
Revenue Law), as determined by the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of the members of
the Board of Directors and otherwise in accordance with and pursuant to the Bylaws.

Upon any dissolution or liquidation of the Corporation at any time subsequent to [Insert:
the date that is six (6) years following the actual Effective Date], the assets of the Corporation
shall be distributed to one or more entities, each of which shall qualify as an exempt organization
under section 501(c)(3) of the Code (or the corresponding provision of any future United States
Internal Revenue Law), as determined by the affirmative vote of at least a majority of the
members of the Board of Directors and otherwise in accordance with and pursuant to the Bylaws.

Any such assets not so distributed shall be disposed of by the court of general jurisdiction
in Cook County, Iilinois, exclusively to such organization or organizations qualifying under
section 501(c)(3) of the Code, in such manner as said court shall determine.

Article 6 (amended and restated). Effective Date. These Amended and Restated Articles
of Incorporation shall become effective as of their date of filing.

i
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Amended Advocate Bylaws
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AMENDED AND RESTATED
BYLAWS OF ADVOCATE NORTHSHORE HEALTH PARTNERS,
a-Not for Profit Corporation

as amended and restated | 101,201 ]

ARTICLE L
Name, Purposes and Powers

1.1 Name. The name of this not for profit corporation is Advocate NorthShore
Health Partners (the or this “Corporation™).

1.2 Purposes. The Corporation is organized exclusively for charitable, educational and
scientific purposes, including:

(a) to promote, support, benefit, develop and perform the functions
of Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation (“AHHC”), NorthShore
Uhiversity Health System (“NorthShore”) and their respective successor(s) and
other organizations described in sections 509(a)(1) or 509(a)}(2) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) (such corporations, their
successors and other organizations are collectively referred to herein as the
“Organizations”), by operating and providing leadership, control and support in
the development and provision of a comprehensive, clinically integrated, high
quality, cost-effective health delivery system focused on population health
management for the benefit of such Organizations and the patients they serve;

(b) to operate and provide leadership, control and support of the
provision of services to the public through programs for the charitable,
educational and scientific needs of the community which accomplish the purposes
of the Organizations;

(c) to support and benefit the Organizations through community
development and other activities for the general benefit of the community and
through financial and other resource control coordination consistent with the
purposes of the Organizations; and

(d) to sponsor, develop, promote and encourage public
participation in public services and programs that are charitable, educational or
scientific. '

The Corporation shall not engage in the practice of medicine.

1.3 Powers. The Corporation shall have such powers as are now or may hereafter
be granted by the General Not for Profit Corporation Act of the State of Illinois.
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1.4 Effective Date. Pursuant to that certain Affiliation Agreement, dated
September 11, 2014, (the “Agreement Date”) among the Corporation (then
known as Advocate Health Care Network), AHHC and NorthShore (the
“Affiliation Agreement”), the Corporation became the sole corporate member of
NorthShore as of [ 1, 201[_] (the “Effective Date”).
These bylaws are effective as of the Effective Date and, as more specifically set
forth herein, the duration of certain rights and obligations hereunder is measured
from the Effective Date. Capitalized terms used in these Bylaws and not otherwise
defined herein shall have the respective meanings ascribed in the Affiliation

Agreement.

ARTICLE IL
Membership

The Corporation shall have no members.

ARTICLE II1.
Board of Directors

3.1 Classes. The Corporation shall be managed by its Board of Directors (the
“Board of Directors”). The Board of Directors shall consist of two classes:
Directors ‘and Ex-Officio Directors. Each Ex-Officio Director shall have all of the
powers and duties of a Director, including voting power.

3.2 Eligibility for Election. Each nominee for appointment or re-appointment to
the Board of Directors shall have an interest in quality healthcare for all segments
of society and shall have a good reputation for dependability, integrity and
judgment in professional, business, civic or community activities.

3.3 Powers. The Board of Directors shall have full power to take such actions as it
may deem advisable in the governance, management and control of the business

and affairs of the Corporation.

3.4 Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall consist of not less than ten
(10) nor more than fifteen (15) Directors and Ex-Officio Directors as established
from time to time by the Board of Directors. As of the Effective Date, the Board of
Directors shall consist of a total of (12) Directors and Ex-Officio Directors.
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3.5 Designation of Directors and Ex-Officio Directors

As of the Effective Date, the Board of Directors consists of ten (10) Directors and
two (2) Ex-Officio Directors as follows:

(a) five (5) Directors who were designated by the Board of Directors of
NorthShore (the “Initial NorthShore Directors”);

(b) five (5) Directors who were designated by the Board of Directors of the
Corporation immediately prior to the Effective Date (the “Imitial
Advocate Directors™) (provided that the Initial Advocate Directors shall
include one (1) representative from each of the Evangelical Lutheran
Church in Ameiica and the United Church of Christ);

(c) one (1) Ex-Officio Director who is a Co-Chief Executive Officer of the
Corporation and the President and Chief Executive Officer of
NorthShore as ‘of the Effective Date (the “Imitial NoxthShore Co-
CEO”); and

(d) one (1) Ex-Officio Director who is a Co-Chief Executive Officer of the
Corporation as of the Effective Date and was the sole Chief Executive
Officer of the Corporation immediately prior to the Effective Date (the
“Initial Advecate Co-CEQO”).

During the period from the Effective Date to the date that is two (2) years following
the Effective Date, the Board of Directors shall be designated and appointed as
follows:

(a) five (5) Directors, including the successors to the Initial NorthShore
Directors (all successors, together with the Initial NorthShore Directors
and the Ex-Officio Director designated pursuant to clause (c) below, the
“NorthShore Directors”), shall be designated by the other NorthShore
Directors then serving on the Board of Directors;

(b) five (5) Directors, including the successors to the Initial Advocate
Directors (all successors, together with the Initial Advocate Directors
and the Ex-Officio Director designated pursuant to clause (d) below, the
“Advocate Directors”), shall be designated by the other Advocate
Directors then serving on the Board of Directors (provided that the
Advocate Directors shall include one representative from each of the
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Evangelical Lutheran Church in America and the United Church of
Christ);

(c) one (1) Ex-Officio Director who is the Initial NorthShore Co-CEO or his
successor as a Co-Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation; and

(d) one (1) Ex-Officio Director who is the Initial Advocate Co-CEO or his
successor as a Co-Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation.

During the period from the date that is two (2) years following the Effective Date to
the date that is six (6) years following the Effective Date, the Board of Directors
shall be designated and appointed as follows:

(a) six (6) Directors as designated by the NorthShore Directors then serving
on the Board of Directors (all of whom shall constitute “NorthShore
Directors” for purposes hereof});

(b) five (5) Directors as designated by the Advocate Directors then serving
on the Board of Directors; and

(c) one (1) Ex-Officio Director who is the Initial Advocate Co-CEO or his
successor as a Co-Chief Executive Officer or Chief Executive Officer, as

applicable.

Beginning on the date that is six (6) years following the Effective Date, (a)
Directors shall be appointed by the Board of Directors from among the individuals
nominated by members of the Board of Directors pursuant to the nominating
process implemented and approved by the Board of Directors from time to time and
(b) the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation shall serve on the Board of
Directors as an Ex-Officio Director. The appointment of Directors shall be
effective as of the annual meeting of the Board of Directors. Beginning on the date
that is six (6) years following the Effective Date, all Directors will be divided into
three (3) classes. The number of Directors in each class will be fixed as determined
by the Board of Directors, but shall be as nearly equal in number as is practicable in
order to stagger the terms of Directors and achieve continuity of governance of the
Corporation as follows: Class A Directors, whose initial terms shall expire at the
end of the Annual Meeting of the Board of Directors the first year after their
election; Class B Directors, whose initial terms shall expire at the end of the Annual
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Meeting of the Board of Directors the second year after their election; and the Class
C Directors whose initial terms shall expire at the end of the Annual Meeting of the
Board of Directors the third year after their election. Thereafter, all Directors
regardless of class designation shall be elected to serve three (3) year terms and
shall serve until their respective successors shall have been appointed. Any action
of the Board of Directors which increases or decreases the number of Directors
within the prescribed range shall include a description of the means for
implementing such change so that approximately one-third of the Directors are
eligible for re-appointment each year.> Decreases in the number of Directors shall
not shorten an incumbent Director's term.

3.6 Terms. A Director who has served for three (3) successive full three-year
terms shall not be eligible for re-appointment until one (1) year after the expiration
of such Director's third term. A Director must be seventy (70) years of age or
younger at the time such Director’s term (including any subsequent term)
commences in order to be eligible for appointment or re-appointment, provided,
however, the age restriction shall not apply to members of the NorthShore Board as
of the Agreement Date or any members of the Advocate Board as of the Agreement
Date. For the avoidance of doubt, the provisions of this Section 3.6 do not apply to
Ex-CfTicio Directors. ‘

3.7 Resignation. Any Director or Ex-Officio Director may resign at any time by
giving written notice to the Chairperson of the Board of Directors. Such
resignation shall take effect on the date of receipt or at any later time specified in it.

3.8 Removal. During the period from the Effective Date to the date that is six (6) years
following the Effective Date, any Director may be removed by those Directors who have
the right to designate such Director’s successor pursuant to Section 3.5. On and after the
date that is six (6) years following the Effective Date, any Director may be removed by
the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the Directors who were present and voted, at any
meeting of the Board of Directors following appropriate notice. In each case, a Director
may be removed for any reason and taking into account all relevant information,
including, but not limited to, the following criteria:

o failure of a Director to meet the attendance requirements provided for in
Section 4.8 of the Bylaws;

¢ inappropriate disclosure of confidential information;

e conviction of a felony;
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e conduct, either within or outside the Corporation, which is or reasonably
appears to be potentially harmful or potentially exposes the Corporation to
significant risk or which violates established principles associated with a
Director position;

¢ fraudulent, disruptive or dishonest conduct, gross abuse of the Director
position to the detriment of the Corporation, or any other circumstances in
which action must be taken immediately in the best interest of the
Corporation.

3.9 Vacancies. During the period from the Effective Date to the date that is six (6)
years following the Effective Date, any vacancy created by the resignation or
removal of a NorthShore Director shall be filled by a majority vote of the remaining
NorthShore Directors and any vacancy created by the resignation or removal of an
Advocate Director shall be filled by a majority vote of the Advocate Directors. On
and after the date that is six (6) years following the Effective Date, any vacancy
occurring in the Board of Directors and any directorship to be filled by reason of an
increase in the number of Directors may be filled by the Board of Directors. A
Director elected to fill a vacancy shall serve during the unexpired term of such

fane

Director's predecessor in office,

3.10 Compensation. Directors, Ex-Officio Directors and members of committees,
if any, (other than salaried employees of the Corporation) *shall receive no
compensation for their services. The Corporation, subject to the provisions of
Article VII, may enter into contracts or transact business with one or more of its
Directors or Ex-Officio Directors, or with any firm of which one or more of its
Directors or Ex-Officio Directors is a member, or with any corporation in which
any one or more of its Directors or Ex-Officio Directors is a stockholder, director or
officer, and no such Director or Ex-Officio Director shall be liable to the
Corporation or to any person for any loss incurred by the Corporation by reason of
any such contract or transaction, nor shall any such Director or Ex-Officio Director
be accountable for any gains or profits realized thereon, always provided that such
contract or transaction shall, at the time it was entered into, have been a reasonable
one and upon terms that at that time were fair and in the best interests of the
Corporation. ‘

3.11 Giving. Personal giving is a critical element in the success of the
Corporation. The Board must provide visible leadership in giving.

61156 v9 9/11/2014 9:13 AM

94




ARTICLE V.
Meetings of the Board

4.1 Regular Meetings. An annual meeting and all regular meetings of the

. Board of Directors shall be held on such date and at such hour and place as shall be
fixed by the Chairperson of the Board or the Board of Directors. Written notice
stating the place, day and hour of each such meeting shall be delivered in person or
by mail' to each Director and Ex-Officio Director not less than five (5) days before
the date of the meeting.

4.2 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called
by the Chairperson, either of the Co-Chief Executive Officers or the Chief
Executive Officer, as applicable, or the Secretary. Written notice of the time, place
and purpose of any special meeting of the Board of Directors shall be given to each
Director and each Ex-Officio Director at least five (5) days prior to such meeting.

4.3 Waiver of Notice. Any Director or Ex-Officio Director may waive notice of
any meeting of the Board of Directors. The attendance of a Director or Ex-Officio
Director at any such meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting,
except where a Director or Ex-Officio Director attends for the express purpose of
objecting to the transaction of any business on the ground that the meeting is not
lawfully called or convened.

4.4 Quorum. During the period from the Effective Date to the date that is six (6)
yyears following the Effective Date, a majority of the NorthShore Directors and a
majority of the Advocate Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business at any meeting of the Board of Directors. On and after the date that is six
(6) years from the Effectivé Date, a majority of the members of the Board of
Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of
the Board of Directors. In each case, if less than a quorum is present, a majority of
the members of the Board of Directors present and entitled to vote may adjourn the
meeting from time to time without further notice.

4.5 Manner of Acting. Each Director and Ex-Officio Director is entitled to one
(1) vote on any matter before the Board of Directors. Voting by proxy is not
permitted. The act of a majority of the Directors and Ex-Officio Directors present

1 Throughout these Bylaws the tenm "mail” shall inchide US Postal Services, electronic mail or delivery services.
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and entitled to vote at any meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of
the Board of Directors, except where otherwise provided by law or by these
Bylaws. Members of the Board of Directors, subject to the Chairperson’s approval,
may participate in and act at any meeting of the Board of Directors through the use
of a conference telephone or other communications equipment by means of which
all persons participating in the meeting can communicate with each other, and
participation in such meeting shall constitute attendance and presence in person at
the meeting of the members so participating. No action of the Board of Directors
shall be valid unless taken at a meeting at which a quorum is present, except that
any action which may be taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors may be taken
without a meeting if a consent in writing (setting forth the action so taken) shall be
signed by all Directors and Ex-Officio Directors. The Board may adopt its own
rules of procedure which shall not be inconsistent with these Bylaws and in the
absence of such rules of procedure, Robert's Rules of Order shall apply.

4.6 Actions Requiring Supermajority Vote.

Notwithstanding anything else to the contrary contained herein, during thé period
fromi.the Effective Date to the date thiat is six (6) years following the Effective, Date,

(a)  the following matters or actions shall require the approval by at least
three-fourths (3/4) of the members of the Board of Directors;
provided, however, if at any time there are more than twelve (12)
members of the Board of Directors, then each of the folfowing
matters and actions also shall require the approval of at least a
majority of the NorthShore Directors, on the one hand, and at least a
majority of the Advocate Directors, on the other hand:

) amendment or restatement of the Corporation’s Articles of

Incorporation or these bylaws;

(ii)  the granting of a blocking; approval or other right to any person
with respect to any direct or indirect subsidiary of the Corporation;

(iii)  except as contemplated in the Amended NorthShore Articles of
Incorporation, the Amended NorthShore Bylaws, the Amended
AHHC Articles, the Amended AHHC Bylaws or in this
Agreement, the delegation to or reservation for the board of
directors, committee of the board of directors or similar governing
body of any direct or indirect subsidiary of the Corporation of any

power or authority;
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4

amendment or restatement of the Amended APP Articles of
Incorporation or the Amended APP Bylaws; and

any dissolution or liquidation of the Corporation or any direct or
indirect subsidiary of the Corporation and the distribution of the
assets thereof upon such dissolution or liquidation;

(b) any change in the number of members of the Board of Directors shall
require the approval of at least a majority of the NorthShore Directors, on
the one hand, and at least a majority of the Advocate Directors, on the
other hand,

©

the following matters or actions shall require the approval by at least
three-fourths (3/4) of the members of the Board of Directors;
provided, however, if at any time there are more than twelve (12)
members of the Board of Directors, then each of the following
matters and actions also shall require the approval of at least a

majority of the NorthShore Directors:

®

(ii)
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amendment or restatement of any of the following:
(1)  the Amended NorthShore Articles; ¢

(2)  the Amended NorthShore Bylaws;

(3)  the Amended NPA Atrticles of Incorporation;
(4)  the Amended NPA Bylaws; and

(5)  the Organizational Documents of any of the other
NorthShore Corporations;

any amendment, restatement or termination of, or other material
alteration in the relationship with the counterparty to, any of the
following agreements;:

(1)  that certain Standard License and Support Agreement,
dated August 8, 2001, as amended or modified from time to
time, between NorthShore and Epic System Corporation;

(2)  that certain Master Affiliation Agreement, dated July 16,
2008, as amended or modified from time to time, among
NorthShore, the University of Chicago and the University
of Chicago Medical Center,

(3)  that certain Sub-Agreement, dated April 14, 2009, as
amended or modified from time to time, among

97



(iif)
@iv)

™

vi)

NorthShore, the University of Chicago.and the University
of Chicago Medical Center; and

(4)  that certain Member Provider Group Agreement, dated July
27, 2012, as amended or modified from time to time,
between NorthShore and Mayo Foundation for Medical
Education and Research,;

any NorthShore Corporation being required to participate in any
faith-based initiative of any Advocate Corporation or otherwise;

the discontinuance of the “NorthShore” name with respect to the
businesses, facilities and services of the Corporation;

any acquisition by a NorthShore Corporation that requires the
granting of a seat on the board of directors (or similar governing
body) of a NorthShore Corporation to a person(s) designated by
the target of such acquisition; and

any material reduction or other modification to any capital
expenditure approved by the boaid of directors of NorthShore prior
to the date-of the Affiliation Agreement, including reasonable
reductions or madifications intended to support the goal of creating
efficiencies and synergies; and

(d)  the following matters or actions shall require the approval by at least
three-fourths (3/4) of the members of the Board of Directors; provided,
however, if at any time there are more than twelve (12) members of the

Board of Directors, then each of the following matters and actions also
shall require the approval of at least a majority of the Advocate Directors:

®

(i)
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amendment or restatement of any of the following:
(1)  the Amended AHHC Articles;
(2)  the Amended AHHC Bylaws; and

(3)  the Organizational Documents of any of the other Advocate
Corporations;

any amendment, restatement or termination of, or other material
alteration in the relationship with the counterparty to, any of the
following agreements:

(1)  that certain Master Educational Affiliation Agreement,
dated July 1, 2012, between the Advocate Obligated Group
and the Board of Trustees for the University of Illinois for
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(iii)
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(vi)

Undergraduate Medical Education and Graduate Medical
Education;

(2)  that certain Master Affiliation Agreement, dated May 8,
2011, between the Advocate Obligated Group and Rosalind
Franklin University of Medicine and Science, through its
Chicago Medical School; and

(3)  that certain Master Affiliation Agreement, dated June 20,
2012, between the Advocate Obligated Group and
Midwestern University;

any material change to or termination of the Advocate
Corporations’ relationship with United Church of Christ or the
Evangelical Lutheran Church in America;

the discontinuance of the “Advocate” name with respect to the
businesses, facilities and services of the Corporation;

any material reduction or other modification to any capital
expenditure approved by the Advocate Board of Directors prior to
the date of the Affiliation Agreement, ‘including reasonable
reductions or modifications intended to suppert the goal of creating
efficiencies and synergies; and

any acquisition by an Advocate Corporation that requires the
granting of a seat on the board of directors_(or similar governing
body) of an Advocate Corporation to a person(s) designated by the
target of such acquisition.

4.7  Action Requiring Approval of NorthShore Directors. During the period from
the Effective Date to the date that is two (2) years from the Effective Date, the
discontinuance of the “NorthShore™ name with respect to the businesses, facilities and
services of any of the NorthShore Corporations (as defined in the Affiliation Agreement)
shall require the approval of at least a majority of the NorthShore Directors.

4.8 Attendance of Meetings. Inasmuch as attendance at meetings of the Board of
Directors is important to the discharge of a Director's responsibilities, if a Director
(in the absence of extenuating circumstances appropriately indicated to the
Secretary of the Corporation) is absent from three (3) consecutive Board meetings,
then such Director shall be presumed to have resigned as a Director.

ARTICLE V.
Officers

5.1 Officers. The officers of the Corporation shall consist of: (a) a Chairperson;
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(b) a Vice Chairperson; (c) for the period from the Effective Date to the date that is
two.(2) years from the Effective Date, two (2) Co-Chief Executive Officers and, on

and after the date that is two (2) years from the Closing Date, one (1) Chief

Executive Officer; (d) a Secretary; (€) a Treasurer, and (f) such other assistant
secretaries and assistant treasurers or such officers as deemed necessary. Any two
or more offices (other than Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson) may be held by the
same person. The Chairperson and the Vice-Chairperson shall be Directors or Ex-
Officio Directors. No other officer need be a Director or Ex-Officio Director. The
duties of certain of these officers are prescribed below.

5.2 Election/Selection and Term of Office. Except as otherwise set forth in Sections
5.7, 5.8 and 5.9, the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Co-Chief Executive Officers and
Chief Executive Officer shall be elected by the Board of Directors. Ail officers, other
than the Chairperson and Vice Chairperson, shall be appointed by the Chief Executive
Officer (or jointly appointed by the Co-Chief Executive Officers). Except as otherwise
set forth in Sections 5.7, 5.8 and 5.9, each officer shall hold office until his or her
successor shall have been duly elected and qualified or until his or her death, resignation

or removal as provided herein.

The appointment or election of an officef shall not of itself create contract rights of
the offficer.

5.3 Resignation. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to
the Chairperson, to the Chief Execirtive Officer or to the Secretary. Such
resignation shall take effect on the date of receipt or at any later time specified in
it.

5.4 Removal. Except as set forth in Sections 5.7, 5.8 and 5.9 and as set forth in
this Section 5.4, any appointed officer may be removed at any time, with or
without cause, by the person or body entitled to appoint such officer pursuant to
Section 5.1, but such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if
any, of the person so removed. During the period from Effective Date to the date
that is six (6) years from the Effective Date, either of the Co-Chief Executive
Officer(s) or the Chief Executive Officer may be removed from their office at any
time, with or without cause, by affirmative votes of at least a three-fourths (3/4) of
the membérs of the Board of Directors. Theréafter, the Chief Executive Officer
may be removed from office at any time, with or without cause, by affirmative
vote of at least a majority of the Board of Directors.
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5.5 Vacancies. Vacancies may be filled for the unexpired portion of the term or
new offices created and filled at any meeting of the Board of Directors.

5.6 Compensation. The officers of the Corporation who are Directors and not
actively engaged in the operations of any facilities owned or operated by the
Corporation shall serve without compensation for their services as such officers.
The compensation of all other officers shall be fixed from time to time by the
Board of Directors.

5.7 Chairperson of the Board.

(a) General Responsibilities. The Chairperson shall be the chief policy officer of
the Corporation and shall preside at all meetings of the Roard of Directors. The
Chairperson (or a designee) shall be an ex-officio member of all Committees of the
Board of Directors that may exist from time to time. The Chairperson may sign,
with the Secretary or other proper officer of the Corporation authorized by the
Board of Directors, any deeds, bonds, contracts or other instruments which the
Board of Directors has authoiized to be executed. The Chairperson shall also
perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from
time to time.

(b) Selection. During the period from the Effective Date to the date that is three
(3) years from the Effective D;fe, the Chairperson shall be selected by the majority
vote of the Advocate Directors. During the period from the date that is three (3)
years from the Effective Date to the date that is six (6) years from the Effective
Date, the Chairperson shall be selected by the majority vote of the NorthShore
Directors. Thereafter, the Chairperson shall be selected by the Board of Directors
at the annual meeting of the Corporation to serve a two (2) year term. Should the
Director term of the Chairperson end while he or she is serving in office, the
Director term will be extended to allow completion of the officer term and
subsequent terms will be adjusted to maintain class integrity.

5.8 Vice-Chairperson.

(a) General Responsibilities. In the absence of the Chairperson, the Vice-
Chairperson shall perform the duties of the Chairperson, and when so acting, have
all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions on the Chairperson. The
Vice-Chairperson shall perform such other duties as may be assigned from time to
time by the Chairperson -or by the Board of Directors.
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(b) Selection. During the period from the Effective Date to the date that is three
(3) years from the Effective Date, the Vice-Chairperson shall be selected by the
majority vote of the NorthShore Directors. During the period from the date that is
three (3) years from the Effective Date to the date that is six (6) years from the
Effective Date, the Vice-Chairperson shall be selected by the majority vote of the
Advocate Directors. Thereafter, the Vice-Chairperson shall be selected by the
Board of Directors at the annual meeting of the Corporation to serve a two (2) year
term. Should the Director term of the Vice-Chairperson end while he or she is
serving in office, the Director term will be extended to allow completion of the
officer term and subsequent terms will be adjusted to maintain class integrity.

5.9 Chief Executive Officer and Co-Chief Executive Officer(s).

(a) General Responsibilities/Deadlock. The Co-Chief Executive Officers and the Chief
Executive Officer, as applicable, shall be responsible for the overall management of the -
Corporation subject to the direction and control.of the Board of Directors. The Co-Chief

Executive Officers and Chief Executive Officers, as applicable, shall:

(i) be in charge of the business and affairs of the Corporation;

(ii) see that the resolutions and directives of the Board of Directors are carried
into effect except in those instances in which that responsibility is assigned to

some other person by the Board of Directors; and

(iii) in general, discharge all duties incident to the office of Chief Executive
Officer and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors.

The Co-Chief Executive Officers and the Chief Executive Officer, as applicable,
may also sign, with the Secretary or other officer of the Corporation authorized by
the Board of Directors any deeds, bonds, contracts or other instruments which the
Board of Directors has authorized to be executed. The Co-Chief Executive Officers
and Chief Executive Officer, as applicable, shall also be authorized to act on behalf
of the Corporation in exercising its rights as the member or shareholder of any
corporation which is controlled by the Corporation, subject to such orders as may
be issued by the Board of Directors.

The Co-Chief Executive Officers shall create mutually acceptable job descriptions

which allocate the responsibilities of the office among themselves. In the event that
the Co-Chief Executive Officers cannot agree on a proposed action for which they
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have agreed to share joint responsibility and either of the Co-Chief Executive
Officers believes that the action requires a definitive affirmative or negative vote,
then the matter shall be referred to the Board of Directors for further discussion and
resolution. If after a reasonable period of time, the Board of Directors is unable to
reach any result, then it shall discontinue its efforts and the deadlock shall stand.
During such time as the Co-Chief Executive Officers are serving and whether or not
expressly stated, any reference in these Bylaws to the Chief Executive Officer shall
mean both Co-Chief Executive Officers unless otherwise expressly agreed by both
Co-Chief Executive Officers.

. (b) Selection/Transition to Sole Chief Executive Officer. As of the Effective
Date, the Co-Chief Executive Officers are Mr. James Skogsbergh and Mr. Mark
Neaman. During the period from the Effective Date to the date that is two (2) years
following the Closing Date, each of Mr. Skogsbergh’s successors as Co-Chief
Executive Officer, as necessary, shall be selected by a majority of the Advocate
Directors and each of Mr. Neaman’s successors as Co-Chief Executive Officer, as
necessary, shall be designated in writing by Mr. Neaman, provided, however, that
any successor (other than Gerald P. Gallagher) so selected shall be subject to the
reasonable approval of a collective maiority of (a) a majority of the NorthShore
Directors (other than Mr. Neaman if he is then a NorthShore Director) and (b) the
other Co-Chief Executive Officer.

5.10 Treasurer, The Treasurer shall be responsible for all funds and securities of
the Corporation; shall recéive and receipt for all monies due and payable to the
Corporation; shall cause all such monies to be deposited in the name of the
Corporation in such depositaries as may be selected by the Board of Directors;
shall from time to time (but not less often than annually) review with the Board of
Directors the identities of the depositaries and the respective deposits therein and
make recommendations to the Board of Directors with respect thereto; shall keep or
cause to be kept complete and accurate accounts of the properties and financial
transactions of the Corporation; shall submit annually to the Board of Directors a
statement fully disclosing the financial condition of the Corporation; and in general
shall perform all the duties customarily incident to the office of a corporate
treasurer and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned by the
Chairperson of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer or the Board of Directors.

5.11 Secretary. The Secretary shall cause to be kept minutes of the meetings of
the Board of Directors; shall cause notices to be duly given in accordance with the
provisions of these Bylaws or as required by law; shall be responsible for the safe
custody of the corporate records and of the seal of the Corporation and shall cause
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the seal to be affixed to all documents the execution of which under seal is
authorized in accordance with these Bylaws; shall cause to be kept a register of the
post office address of each Director and Ex-Officio Director which shall be
fumished to the Secretary by such Director or Ex-Officio Director, as applicable;
and in general shall perform all duties customarily incident to the office of a
corporate secretary and such othér duties as from time to time may be assigned by
the Chairperson, the Chief Executive Officer or the Board of Directors.

5.12 Assistant Treasurers and Assistant Secretaries. If elected, Assistant
Treasurers and the Assistant Secretaries shall perform such duties as shall be
assigned to them respectively by the Treasurer, Secretary, Chairperson, the Chief
Executive Officer or the Board of Directors.

5.13 Chief Operating Officer(s). If elected or appointed, the Chief Operating
Officer(s) shall, subject to the direction of the Chief Executive Officer, have the
authority and responsibility for and perform the duties associated with the day-to-
day administration of the Corporation. In the absence of the Chief Executive
Officer, a Chief Operating Officer shall perform the duties of the Chief Executive
Officer. :

" ARTICLE VL.

Committees of the Board-

6.1 Committee of the Whole. - The Board of Directors shall function as a committee
of the whole until such time as the Board of Directors has established one or more
committees (each, a “Committee”).

6.2 Establishment or Discontinuation of Committees. The Board of
Directors may establish or discontinue Committees as it shall consider in the
best interests of the Corporation. The Board of Directors shall approve a charter
for each Committee outlining the scope of its responsibility. However, no such
Committee shall have the authority of the Board of Directors in reference to (i)
amending, altering or repealing these Bylaws; (ii) electing, appointing or
removing any member of any such Committee or any Director or officer of the
Corporation; (iii) amending the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation;
(iv) adopting a plan of merger or adopting a plan of consolidation with another
corporation; (v) authorizing the sale, lease, exchange or mortgage of all or
substantially all of the property and assets of the Corporation; (vi) authorizing
the voluntary dissolution of the. Corporation or revoking proceedings therefor;
(vii) adopting a plan for the distribution of the assets of the Corporation; (viii)
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amending, altering or repealing any resolution of the Board of Directors which
by its terms provides that it shall not be amended, altered or repealed by such
Committee; or (ix) or otherwise taking any action or approving any matter
which requires special approval pursuant to Section 4.6 or 4.7. In addition, the
Board of Directors may assign to any Conimittee additional powers and
functions as may be deemed appropriate.

6.3 Meetings. Once established, meetings of a Board Committee may be
called by, or at the direction of, the Chairperson, either of the Co-Chief
Executive Officers or the Chief Executive Officer, as applicable, the Secretary,
the Chairperson of the Committee or a majority of the members of the
Committee, to be held at such time and place as shall be designated in the notice
of the meeting. Written notice of the time, place and purpose of any meeting
of a Committee shall be given to each member of such Committee at least five
(5) days prior to such meeting.

6.4 Waiver of Notice. Any member of a Committee may waive notice of any

meeting of a Committee. The attenidance of a member at any such meeting:shall
constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except where a member attends for
the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business on the ground
that the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.

6.5 Q‘uorum. During the period from the Effective Date to the date that is"s,ix ©)
years following the Effective Date, a majority of the NorthShore Directors serving
as members of a Committee and a majority of the Advocate Directors serving as
members of a Committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at
any meeting of such Committee. On and after the date that is six (6) years from the
Effective Date, a majority of the members of a Committée shall constitute a quiorum
for the transaction of business at any meeting of such Committee. In each case, if
less than a quorum is present, a majority of the members of the Committee present
and entitled to vote may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further
notice.

6.6 Manner of Acting. Each member of a Commiittee is entitled to one (1) vote on
any matter before such Committee. Voting by proxy is not permitted. The act of a
majority of the Directors present and entitied to vote at any meeting at which a
quorum is present shall be the act of the Committee, except where otherwise
provided by law, the Affiliation Agreement or by these Bylaws. Members of a
Commnittee, subject to the Chairperson’s approval, may participate in and act at any
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meeting of a Committee through the use of a conference telephone or other
communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the
meeting can communicate with each other, and participation in such meeting shall
constitute attendance and presence in person at the meeting of the members so
participating. No action of any Committee shall be valid unless taken at a meeting
at which a quorum is present, except that any action which may be taken at a
meeting of a Committee may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing
(setting forth the action so taken) shall be signed by all members of such
Committee. The Committees may adopt their own rules of procedure which shall
not be inconsistent with these Bylaws and in the absence of such rules of procedure,
Robert's Rules of Order shall apply.

6.7 Composition of Committees. Each Committee shall be composed of a
number of NorthShore Directors and a number of Advocate Directors
proportionate to the number of NorthShore Directors and the number of
Advocate Directors sitting on the Board of Directors at any given time. By way
of example, if sixty percent (60%) of the members of the Board of Directors are
Advocate Directors and forty perceat (40%) of the members of the Board of
Directors are NorthShore Directors, then sixty percent (60%) of the members of
the relevant Committee must be Advocate Directors and forty percent (40%) of
the members of the relevant Committee must be NorthShore directors.

6.8 Advisory Members. The Board of Directors may from time to time appoint
one or more members of the professional staff of the Corporation, any of its
subsidiaries or other persons, who may or may not be members of the Board of
Directors, as advisory members of a Committee. Advisory members of a
Committee shall be afforded the privileges of members of the Committee but may
be excluded from any meeting or from receiving any materials distributed to the
members of the Board of Directors by the Chairperson or the Chairperson of such
Committee and shall not have any vote.

ARTICLE VII
Conflicts of Interest

7.1 Key Individual. For purposes of this Article, all Directors, officers, and
management employees of this Corporation shall be ““Key Individuals.”

7.2 Prohibition. There shall be no conflict between the personal interests (direct
or indirect) of an officer or management employee of the Corporation and the
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interests of the Corporation except in instances where both the Chairperson and the
Chief Executive Officer (or the other Co-Chief Executive Officer if a Co-Chief
Executive Officer is the Chairperson or the Vice-Chairperson if the Chief
Executive is the Chairperson) conclude that it is in the best inferests of the
Corporation to authorize the transaction or activity which would give rise to such a
conflict.

7.3 Conflict of Interest of Director. If a transaction is fair to the Corporation at
the time it is authorized, approved, or ratified, the fact that a Director or Ex-Officio
Director is directly or indirectly a party to the transaction is not grounds for
invalidating the transaction. For purposes of this Section 7.3, a Director or Ex~
Officio Director is “indirectly” a party to a transaction if the other party to the
transaction is an entity in which the Director or Ex-Officio Director, as applicable,
has -a material financial interest or of which the Director is an officer, director or
general partner.

7.4 Disclosure Requirement. Any conflict of interest of a Key Individual which
becomes relevant to any matter requiring action by the Board of Directors or any
of its committees shall be disclosed to the Board of Directors or committee .and
such Key Individual, if a Director or Ex-Officio Director, shall not vote on such
matter, shall not use personal influence in connection therewith, and shall not be
counted in determining the quorum for the meeting. The minutes of the meeting
shall reﬂgct that a disclosure was made, that the Key Individual, if a member of E!le
Board of Directors or comimittee, abstained from voting and was not counted in
determining the quorum for the meeting.

ARTICLE VIIIL
Indemnification

8.1. General The Corporation shall indemnify any person who was or is a party or is
threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or
proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an action
by or in the right of the Corporation) by reason of the fact that such person is or was a
Director, Ex-Officio Director or officer of the Corporation, or is or was serving at the
request of the Corporation as a member, manager, director or officer of another
corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against expenses
(including attorneys' fees), judgmients, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and
reasonably incurred by such person in connection with such action, suit or proceeding if
such person acted in good faith and in a manner such person reasonably believed to be in
or not oppo'sed to the best interests of the Corporation, and, with respect to any criminal
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action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful.
The termination of any action, suit or proceeding by judgment, order, settlement,
conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contender or its equivalent, shall not, of itself, create a
presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner which such person
reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation, and,
with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had reasonable cause to believe that his
or her conduct was unlawful.

8.2. Derivative Claims. The Corporation shall indemnify any person who was or is a
party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action
or suit by or in the right of the Corporation to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of
the fact that such person is or was a Director, Ex-Officio Director or officer, employee or
agent of the Corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a
member, manager, director or officer of another corporation, partnership, joint venture,
trust or other enterprise, against expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and
reasonably incurred by such person in connection with the defense or settlement of such
action or suit if such person acted in good faith and in a manner the person reasonably
believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation, and except that

“ho indemnification shall be made in respect of any claim, issue or matter as to which such

ssperson shall have been adjudged to be liable for negligence or smisconduct in the
performance of his or her duty to the Corporation unless and only to the extent that the
Chancery Division, Circuit Court of Cook County, State of Illinois, or the court in which
such action or suit was brought, shall determine upon application that, despite the

7 ad_;udlcatlon of liability but in view of all the circumstances of the case, such person is
falrly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenses as the court shall deem
proper.

8.3. Expenses. To the extent that any person referred to in Section 8.1 or 8.2 has been
successful on the merits or otherwise in the defense of any action, suit or proceeding
referred to therein of in thé defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, he or she shall
be indemnified against expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably
incurred by him or hér in connection therewith.

8.4. Authorization for Indemnification. Any indemnification under Sections 8.1 or 8.2
(unless ordered by a court) shall be made by the Corporation only as authorized in a
specific case upon a determination that indemnification of the person to be so
indemnified is proper in the circumstances because he or she has met the applicable
standard of coniduct set forth in Sections 8.1 or 8.2. Such determination shall be made

(a) by the Board of Directors by a majority vote of a quorum
consisting of Directors who were not parties to such action, suit or proceeding; or
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(b)  if such quorum is not obtainable, or, even if obtainable, a quorum
of disinterested members of the Board of Directors so directs, by independent
legal counsel in a written opinion.

8.5. Advancement of Funds for Expenses. Expenses incurred in defending a civil or
criminal action, suit or proceeding shall be paid by the Corporation in advance of the
final disposition of such action, suit or proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by or
on behalf of the person to be so .indemnified to repay such amount unless it shall
ultimately be determined that he or she is entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation as
provided in this Article VIIL

8.6. Non-Exclusive. The indemnification provided by this Article VIII shall not be
deemed exclusive of any other rights to which a person seeking indemnification may be
entitled under any statute, bylaw, agreement, vote of disinterested members of the Board
of Directors or otherwise, both as to action in his or her official capacity and as to action
in another capacity while holding such office, and shall continue as to a person who has
ceased to be a member, director or officer and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs,
executors and administrators of such a person.

8.7. Insurance. The Corporation shall have power to purchase and maintain insurance
on behalf of any person who™is or was a Director, Ex-Officio Director officer, employee
or agent of the Corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a
member, Director, Ex-Officio Director, officer, employee or agent of another
corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against any liability
asserted against the person and incurred by the person in any such capacity, or arising out
of the person's status as such, whether or not the Corporation would have the power to
indemnify the person against such liability under the provisions of this Article VIIL

ARTICLE IX.
Miscellaneous

9.1 Notice. Any notice required or permitted to be given pursuant to the provision
of these Bylaws shall be in writing and shall be sufficient and effective as of the
date personally delivered or, if sent by mail, on the date deposited with the United
States Postal Service, postage prepaid and addressed to the intended receiver at its
last known address as shewn in the records of the Corporation.

9.2 Contracts. The Board of Directors may authorize any officer or officers,
agent or agents of the Corporation in addition to the officers so authorized by these
Bylaws, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the
name of and on behalf of the Corporation and such authority may be general or
confined to specific instances.
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9.3 Checks. All checks, drafts and other orders for the payment of money, notes
or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation shall be
signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents of the Corporation and in such
manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board of
Directors. In the absence of such determination by the Board of Directors, such
instrument shall be signed by the Treasurer and countersigned by the Chief
Executive Officer or the Chief Operating Officer.

9.4 Deposits. All funds of the Corporation shall be deposited from time to time to
the credit of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies or other depositaries
as the Board of Directors may select.

9.5 Bonds. All officers and agents of the Corporation responsible for the receipt,
custody or disbursement of funds shall give bonds for the faithful discharge of
their duties in such sums and with such sureties as the Board of Directors shall

determine.

9.6 Office. The Corporation shall have and continuously maintain in the State of
Illinois a.registered office and a registered agent whose office is identical with

such regjstered office.

9.7 Seal. The Board of Directors shall provide a corporate seal which shall be in
the form of a circle and shall have inscribed thereon the name of the Corporation
and the words ““Seal-Illinois.”

T

98 Fiscé] Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be the calendar year or as
otherwise determined by the Board of Directors.

9.9 Review of Bylaws. When appropriate, these Bylaws shall be reviewed and
revised in accordance with Article X.

ARTICLE X.

Amendments
During the period from the Effective Date to the date that is six (6) years following
the Effective Date, these Bylaws may be altered, amended or repealed and new
Bylaws may be adopted by the affirmative vote of at least three-fourths of the
members of the Board of Directors (provided, however, if there are more than
twelve (12) members of the Board of Directors, then the affirmative vote of at least
a majority of the NorthShore Directors, on the one hand, and at least a majority of
the Advocate Directors, on the other hand, shall also be required) at any regular or
special meeting, if the proposed alteration, amendment, action for repeal or form
of new Bylaws is submitted in writing to each Director at least five (5) days prior
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to the meeting at which the same is to be considered. On and after the date that is
six (6) years following the Effective Date, these Bylaws may be altered, amended or
repealed and new Bylaws may be adopted by the affirmative vote of at least three-
fourths of the members of the Board of Directors at any regular or special meeting,
if the proposed alteration, amendment, action for repeal or form of new Bylaws is
submitted in writing to each Director at least five (5) days prior to the meeting at
which the same is to be considered.

ARTICLE XI.
Dissolution
Upon any dissolution or liquidation of the Corporation during the period from the
Effective Date to the date that is six (6) years following the Effective Date, the assets
shall be distributed to one or more entities, each of which shall qualify as an exempt

organization under section 501(c)(3) of the Code (or the corresponding provision of any

future United States Internal Revenue Law), as determined by the affirmative vote of (i)

at least three-fourths of the members of the Board of Directors and (ii) if there are more
than twelve (12) members of the Board of Directors, then the affirmative vote of at least a

“

b

-miajority of the NorthShore Directors and at least a majority of the Advacate Directors;

,.,brovided, however, it is the intent as of the Effective Date of the parties to the Affiliation
Agreement that the final distribution of the assets of the NorthShore Corporations, on the

one hand, and the assets of the Advocate Corporations, on the other hand, be made as

closely as is reasonably practicable to the distribution that would have occurred pursuant

*"to the organizational documents of each entity as in effect immediately prior to the
“ Effective Date. -

Upon any dissolution or liquidation of the Corporation at any time subsequent to the date
that is six (6) years following the Effective Date, the assets shall be distributed to one or

more entities, each of which shall qualify as an exempt organization under section

501(c)(3) of the Code (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal

Revenue Law), as determined by the affirmative vote of at least a majority of the

members of the Board of Directors; provided, however, it is the intent as of the Effective
Date of the parties to the Affiliation Agreement that the final distribution of the assets of

the NorthShore Corporations, on the one hand, and the assets of the Advocate
Corporations, on the other hand, be made as closely as is reasonably practicable to the
distribution that would have occurred pursuant to the organizational documents of each
entity as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Date.

Any such assets not so distributed shall be disposed of by the court of general
jurisdiction in Cook County, Illinois, eéxclusively to such organization or
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organizations qualifying under section 501(c)(3) of the Code, in such manner as said
court shall determine.

0 N1
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SCHEDULES
to
AFFILIATION AGREEMENT
dated September 11, 2014
among
NORTHSHORE UNIVERSITY HEALTHSYSTEM,
ADVOCATE HEALTH CARE NETWORK,
and

ADVOCATE HEALTH AND HOSPITALS CORPORATION

CHI:2862436.3




Organizational Documents
Schedule S.4(b)

NorthShore

NorthShore University HealthSystem Faculty Practice Associates
The Radiation Medicine Institute

NorthShore Physician Associates, Inc.

NorthShore University HealthSystem Insurance International
HPMOB Limited Partnership

Advocate Health Care Network

Advocate Condell Medical Center

. Advocate North Side Health Network

10. Advocate Sherman Hospital

11. Evangelical Services Corporation

WRXNAN RO

114



115

Interim Conduct of Business

Schedule 6.1(a)

1. Actions related to that certain Asset Purchase Agreement between NorthShore and
Fresenius Medical Care of Illinois, LL.C, dated July 25, 2014.

2. Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation withdrew as a Corporate Member of
Rainbow Hospice and Palliative Care, effective as of August 1, 2014.
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NORTHSHORE DISCLOSURE SCHEDULE

to
AFFILIATION AGREEMENT
dated September 11, 2014
among
NORTHSHORE UNIVERSITY HEALTHSYSTEM,

ADVOCATE HEALTH CARE NETWORK,

and

ADVOCATE HEALTH AND HOSPITALS CORPORATION

CHI:2860442.10




‘This (this “Disclosure Schedulé™) is the NorthShore Disclosure Schedule referred to in
that certain Affiliation Agreement, dated as of September 11, 2014 (the “Agreement”), amorg
NorthShore University HealthSystem, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (“NorthShore™),
Advocate Health Care Network, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (“Advocate™ or, when
referring to it herein with respect to events or circumstances following the closing, “ANHP”),
and Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation
(“AHHC”). Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Disclosure Schedule shall have the
meanings ascribed to such terms in the Agreement. This Disclosure Schedule is qualified in its
entirety by reference to specific provisions of the Agreement. The mere inclusion of information
in this Disclosure Schedule as an exception to a representation, warranty or covenant shall not
(a) be deemed an admission by NorthShore that such information represents a material exception
or a material fact, event or circumstance or that such information has had or would reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect or (b) constitute, or be deemed to be, an admission to
.any third party concerning such information. Matters reflected in this Disclosure Schedule are
not necessarily limited to matters required by the Agreement to be reflected in this Disclosure
Schedule. Such additional matters are set forth for informational purposes only, and this
Disclosure Schedule does not necessarily include other matters of a similar nature. Similarly, the
inclusion of information herein as to matters in the ordinary course of business does not mean
that other such information is also included.

Matters disclosed in any section of this Disclosure Schedule shall be deemed to be
disclosed in other sections of this Disclosure Schedule, as well, to the extent the relevance of
such matters to such other sections of this Disclosure Schedule is reasonably apparent based on
the content of the disclosure for purposes of qualifying the representations and warranties of
NorthShore set forth in the Agreement. Headings and introductory language have been included
in this Disclosure Schedule for convenience only, and such headings and introductory language
shall not have the effect of amending, and shall not be used to construe, the representations and
warranties of NorthShore set forth in the Agreement.
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No Conflict
Section 5.3
(b)(ii)
1. Blue Cross Participating Provider Option (PPO) Hospital Contract, dated June 24, 1987,

between Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal Reserve Company (Blue Cross
and Blue Shield of Illinois) and NorthShore, as amended, restated or modified from time to
time.

Hospital Services Agreement, dated August 5, 2005 and effective September 1, 2005,
between Aetna Health Inc. and NorthShore, as amended by that certain Amendment dated
July 1, 2014 and as otherwise amended, restated or modified from time to time.

Facility Participation Agreement, effective June 16, 2006, between UnitedHealthcare
Insurance Company and NorthShore, as amended, restated or modified from time to time
(notice only).

Member Provider Group Agreement, dated July 27, 2012, between NorthShore and Mayo
Foundation for Medical Education and Research, as amended, restated or modified from time
to time.

Master Affiliation Agréement, dated July 16, 2008, among NorthShore, the University of

5.
Chicago and the University of Chicago Medical Center, along with that certain Sub-
Agreement, dated April 14, 2009, both as amended, restated or modified from time to time.

6. State of Illinois Contract between the Department of Healthcare and Family Services and
Community Care Partners, LLC, dated February 24, 2014.

(bXiv)

Consent or notice may be required with respect to, but not limited to, the following: an Illinois
Hospital License, Medicare Provider Agreements, Medicaid Provider Agreements, Drug
Enforcement Agency Registration, Joint Commission, Illinois Pharmacy Licenses, Illinois
Radiology License, Illinois State Controlled Substances License, Illinois CON Board.
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System Corporation Names and Jurisdictions of Formation
Section 5.4(a)

1. NorthShore University HealthSystem, an Illinois not for profit corporation

2. NorthShore University HealthSystem Faculty Practice Associates, an Illinois not for profit
corporation

3. The Radiation Medicine Institute, an Illinois not for profit corporation
4. NorthShore Physician Associates, Inc., an Illinois corporation
5. HPMOB Limited Partnership, an Illinois limited partnership

6. NorthShore University HealthSystem Insurance International, an entity incorporated in the
Cayman Islands

7. Community Care Partners LLC, an Illinois limited liability company
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System Corporation Names and Jurisdictions of Formation
Section 5.4(c)

1. Certain équity interests in the HPMOB Limited Partnership are owned by the current limited
partners of HPMOB Limited Partnership, and such limited partners are physicians affiliated
with NorthShore.

2. NorthShore (as successor-in-interest to ENH) owns approximately 30% of Ravine Way
Partners, LLC.

3. NorthShore (as successor-in-interest to ENH) owns approximately 49% of ENH/USP
Surgery Centers II, LLC.
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(ii)
L

Material Contracts
Section 5.13(a)

Master Trust Indenture, dated as of October 1, 1985, between NorthShore (formerly,
Evanston Hospital Corporation) and First Trust of Illinois, National Association, as successor
to Bank of America Illinois (formerly, Continental Illinois National Bank and Trust
Company of Chicago), as master trustee, as supplemented and amended from time to time.

(iv)

Noné.

)
2.

4.

Operating Agreement of Ravine Way Surgery Center, LLC, dated March 2005, between
Ravine Way Partners, LLC and Evanston Northwestern Healthcare (“ENH”).

Operating Agreement of ENH/USP Surgery Centers II, LLC (“ENH/USP”) between ENH
and USP Chicago, Inc. (“USP” and together with ENH, the “Member” or “Members™), dated
April 2005,

Contribution Agreement between ENH/USP and the Members, dated April 2005

(vii)

5.

Hospital Participation Agreement, dated January 1, 1993, between Humana HealthPlan, Inc.,
Humana HealthChicago Inc., Humana Insurance Comipany and Humana HealthChicago
Insurance Company and NorthShore, as amended, restated or modified from time to time.

Hospital Managed Care Agreement, dated December 1, 2000, between CIGNA Healthcare of
Hlinois, Inc. and NorthShore, as amended, restated or modified from time to time.

Blue Cross Participating Provider Option (PPO) Hospital Contract, dated June 24, 1987,
between Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal Reserve Company (Blue Cross
and Blue Shield of Illinois) and NorthShore, as amended, restated or modified from time to
time.

Hospital Services Agreement, dated August 5, 2005 and effective September 1, 2005,
between Aectna Health Inc. and NorthShore, as aménded, restated or modified from time to

time.

Facility Participation Agreement, effective Jurie 16, 2006, between UnitedHealthcare
Insurance Company and NorthShore, as amended, restated or modified from time to time.
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10. Hospital Service Agreement, undated, between HMO Illinois, a product of Health Care
Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal Reserve Company and Independent Licensee of the
Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association, and NorthShore.

(ix)
None.
(x)

11. Asset Purchase Agreement between NorthShore and Fresenius Medical Care of Illinois,
LLC, dated July 25, 2014.

12. Asset Purchase agreement between NorthShore and Walgreen Co., dated December, 2013.
13. Operating Agreement of ENH/USP between the Members, dated April 2005.

14. Operating Agreement of Ravine Way Surgery Center, LLC, dated March 2005, between
Ravine Way Partners, LLC and ENH.,

(xi)
4 :‘None.
(xii)
Norne.
{xiii)

15. Master Affiliation Agreement, dated July 16, 2008, among NorthShore, the University of
Chicago and the University of Chicago Medical Center, along with that certain Sub-
Agreement, dated Aprii 14, 2009, both as amended, restated or modified from time to time.

(xiv)

16. Management Services Agreement, dated January 1, 2012, between Valence Health, Inc.
(“Valence”) and NorthShore Physician Associates, Inc.

17. Management Services Agreement, undated, between Valence and CCP (this agreement is
still being negotiated).

18. Vendor Distribution and ValueLink Agreement, effective November 25, 2013, between the
Company and Cardinal Health 200, LLC.

19. Corporate Program Agreement, dated February 1, 2009, between Medline Industries, Inc.
(“Medline™) and NorthShore.
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20. “Patient Specific” Supply Management Program Agreement, dated August 18, 2011,
between Medline, MedCal Sales LLC, Medline Industries Holdings, L.P. and NorthShore.

(xv)

None.

(xvi)(a)
None.

(xvi)(b)

None.

(xvi)(c)

21. State of Illinois Contract between the Department and Community Care Partners, LLC
(“CCP”) dated February 24,2014 .

22. Management Services Agreement, dated January 1, 2012, between Valence Health, Inc.
(“Valénce™) and NorthShore Physician Associates, Inc. :

23. Man'a'gement Services Agreement, undated, between Valence and CCP (tili's agreement is
still being negotiated).

24. Illinois Health Information Exchange Data Sharing Agreement, dated July 28, 2014, between
NorthShore and the Illinois Health Information Exchange Authority.

y

25. Member Provider Group Agreement, dated July 27, 2012, between NorthShore and Mayo
Foundation for Medical Education and Research, as amended, restated or modified from time
to time.

26. Standard License and Support Agreement, dated August 8, 2001, between Epic Systems
Corporation and Evanston Northwestern Healthcare, as amended, restated or modified from
time to time.

27. IT Qutsourcing Agreement, dated August 1, 2002, between McKesson Technologies Inc. and
ENH, as amended, restated or modified from time to time.

28. Management Services Agreement between NorthShore and Aramark Management Services
Limited Partnership, dated January 31, 2014, as amended, restated or modified from time to
time.

29. Master Outsourcing Services Agreement between ENH and Springfield Service Corporation,
effective February 1, 2005

CHI:2860442.10
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30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.
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Information Exchange Data Sharing Agreement, dated July 2014, between the Illinois Health
Information Exchange Agency and NorthShore.

Engagement Letter Agreement, dated August 3, 2009, setting forth the terms under which
Mercer’s operating companies, Mercer (US) Inc., Mercer Investment Consulting, Inc. and/or
Mercer Health & Benefits LLC, will provide services to NorthShore.

Administrative Services Agreement, dated July 15, 2009, between Mercer (US) Inc. and
NorthShore.

Administrative Services Agreement, dated January 1, 2006, between Aetna Life Insurance
Company, on behalf of itself and its affiliated health maintenance organizations, and ENH, as
the Plan Sponsor and the ENH Welfare Committee.

Client Services Agreement, dated January 1, 2014, between Catamaran PBM of Illinois II,
Inc. and NorthShore, on behalf of the NorthShore Welfare Plan.

Lease Agreement, dated November 23, 2008, between Northwestern University and
NorthShore.

Trust Agreement, dated March 1, 2013, between "NorthShore in its corporate capacity and the
Plan Sponsor of the NorthShore Retirement Coztribution Plan (the “Plan”), NorthShore as
the named fiduciary of the Plan and ING National Trust.

Plan Information and Services Agreement, dated March 1, 2013, among ING Life Insurance
and Annuity Company (“ILIAC”), ING Financial Advisers, LL.C and NorthShore, on behalf
of the NorthShore Retirement Contribution Plas.

Plan Sponsor Investment Advisory Services Agreement, dated April 1, 2009, between
Momingstar Associates, LL.C and NorthShore.

ILIAC Plan Sponsor Investment Advisory Access Agreement, dated April 1, 2009, between
ILIAC and NorthShore.

ILIAC Plan Sponsor Investment Advisory Access Agreement, dated January 1, 2009,
between ILIAC and NorthShore.

Rabbi Trust Agreement Under ENH Executive & Physician Income Deferral Plan Top Hat
457(b) Plan, dated April 1, 2002, between ENH and ING National Trust.

ILIAC Plan Sponsor Investment Advisory Access Agreement, dated April 1, 2009, between
ILIAC and NorthShore.

Plan Services Agreement, dated February 1, 2002, between ILIAC (formerly known as Aetna
Life Insurance and Annuity Company) and ENH, in conjunction with ENH Tax deferred

9
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Annuity Plan, Plan Numbers VFZ068/666/068 & VFZ075/666075, as modified, amended or
restated from time to time.

10
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Multiemplover Plans
Section 5.19(b)

None.

11
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Emplovee Benefit Plans Subject to Title IV of ERISA
Section 5.19(f)

NorthShore University HealthSystem Pension Plan, frozen to new hires and rehires effective as
of January 1, 2013, and frozen with respect to all participants after December 31, 2013.

12
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Claims Related to Employee Benefit Plans
‘Section 5.19(h)

None.

13
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Union Associates
Section 5.20(c
None.
14
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Collective Bargaining Agreements

Section 5.20(d)
None.
15
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Intellectual Propertv Licenses

Section S.21(a)
None.
16
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Information Privacy and Security Law Vielations
Section 5.21(g)

None.

17
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Breach of Personal Information

Section 5.21(h)

None.

18
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Environmental Indemnities

Section 5.22(e)
1. Asset Purchase Agreement between NorthShore and Fresenius Medical Care of Illinois,
LLC, dated July 25, 2014.
19
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ADVOCATE DISCLOSURE SCHEDULE
to
AFFILIATION AGREEMENT
dated September 11, 2014
among
NORTHSHORE UNIVERSITY HEALTHSYSTEM,
ADVOCATE HEALTH CARE NETWORK,

and

ADVOCATE HEALTH AND HOSPITALS CORPORATION
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This (this “Disclosure Schedule™) is the Advocate Disclosure Schedule referred to in that
certain Affiliation Agreement, dated as of September 11, 2014 (the “Agreement”), among
NorthShore University Health System, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (“NorthShore™),
Advocate Health Care Network, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (“Advocate™ or, when
referring to it herein with respect to events or circumstances following the closing, “ANHP”),
and Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation
(“AHHC”). Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Disclosure Schedule shall have the
meanings ascribed to such terms in the Agreement. This Disclosure Schedule is qualified m its
entirety by reference to specific provisions of the Agreement. The mere inclusion of information
in this Disclosure Schedule as an exception to a representation, warranty or covenant shall not
(a) be deemed an admission by Advocate that such information represents a material exception
or a material fact, event or circumstance or that such information has had or would reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect or (b) constitute, or be deemed to be, an admission to
any third party concerning such information. Matters reflected in this Disclosure Schedule are

.not necessarily limited to matters required by the Agreement to be reflected in this Disclosure

Schedule. Such additional matters are set forth for informational purposes only, and this
Disclosure Schedule does not necessarily include other matters of a similar nature. Similarly, the
inclusion of information herein as to matters in the ordinary course of business does riot mean
that other such information is also included.

Matters disclosed in any section of this Disclosure Schedule shall be deemed to be
disclosed in other sections of this Disclosuire Schedule, as well, to the extent the relevance of
such matters to such other sections of this Disclosure Schedule is reasonably apparent based on
the content of the disclosure for purposes of qualifying the representations and warranties of
Advocate set forth in the Agreement. Headings and introductory language have been included in
this Disclosure Schedule for convenience only, and such headings and introductory language
shall not have the effect of amending, and shall not be used to construe, the representations and
warranties of Advocate set forth in the Agreement.
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Section 5.3
No Conflict

()

Under the Organizational Documents of Advocate and certain of its System Corporations, the
UCC and the ELCA must consent to the Agreement and the Transactions contemplated by the

Agreement.

No other material contracts require the consent of a third party to undergo a change of control.

e



Section S.4(a)
Advocate Entities
Wholly Owned Entities State of Incorporation
Advocate Health Care Network Illinois
Advocate Charitable Foundation Illinois
Advocate Condell Medical Center Illinois
Advocite Health and Hospitals Corporation Iltinois
Advocate Health Centers, Inc. 1llinois
Advocate Home Care Products, Incorporated IHlinois
Advocate Insurance SPC Illinois
Advocate North Side Health Network Illinois
Advocate Physician Partners Accountable Care, Inc. Ilinois
Advocate Physician Partners Risk Purchasing Group Tlinois
Advocidte Sherman Hospital Illinois
BroMenn Physicians Management Corporation Illinois
Dreyer Clinic, Inc. ' Illinois
EHS Home Health Care Service, Inc. llinois
Evangelical Services Corporation Tllinois
Health Visions, Inc. Tllinois
High Technology, Inc. Iflinois
i{ispano Care, Inc. Illinois
Meridian Hospice Illinois
Midwest Heart Specialists; Ltd. Illinois
ShermanChoice, Inc. Illinois
Sherman Group Practice, Inc. Illinois
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Sherman Health Foundation Illinois
Tlinois

Sherman Health Insurance Company

Sherman Home Health Care Corporation Illinois
Illinois

Sherman Physician Group, Inc.

Sherman Ventures, Inc. Illinois

Sherman West Court | Tlinois

With regard to Advocate and AHHC, the United Church of Christ and the Evangelical Lutheran

Synod retain certain approval and voting rights.

Cooperative Ventures Jurisdiction % of Advocate | Other Owners
Ownership .

A2CL Services, LL.C Wisconsin 50% Aurora Health Care Ventures,
Inc. -50% ”

Advocate BroMenn Physician Partners Illinois 50% Medical Staff of Advocate
BroMenn Hospital- 50%

Advocate Christ Hospital Health Partners Illinois 50% Medical Staff of Christ.

- Hospital- 50%

Advocate Condell Physician Partners Illinois 50% Medical Staff of Advocate
Condell Hospital — 50%

Advocate Good Samaritan Health Partners, Illinois 50% Good Samaritan Physician

Lud Association - 50%

Advocate Good Shepherd Health Partners, | Illinois 50% Medical Staff of Good Shepherd

Lid. Hospital — 50%

Advocate Health Partners Illinois 50% Advocate Hospitals PHO’s

Advocate Illinois Masonic Health Partners Illinois 50% Medical Staff of Hlinois
Masonic Hospital — 50%

Advocate Lutheran General Health Partners, | Illinois 50% Medical Staff of Advocate

Inc. Lutheran General Hospital -

. 50%

Advocate Sherman Physician Partners Illinois 50% Medical Staff of Advocate
Sherman Hospital — 50%

Advocate-South Suburban Health Partners Illinois 50% Medical Staff of Advocate
South-Suburban Hospital — 50%

Advocate Trinity Health Partners Illinois 50% Medical Staff of Advocate
Trinity Hospital - 50%

BroMenn Physician Hospital Organization Tllinois 50% Physicians — 50%
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The Delphi Group IV, Inc.

Chicago Northside MRI Cooperative Venture | 50% Not available ]
Community Cancer Center, L.L.C. Illinois 50% OSF HealthCare System ~ 50%
Dreyer Medical Group, Ltd. Tllinois Managed by Owned entirely by physician
Advocate shareholders.
Dreyer Ambulatory Surgery Center Cooperative Venture | 60% Mercy Hospital Chicago — 40%
Partnership
Main Street Child Care Center, LLC Illinois 50% Ilhinois Weslyan University —
50%
Midwest Center for Sleep Medicine, LLC Illinois 50% IHLA, LLC -33.33% IHLA,
LLC, Midwest Center for Slecp -
33.33%
Orthopedic and Sports Enhancement Center, | LLC 50% Physicians — 50%
LLC
RIC & AIMMC Rehabilitation Services Joint | Cooperative Venture | 50% Rehabilitation Institute of
Venture Chicago - 50%
River West Radiation Center, LLC Delaware 50% Rush-Copley Medical Center —
50%
Illinois 83% Not available
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Section S.4(c)

Cooperative Ventures with fewer than 50% Ownership

Corporation State of % of Ownership Other Owners
Organization
Advanced MRI, LLC Iinois 43% Global Medical Imaging
Develop, Neurad
Development, , Carle
Clinic Foundation and
Physicians
Advocate Southwest Ambulatory Surgery Hiinois 45.57% Physicians - 54.43%
Center, L.L.C.
Algonquin Road Surgery Center, LLC Delaware 25.5% Not available
ARSC Real Estate Holdings, LLC Delaware 25.5% NIMED (an affiliate of
Centegra) — 25.5%
) Physician Group — 49%
Evergreen Villas, LLC Illinois 50% interest in McLean Not available
County Assisted Living,
which has a 50%
membership interest in
Evergreen Villas, LLC
Illinois CyberKnife, LLC Delaware 20% U. S. Radiosurgery of
. Iltinois, LLC - 40%
ROC Cyberknife
Investment — 40%
LGH-A/Golf ASTC, L.L.C. Iltinois 35% ASTC Services, Ltd -65%
McLean County Assisted Living, L.L.C. Illinois 40% ‘Heritage Enterprises —
40%;Seniors/Bloomingto
n-~20%
Midwest Center for Day Surgery, LLC Illinois 49% Physicians - 61%
Midwest Surgical Management Group, Illinois 49% Physicians - 61%
LLC
Naperville Surgical Centre, LLC Tilinois 49.20% -Physicians -50.80%
Parkside Center Condominium Illinois Owns 85% of condo units | Physicians — 15%
Association .
Prairieland Outpatient Diagnostic Center, Hlinois 25% Physicians — 42%
LLC Digestive Disease
Consultants - 33%
RML Health Providers Limitéd Hiinois 49.5% Loyola University
Partnership Medical Center — 49.5%
RMLHP Corporation ~
1%
The Center for Orthopedic Medicine, Illinois 32.6% ownership of Physicians

LL.C

Surgery Center Series
Units
80% ownership of
Recovery Care Center
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Series Units
which operates the
TCOM Recovery Care
Center

Vantage Mokena Radiation Oncology, Illinois 24% Vantage Oncology
LLC Treatment Centers, LLC —

51%, Affiliated

\ Oncologists, LLC ~25%

Vantage South Suburban Radiation Delaware 24% Vantage Oncology
Oncology, LLC Treatment Centers — 51%,

Physicians — 25%.
SharedClarity LLC Delaware 12% Dignity Health -32%,

United HealCare
Services, Inc.-32%,
Baylor Health
Enterprises, L.P.-12%,
McLarent Health Care
Corporation — 12%

142



Section 5.13(a)

Material Contracts
(ii)

Master Trust Indenture, dated as of December 1, 1996, between Advocate Health
Care Network (“AHCN”), Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation (“AHHC?”),
Advocate Northside Health Network (“ANHN™) and Advocate Condell Medical
Center (“ACMC?” and, together with AHCN, AHHC and ANHN, the “Current
Obligated Group Members™) and U.S. Bank National Association, as master trustee,
as supplemented and amended by the Amended and Restated Master Trust
Indenture, dated as of September 1, 2011 (as so supplemented and amended, the
“Master Indenture™).

(iv)

. Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among BroMenn Healthcare System,
BroMenn Healthcare Hospitals, BroMenn Foundation, Advocate Health and
Hospitals Corporation (“AHHC”) and Advocate Charitable Foundation, dated

October 23, 2009.

. Affiliation Agreement by and among Sherman Health Systems, Sherman Hospital
and Advocate Health Care Network (“AHCN”), dated April 15, 2013.

)

. Operating Agreement of A’CL Services, LLC, dated January 1, 2007, by and among
Aurora Health Care Ventures, Inc., Evangelical Services Corporation and A’CL
Services, LLC.

. Limited Partnership Affiliation Agreement, dated December 31, 2009, by and among
Rush University Medical Center, Loyola University Medical Center, Advocate
Health and Hospitals Corporation and RML Health Providers.

(vii)

. Blue Cross Participating Provider Option (PPO) Hospital Contract, dated January 1,
2003, between Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal Reserve Company
(Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Illinois) and Advocate, as amended, restated or
modified from time to time.
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. Blue Cross HMO Hospital Contract, dated December 1, 2003, between Health Care
Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal Reserve Company (Blue Cross and Blue Shield
of Illinois) and Advocate, as amended, restated or modified from time to time.

. Facility Participation Agreement, effective December 1, 2007, between
UnitedHealthcare Insurance Company and Advocate, as amended, restated or
modified from time to time.

. Hospital Services Agreement, dated February 6, 2001 and effective September 1,
2005, between Aetna Health Inc. and Advocate, as amended, restated or modified
from time to time. '

. Hospital Managed Care Agreement, dated January 1, 2001, between CIGNA
Healthcare of Tllinois, Inc. and Advocate, as amended, restated or modified from time

to time.

. Hospital Participation Agreements, dated February 1, 1992, January 1, 1993, July 1,
1993, September 1, 1993, February 1, 1997, , between Humana HealthPlan, Inc.,
Humana HealthChicago Inc., Humana Insurance Company and Humana
HealthChicago Insurance Company and Advocate, as amended, restated or modified
from time to time. :

. Physician Services Agreement ("Agreement") dated June 1, 2004, between and
HealthSpring Inc. d/b/a HealthSpring of Illinois, a Tennessee corporation licensed in
Illinois as a héalth maintenance organization, and Advocate, as amended, restated or
modified from time to time.

. Global Capitation Provider Agreement dated March, 1, 2005, between Harmony
Health Plan of Illinois, Inc. and Advocate, as amended, restated or modified from
time to time.

(ix)

None.

(x)

. Hlinois Cyberknife, LLC Operating Agreement among US Radiosurgery of Illinois,

LLC, Evangelical Services Corporation and ROC Cyberknife Investment, LLC, dated
May 24, 2011.

(xi)

None.
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(xii)

1. Advocate Illinois Masonic Medical Center and Local Union Nol34
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Agreement, dated August 27,

1993.

2. Advocate Illinois Masonic Medical Center and Chicago and Northieast Illinois
District Council of Carpenters Agreement, dated January 2, 2002.

3. Advocdte Illinois Masonic Medical Center and Plumbing Contractors
Association of Chicago and Cook County Agreement, dated June 1, 2014.

(xiii)
None.
(xiv)

1. Non-Clinical Service Agreement, dated January 1, 2014, between Advocate
.Health and Hospitals Corporation and Affiliates and MedAssets Supply, Chain
Systems, LLC. '

(xv)
- None.
(xvi)

1. Patient Tower and Garage Agreement, dated July 9, 2013, as amended
between Advocate Christ Medical Center and Power Construction.

2. Campus Modemization Agreement, dated May 19, 2013, as amended between
Advocate Good Shepherd Hospital and MA Mortenson Construction.

3. Service Agreement, dated November 1, 2012, between Aramark Healthcare
Support Services, LLC and Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation,
Advocate Condell Medical Center- and Advocate Illinois Masonic Medical
Center
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Section 5.19(b)

Multiemployer Plans

Advocate and its ERISA Affiliates

L

The One Jobsite Agreement dated January 2, 2002, states that Advocate Illinois
Masonic Medical Center (“IMMC?”) recognizes the Chicago and Northéast Illinois
District Council of Carpenters as the collective bargaining representative of
carpenters working at IMMC, and that IMMC agrees to be bound by (i) the Area
Agreement (a collective bargaining agreement) negotiated between the above
union and the Mid-America Regional Bargaining Association and applicable
addendums, and (ii) the terms of the Trust Agreements of the Fringe Benefit Trust
Funds to which contributions are required to be made under the terms of the
avove referenced agreements.

The Agreement dated August 27, 1993, between Local No. 134, International
Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, AFL-CIO (“IBEW™) and Dllinois Masonic
Medical Center (“Medical Center”) states that the Medical Center will participate
ini the IBEW employee benefit funds specified in the Collective Bargaining
Agreement between the IBEW and the Electrical Contractors® Association of the
City of Chicago then in effect, and shall contribute to the funds in the amounts
specified in such Collective Bargaining Agreement.

The Building Maintenance Addendum Agreement dated August 19, 2014,
between Advocate Illinois Masonic Medical Center (“IMMC™) and Chicago
Journeyman Plumbers® Local Union 130, U.A. (“Local 130”) states that that
IMMC is bound by Local 130°s June 3, 2014 - May 31, 2017 Collective
Bargaining Agreement between various Plumbing Contractor Associations and
Chicago Journeyman Plumbers® Local Union 130, U.A. (the “Agreement”). The
Agreement requires IMMC to contribute to the Local 130 employee benetit funds
specified in the Agreement, in the armounts required by the Agreement.
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Section 5.19%(f)

Employee Benefit Plans Subject to Title IV of ERISA

Advocate and its ERISA Affiliates

1. Condell Health Network Retirement Plan, as amended and restated as of January
1, 2014 (frozen effective December 31, 2007)
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Section 5.19(h)

Claims Related to Employee Benefit Plans

Advocate and its ERISA Affiliates

1. Maria Stapleton, et al., v. Advocate Health Care Network & Subsidiaries, et al., No. 1:14-
cv-01873 (N.D. Il1.) filed March 17, 2014. The complaint alleges that Advocate is
violating various provisions of ERISA while wrongfully claiming that the Advocate
Health Care Network Pension Plan is exempt from ERISA because it is a “church plan.”




Section 5.20(c)
Union Associates

Three carpenters employed by Advocate Illinois Masonic Medical Center are members of the
Chicago & Northeast Illinois District Council of Carpenters.

Two electricians employed by Advocate Illinois Masonic Medical Center are members of the
IBEW Local 134.

*One plumber employed by Advocate Illinois Masonic Medical Center is a member of the
Chicago Journeymen Plumbers Local 130 U.A.

*Note, this individual has just been hired/assigned to Advocate Illinois Masonic and will start
10/6/14.
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Section 5.20(d)
Collective Bargaining Agreements
1. Advocate Illinois Masonic Medical Center and Local Union Nol34

International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Agreement, dated August 27,
1993.

2. Advocate Illinois Masonic Medical Center and Chicago and Northeast Illinois
District Council of Carpenters Agreement, dated January 2, 2002.

3. Advocate Illinois Masonic Medical Center and Plumbing Contractors
Association of Chicago and Cook County Agreement, dated June 1, 2014.
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Section 5.21(a)
IP Licenses

Advocate has licensed certain intellectual property related to development of a disease registry to
Cemer. In 2011, Advocate contributed intellectual property designed to care for acute care
patients in their homes to an entity called Clinically Home, LLC. That entity has dissolved, and
Advocate no longer holds an interest in it.
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Section 5.21(g)

Information Privacy and Security Law Violations

Advocate is cooperating with government officials in their review and investigation of certain
privacy and security incidents as listed below.

July 2013 - Burglary and theft of four unencrypted but password protected desktops resulting in
notification to approximately 4 million individuals;

August 2013 — AMG e-statement website had been compromised affecting patients’ debit cards
shortly after submission of payment information resulting in notification to approximately 2,000
iridividuals;
September 2013 - Theft of an associate’s laptop resulting in notification to approximately 2,000
individuals.

Advocate may not be in compliance with certain guidelines or interpretations provided by certain
goveinmental entitiés including United States Department of Health and Human Services Office
for Civil Right, the White House and Attorney General’s Offices.



Section 5.21(h)
Breach of Personal Information

There are ongoing investigations on three matters as disclosed in Schedule 5.21(g).

EL 4
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Section 5.22(e)
Environmental Liabilities

None.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ATTACHMENT #6

See following pages for audited financials from Advocate Health Care Network and
NorthShore University HealthSystem.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Advocate Health Care Network and Subsidiaries

Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012
With Reports of Independent Auditors
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
Advocate Hcealth Care Network

‘We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Advocate Health Care
Network and subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31,
2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets
and cash flows for the years then cnded, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this

- includes the design, implementation, and maintenante of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free of material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurancc about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

An audit involves pcrforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Advocate Health Care Network and
subsidiarics at December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for the years then ended in conformity with U.S. gencrally accepted accounting principles.

St + MLLP

March 7, 2014
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Advocate Health Care Network and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Dollars in Thousands)
December 31
2013 2012
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 563,229 § 397,945
Short-term investments 19,401 21,528
Assets limited as to usc 89,660 76,841
Patient accounts receivable, less allowances for
uncollectible accounts of $181,254 in 2013 and
$153,943 in 2012 , 567,033 530,719
Amounts due from primary third-party payors 10,107 11,294
- Prepaid expenses, inventories, and other current assets 256,322 233,653
. Collateral proceeds received under securities
lending program 19,165 20,794
Total current assets 1,524,917 1,292,774
Assets limited as to use:
Internally and extemnally designated investments
limited as to use - 4,715,519 4,224,383
Investments under securities lending program 19,013 21,014
4,734,532 4,245,397
Prepaid pension expense and other noncurrent assets 132,382 116,305
Interest in health care and related entities 152,103 135,676
Reinsurance receivable 172,318 175,975
Deferred costs and intangible assets, less allowances
for amortization 51,231 47,378
5,242,566 4,720,731
Property and equipment — at cost:
Land and land improvements 251,296 189,226
Buildings 2,514,922 2,209,485
Movable equipment 1,358,608 1,262,737
Construction-in-progress 313,065 136,740
4,437,891 3,798,188
Less allowances for depreciation 2,155,428 2,034,494
2,282,463 1,763,694

9.049.946 $ 7.777.199

1312-1179290
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December 31
2013 2012
Liabilities and net assets/shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt $ 17,810 $ 19,103
Long-term debt subject to short-term remarketing
arrangements 135,130 187,795
Accounts payable 291,306 227,882
Accrued salaries and employee benefits 423,897 347,617
Accrued expenses 120,526 117,962
Amounts due to primary third-party payors 274,780 240,192
. Current portion of accrued insurance and claims costs - 112,412 95,093
__ Obligations to retarn collateral under securities lending program 19,440 21,069
"Total current liabilities S : 1,395,301 - 1,256,713

Noncurrent liabilities:

. Long-term debt, less curreént portion 1,452,109 1,142,458
Pension plan liability 23,737 66,716
Accrucd insurance and claims cost, less current portion ' 678,470 661,395
Accrued losses subject to reinsurance recovery 172,318 175,975
Obligations under swap agreements, net of collateral posted 47,908 84,814
Other noncurrent liabilities 151,668 124,215

: 2,526,210 2,255,573

Total liabilities , 3,921,511 3,512,286

Net assets/shareholders’ equity:

Unrestricted 4,968,578 4,128,166
Temporarily restricted 111,335 90,351
Permanently yestricted 47,566 45,414
5,127,479 4,263,931

Non-controlling interest ) 956 982
Total net assets/shareholders’ equity 5,128,435 4,264,913

$ 9.049946 § 7.777.199

Sée accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Advocate Health Care Network and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations and

Changes in Net Assets
(Dollars in Thousands)

Year Ended December 31
2013 2012
Unrestricted revenues, gains, and other support
Net patient service revenue $ 4,468,468 $ 4,105,671
Provision for uncollectible accounts (253,989) (212,305)
4,214,479 3,893,366
Capitation revenue : _ 389,516 390,985
Other revenue 334,007 311,347
4,938,002 4,595,698
Expenses
Salaries, wages, and employee benefits 2,510,470 2,349,690
Purchased services and operating suppiss 1,211,483 - 1,127,788
Contracted medical services 135,570 149,009
Insurance and claims costs 108,349 99,892
Other 404,988 337,349
Depreciation and amortization 211,648 187,742
Interest ) 55,299 - 45,953
4,637,807 4,297,423
Operating income 300,195 298,275
Nonoperating income (loss)
Investment income 287,727 380,749
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps 41,236 (52)
Fair value of net assets acquired 151,663 -
Loss on refinancing of debt (46) 24
Other nonoperating items, net (15,455) (7,292)
_ 465,125 373,381
Revenues in cxcess of expenses 765,320 671,656
5
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Advocate Health Care Network and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Changes in Net Assets (continued)

(Dollars in Thousands)
Year Ended December 31
2013 2012

Unrestricted net asscts
Revenues in cxcess of expenses $ 765320 $§ 671,656
Net assets released from restrictions

and used for capital purchases 4,201 7,378
Postretirement benefit plan adjustments 70,912 4,444
Other 1) (&)
Increase in unrestricted net assets 840,412 683,421
Temporarily restricted net assets
Contributions for medical education programs, = :

capital purchases, and other purposes ) 27,7118 21,869
Contribution of net assets of Sherman Hospital 719 -
Realized gains on investments 2,959 2,580
Unrealized gains on investments . -3,768 6,304
Net assets released from restrictions and used

for operations, medical education programs, .

capital purchases, and other purposes (14,240) (15,733)
lncreasc in temperarily restricted net assets 20,984 15,020
Permanently restricted net assets
Contributions for medical education programs,

capital purchases, and other purposes 1,889 6,951
Contribution of net assets of Sherman Hospital 263 —
Increase in permanently restricted net assets 2,152 6,951
Increase in net assets 863,548 705,392
Change in non-controlling interest (26) 16
Net assets/shareholders’ equity at beginning of year 4,264,913 -3,559,505

Net assets/shareholders’ equity at end of ycar $ 5128435 $ 4.264.913

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AdVocate Health Care Network and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Dollars in Thousands)

Operating activities
Increase in net sssets
Adjustments fo reconcile increase in nct asscts to ncl cash
provided by operating activitics:
Depreciation, amortization, and accretion
Provision for uncollectible accounts
Change in deferred income {axes
Losses on disposal of property and cquipment
Loss on refinancing of debt
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps
Postretirement bencfit plan adjustments
Contribution of certain net asscts of Sherman Hospital, net
of $12,280 cash received
" Restricted confributions and gains on investments,
~~pet of assets released from restrictions used for operations
Clifnges in operating assets and liabilities:
Trading securitics--
Patient accounts receivable
Amounts due to/from primary third-party payors
Accounts payablc, acerued salarics and employee benefits,
- accrucd expenses, and other noncurrent liabilities
Other assets .
Accrued insurance and claims cost
Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities

Purchases of property and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property and cquipment

Cash dcquired in the acquisition of Sherman Hospital
Purchascs of investments designated as non-trading
Sales of investments designated as non-trading
Other

Net cash used in investing aclivitics

Financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of debt

Payments of long-terin debt

Collateral received (posted) under swap agreements

Proceeds from restricted contributions and gains
on investments

Net cash provided by financing activities

Increase in cash and cash cquivalcnis
Cash and cash equivalcnts at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

See lidnted £i P Sy i1s.

ipanying sotes to

1312-1179290

Year Ended December 31
2013 2012
$ 863,522 § 705,408
208,828 187,956
253,989 212,305
(5,893) (1,044)
5,909 1,088
46 24
(41,236) 52
(70,912) (4,444)
(152,645) -
(10,039) (8,355)
2 1 can
(476,014) (538,587)
(243,799) (233,392)
. 5,035 20,618
160,561 (65,307)
409 24,398
9,393 9,451
507,154 310,171
(385,695) (280,863)
2,590 7,431
12,280 -
(352,931) (970,653)
431,263 887,970
(66,043) (21,925)
(358,536) (378,040)
119,956 162,881
(144,014) (33,2371)
4,330 (4,330)
36,394 37,704
16,666 163,018
165,284 95,149
397,945 302,796
$ 563,229 $ 397.945




Advocate Health Care Network and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Dollars in Thousands)

" December 31, 2013

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization

Advocate Health Care Network (the System) is a nonprofit, faith-based health care organization
dedicated to providing comprehensive health care services, including inpatient acute and
non-acute care, primary and specialty physician services, and various outpatient services to
communities in northern and central Illinois. Additionally, through long-term academic and
teaching affiliations, the System trains resident physicians. The System is affiliated with the
United Church of Christ and Evangelical Lutheran Church of America. Substantially all

“"expenses of the System are related to providing health care services.

=

~u ey

ar On June 1, 2013, the System and Sherman Hospital completed an affiliation agreement pursuant

to which the System became the sole corporate member of Sherman Hospital. Additionally, on
June 1, 2013, the name of Sherman Hospital was changed to Advocate Sherman Hospital

- (Sherman). Sherman is the sole member of various not-for-profit corporations or the shareholder
- oftvarious business corporations engaged in the delivery of health care services or the provision

of goods and services ancillary thereto, which include a rehabilitation and skilled nursing facility
(Sherman West Court), a home health care company, and an employed physician medical group.
The affiliation has been accounted for as an acquisition in accordance with the authoritative
guidance on not-for-profit mergers and acquisitions and is described in Note 13. The operations
of Sherman have been included in the System’s consolidated financial statements since the
affiliation date,

Mission and Community Benefit

As a faith-based health care organization, the mission, values, and philosophy of the System
form the foundation for its strategic priorities. The System’s mission is to serve the health care
needs of individuals, families, and communities through a holistic philosophy rooted in the
fundamental understanding of human beings as created in the image of God. The System’s core
values of compassion, equality, excellence, partnership, and stewardship guide its actions to
provide health care services to its communities. Consistent with the values of compassion and
stewardship, the System makes a major commitment to patients in need, regardless of their
ability to pay. This care is provided to patients who meet the criteria established under the
System’s charity care policy. Patients eligible for consideration can earn up to 600% of the
federal poverty level. Qualifying patients can receive up to 100% discounts from charges and
extended payment plans. In 2013 and 2012, $475,849 and $396,815, respectively, of patient

132117929 8
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Advocate Health Care Network and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars in Thousands)

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

charges were forgone under this policy. The System’s cost of providing charity care in 2013 and
2012, as determined using the 2012 Medicare cost-to-charge ratio, was $126,502 and $103 ,636,
respectively.

The System. is also involved in other numerous wide-ranging community benefit activities that
include providing health education, immunizations for children, support groups, health
screenings, health fairs, pastoral care, home-delivered meals, transportation services, seminars
and speakers, crisis lines, publication of health magazines, medical residency and internships,
research and language assistance, and other subsidized health services. These activities are
provided free of charge or at a fee that is below the cost of J providing them. The cost of these
activities and the costs of uncompensated care for 2013 will be included in.a community benefit
report that will be filed with the Office of the Attorney General for the State of Illinois in
June 2014.

e

T

Principles of Consolidation

Included in the System’s consolidated financial statements are all of its wholly owned or
controlled subsidiaries. All s1gmﬁcant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates, assumptions,
-and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and amounts disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements at the date of the consolidated financial
statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Although estimates are considered to be fairly stated at the time made, actual
results could differ materially from those estimates.

Cash Equivalents

The System considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

1312-1179290 9
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Advocate Health Care Network and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars in Thousands)

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments

The Systern has designated substantially all of its investments as trading. Certain debt-related
investments are designated as non-trading. Investments in debt and equity securities with readily
determinable fair values are measured at fair value using quoted market prices or other
observable inputs. The non-trading portfolio consists mainly of cash equivalents, money market,
and commercial paper. Investments in limited partnerships that invcst in marketable securities
and derivative products (hedge funds) are reported usmg the equity method of accounting based
on information provided by the respective partncrship. Investments in private equity limited

partnerships with ownership percentages of 5% or greater are recorded on the equity method of -
accounting, while those with ownership percentages of 5% or less are recorded on the cost::

method of accounting. Investment income or loss (including realized gains and losscs, interest,
dividends, changes in equity of limited partnerships, and unrealized gains and losses) is included

in investment income unless the income or loss is restricted by donor or law or is related to assets .
designated for self-insurance- programs. Investment income on self-insurance trust funds is .

reported in other revenue. Unrealized gains and losses that arc restricted by donor or-law are
reported as a change in temporarily restricted net asscts.

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use consist of investments set aside by the Board of Directors for future
capital improvements and certain medical education and health care programs. The Board of
Directors retains control of these investments and may, at its discretion, subsequently use them
for other purposes. Additionally, assets limited as to use include investments held by trustces
under debt agreements and sclf-insurance trusts.

Patient Service Revenue and Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable are stated at net realizable valuc. The System evaluates the
collectibility of'its accounts receivable based on the length of time the receivable is outstanding,
major payor sources of revenue, historical collection experience, and trends in health care
insurance programs to estimate the appropriate allowance and provision for uncollectible
accounts, For receivables associated with services provided to patients who have third-party
coverage, the System analyzes contractually due amounts and provides an allowance for
contractual allowances and an allowance and a provision for uncollectible accounts for patient

1312-1179290 10

167




Advocate Health Care Network and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars in Thousands)

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

responsibilities under such contracts that are deemed not realizable. For receivables associated
with self-pay patients, the System records a significant provision for uncollectible accounts in the
period of service on the basis of its past experience, which indicates that many patients do not
pay the portion of their bill for which they are financially responsible. These adjustments are
accrued on an estimated basis and are adjusted as needed in future periods.

The allowance for uncollectible accounts as a percentage of accounts receivable increased from
23% in 2012 to 24% in 2013 primarily due to an increase in self-pay accounts receivables
compounded by decreases in Medicaid accounts receivables, net of contractual allowances. The
decrease in Medicaid receivables was priniarily due to the increased cash collections received
from the State of Illinois duting 2013. The System’s combined allowance for uncollectible
accounts receivable, uninsured discounts, and charity care covered 100% of self-pay accounts
receivable at December 31, 2013 and 2012, ’

The System has agreements with third-party”payors that provide for payments to the System at
amounts different from its established rates. For uninsured patients who do not qualify for
charity care, the System recognizes revenue at the time of service on the basis of its standard
raies less the self-pay discount. Patient service revenue, net of contractual allowances, the
provision for charity care, and other discounts (but before the provision for uncollectible
accounts), is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors,
and others for service rendered, including estimated adjustments under reimbursement
agreements with third-party payors, certain of which are subject to audit by administering
agencies. These adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis and are adjusted as needed in
future periods.

Patient service revenue, net of the provision for charity care, contractual allowances, and other
discounts (but before the provision for uncollectible accounts), recognized in the period from
these major payor sources is as follows for the years ended December 31:

Patient Service Revenue (Net of Contractual Allowances and Discounts)

2013 _ 2012
Third-party payors $ 4,040,300 $ 3,708,644
Self-pay 428168 397,027
Total all payors $ 4,468,468 $ 4,105,671

1312-1179290 11
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Advocate Health Care Network and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars in Thousarids)

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Inventories

Inventories, consisting primarily of medical supplies and phatmaceuticals, are stated at the lower
of cost (first-in, first-out) or market value.

Reinsurance Receivables

" Reinsurance receivables are recogrized in a manner consistent with the liabilities relating to the

underlying reinsured contracts.

Deferred Costs mo e
Deferred costs consist primarily of noncurrent deferred tax assets and deferred bond issuance
costs. Deferred bond issuance costs are amottized over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest method. i} ae

Asset Impairment

The System considers whether indicators of impairment are present and performs the necessary

tests to determine if the carrying value of an asset is appropriate. Impairment write-downs, -

except for those related to investments, are recognized in operating income at the time the
impairment is identified.

Property and Equipment

Provisions for depreciation of property and equipment are based on the estimated useful lives of
the assets ranging from 3 to 80 ycars using the straight-line method.

Asset Retirement Obligations

The System recognizes its-legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets
that result from the acquisition, construction, development, or normal operations of long-lived
assets when these obligations are incurred. The obligations are recorded as a noncurrent liability
and are accreted to present value at the end of each period, When the obligation is incurred, an
amount equal to the present value of the liability is added to the cost of the related asset and is

1312-1179290 12
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Advocate Health Care Network and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars in Thousands)

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

depreciated over the life of the related asset. The obligations at December 31, 2013 and 2012,
were $19,197 and $19,249, respectively.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The System has entered into derivative transactions to manage its interest rate risk, Derivative

instruments are recorded as either assets or liabilities at fair value. Subsequent changes in a

derivative’s fair value are recognized in nonoperating income (loss). o

General and Professional Liability Risks 7
. i

The provision for self-insured general and professional liability claims includes estimates of the

ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not reported.

Temporarily and Perm;nently Restricted Net Assets . "

Temporarily restricted net assets are those assets whose use by the System has been limited by
donors to a specific time period or purpose. Permanently restricted net assets consist of gifts with
corpus values that have been restricted by donors to be maintained in perpetuity. Temporarily
restricted net assets and earnings on permanently restricted net assets are used in accordance with
the donor’s wishes primarily to purchase property and equipment or to fund medical education or
other health care programs,

Assets released from restriction to fund purchases of property and equipment are reported in the
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets as increases to unrestricted net
assets. Those assets released from restriction for operating purposes are reported in the
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets as other revenue. When
restricted, earnings are recorded as temporarily restricted net assets until amounts aré expended
in accordance with the donor’s specifications.

Capitation Revenue

The System has agreements with various managed care organizations under which the System
provides or arranges for medical care to members of the organizations in return for a monthly

payment per member. Revenue is earned each month as a result of agreeing to provide or arrange -

for their medical care.

1312-1179290 13
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Advocate Health Care Network and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars in Thousands)

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Other Nonoperating Items, Net

Other nonoperating items, net primarily consist of provisions for environmental remediation,
contributions to charitable organizations, valuation adjustments for investments on the equity
method of accounting, and income taxes.

Revenues in Excess of Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

The consolidated’statcments of opcrations and changes in net asscts include revenues if excess
of expenses as the performance indicator. Changes in unrestrictéd net assets, which are excluded
fromnrevenues in excess of expenses, primarily include contributions of long-lived assets
(including assets acquired using contributions, which by donor restriction were to be used for the
purposes of acquiring such assets) and postretirement benefit adjustments.

Grants

Grant revenue is recognized in the period it is earned based on when the applicable project
expenses are incurred and project milestones are achieved. Grant payments received in advance
of related project expenses are recorded as deferred revenue until the expenditure has been
incurred. The System records grant revenue in other revenue in the consolidated statements of
operations and changes in net assets.

Under certain provisions of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, federal
incentive payments are available to hospitals, physicians, and certain other professionals when
they adopt certified electronic health record (EHR) technology or become “meaningful users” of
EHRs in ways that demonstrate improved quality, safety, and effectiveness of care. These
incentive payments are being accounted for in the same manner as grant revenue.

New Accounting Pronouncement

In December 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued guidance that enhances
disclosures about financial and derivative instruments that are either offset on the consolidated
balance sheet or subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement,
irrespective of whether they are offset on the consolidated balance sheet. Adoption of this new
guidance on-January 1, 2013, did not have a material effect on the System’s consolidated
financial statements.

1312-1179290 14
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Advocate Health Care Network and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars in Thousands)

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Reclassifications in the Consolidated Financial Statements

Certain reclassifications were made to the 2012 consolidated financial statements to conform to
the classifications used in 2013. There was no impact on previously reported 2012 net assets or
revenues in excess of expenses.

2. Contractual Arrangements With Third-Party Payors
-

The System provides care to certain patients under payment arrangements with Medicare,
Medicaid, Health Care Service Corporation, d/b/a Blu¢ Cross and Blue Shield of Illinois (Blue
Cross), and various other health maintenance and preferred provider organizations. Services
provided under these arrangements are paid at predetermined rates and/or reimbursable costs, as
defined. Reported costs and/or services provided under certain of the arrangements are subject to
audit by the administering agencies. Changes in Medicare and Medicaid programs and reduction

- of funding levels could have a material adverse effect on the future amounts recognized as

patient service revenue.

Amounts earned from the above payment arrangements accounted for 94% and 92% of the
System’s net patient service revenue in 2013 and 2012, respectively. For the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012, the System earned 30% of net patient service revenue from Blue
Cross; 11% and 10%, respectively, from the Medicaid program; and 25% and 26%, respectively,
from the Medicare program. Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements for
contractual adjustments, representing the difference between the established charges for services
and actual or estimated payment. The extreme complexity of laws and regulations governing the
Medicare and Medicaid programs renders at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates
will change by a material amount in the near term. Changes in the estimates that relate to prior
years’ third-party payment arrangements resulted in increases in net patient service revenue of
$20,899 and $1,510 for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Also, in 2013 the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services approved the enhanced Medicaid
assessment system retroactive to June 10, 2012, In 2013 the System recognized $26,601 in net
patient service revenue and $15,871 in other operating expenses for the first 18 months covered
by this system. '
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2. Contractual Arrangements With Third-Party Payors (continued)

In connection with the State of Illinois’ Hospital Assessment Program, including the enhanced
Medicaid assessment system, the System recognized $224,082 and $145,198 of net patient
service revenue and $154,873 and $106,219 of program assessment expense in other expense in
2013 and 2012, respectively.

In 2012, as part of the Medicare Rural Floor Budget Neutrality Act settlement, the System
recognized $29,302 in net patient service revenue and $2,930 in operating expenses as part of
purchased services and operating supplies. The System’s concentration of credit risk related to

accounts receivable is limited due to the diversity of patients and payors. The System grants
credit, without collaterakzto its patients, most of whom are local residents and insured under-

third-party payor arrangements. The System- has established guidelines for placing patient
balances with collection agencies, subject to terms of certain restrictions on collection efforts as
determined by the System. Amounts due to/from primary third-party payors in the consolidated
balance sheets primarily~ relate to the Blue Cross, Medicare, or Medicaid programs. At
December 31, 2013 and 2012, 16% and 17%; respectively, of net patient accounts receivable
were due under contracts with Blue Cross and 14% were due from the Medicaid program. Net
patient accounts receivable due from the Medicare program were 11% and 10% at December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively.

The System has entered into various capitated physician provider agreements, including Humana
Health Plan, Inc. and Humana Insurance Company and their affiliates (collectively, Humana);
Cigna-HealthSpring; and WellCare Health Plans, Inc. Capitation revenues received under the
agreements with Humana amounted to 38% of the System’s capitation revenue for the years
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. Capitation revenues received under Cigna-HealthSpring
arid WellCare Health Plans, Inc. agreements amounted to 26% of the System’s capitation
revenue for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements for the estimated cost of
providing certain medical services under the aforementioned capitated arrangements. The
System accrues a liability for reported, as well as an estimate for incurred but not recorded
(IBNR), contracted medical services. The liability represents the expected ultimate cost of all
reported and unreported claims unpaid at year-end. The System uses the services of a consulting
actuary to determine the estimated cost of the IBNR claims. Adjustinents to the estimates are
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2. Contractual Arrangements With Third-Party Payors (continued)

reflected in current year operations. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the liabilities for unpaid
medical claims amounted to $21,107 and $20,621, respectively, and are included in accrued

expenses in the consolidated balance sheets.

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments (Including Assets Limited as to Use)

Investments (including assets limited as to use) and other financial instruments at December 31

are summarized as follows:

AT 2013 2012

Assets hmued astouse: ™
Designated for self-insurance programs $ 807,145 § 839,810
Internally and extetnally desngnated for capital improvements, )
medical education, and health carc programs . 3,836,378 3,243,800
Externally designated under debt agreements - 161,656 217,614
Investments under securities lending program 19,013 21,014
4,824,192 4,322,238

Other financial instruments:

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments 582,630 419,473
: $ 5406822 § 4,741,711

The composition and carrying value of assets limited as to use, short-term investments, and cash

and cash equivalents at December 31 are set forth in the following table:

2013 2012

Cash and short-term investments $ 956,883 § 648,201
Corporate bonds and other debt sccurities 326,163 426,203
United States government obligations 199,689 151,743
Government mutual funds ) 502,072 643,506
Bond and other debt security mutual funds 479,855 513,124
Commodity mutual funds 4,631 4,666
Hedge funds 895,222 695,862
Private equity limited partnership ﬁmds 336,536 289,820
Equity securities 1,083,000 1,028,242
Equity mutual funds 605,553 340,344
Guaranteed investment contract 17,218 -~

$ 5406822 % 4,741,711

1312-1179290
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3. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments (Including Assets Limited as to Use)
(continned)

The System regularly compares the net asset value (NAV), which is a proxy for the fair value of
its private equity investments, to the recorded cost for potential other-than-temporary
impairment, The NAV of these investments based on estimates determined by the investments’
management was $378,429 and $310,837 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. In 2013
and 2012, the System identified and recorded $5,381 and $6,100, respectively, of impairment
losses that are included in investment income in the consolidated statements of operations and
changes in net assets.

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the System has commitments to fund private equity
investments an additional $364,934 and $442,301, respectively. The unfunded commitments at
December 31, 2013, are expected to be funded over the next seven years.

Investment returns for assets limited as to use, cash and cash equivalents, and short-term
investments comprise the following for the years ended December 31:

o

2013 2012
Interest and dividend income . : $ 151,877 $§ 160,350
Net realized gains 121,330 93,763
Net unrealized gains 69,520 184,525

$ 342,727 $ 438,638

Investment returns are included in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net
assets for the years ended December 31 as follows:

2013 2012
Other revenuc $ 48273 § 49,005
Investment income 287,727 380,749
Realized and unrealized gains on investments —
temporarily restricted net assets 6,727 8,884

$ 342,727 § 438,638
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3. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments (Including Assets Limited as to Use)
(continued)

As part of the management of the investment portfolio, the System has entered into an
arrangement whereby securities owned by the System are loaned primarily to brokers and
investment banks. The loans are arranged through a bank. Borrowers are required to post
collateral in the form of highly rated government securities for securities borrowed cqual to
approximately 102% and 100% in 2013 and 2012, respectively, of the value of the security on a
daily basis at a minimum. The bank is responsible for reviewing the creditworthiness of the
borrowers. The System has also enteted into an arrangement whereby the bank is responsible for
the risk of borrower bankruptcy and default. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the System loaned
$19,013 and $21,014, respectively, in securities-and accepted collateral for these loans in the
amount of $19740.and $21,069, respectively, of which $19,165 and $20,794, resgettively,
represent cash collateral and are included in current liabilities and current assets, respectively, in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

4. Fair Value Mcasurements o

The System accounts for certain assets and liabilities at fair value. The hierarchy below lists
three levels of fair value based on the extent to which inputs used in measuring fair value are
observable in active markets. The System categorizes each of its fair value measurements in one
of the three levels based on the highest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety. These levels are:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identified assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs, other than quoted priccs in active markets, that are observable either directly
or indirectly.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data, which then requires
the reporting entity to develop its own assumptions about what market participants would use
in pricing the asset or liability.
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4. Fair Value Measurements (continucd)

The following section describes the valuation methodologies the System uses to measure
financial assets and liabilities at fair value. In general, where applicable, the System uses quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities to determine fair value. This pricing
methodology applies to Level 1 investments such as domestic and international cquities,
United States Treasuries, exchange-traded mutual funds, and agency securities. If quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets and liabilities are not available to determine fair value, then
quoted prices for similar assets and liabilitics or inputs other than quoted prices that are

observable either dircctly or indirectly are used. These investments are included in Level 2 and .

consist primarily of corporate notes and bonds, foreign government bonds, mortgage-backed
securities;-commercial paper, and certain agency securities. The fair*value for the obligations
under swapuwagreements included in Level2 is estimated using industry standard valuation
models. "These models project future cash flows and discount the future amounts‘¢o a present
value using market-based observable inputs, including interest rate curves. The fair values of the
obligation under swap agreements include fair value adjustments related to the System’s credit
risk. = - .

The guaranteed investment contract (GIC) is included as a Level 2 investment. As described in
Note 6, the Sherman Series 2007A Bonds require a dcbt service reserve fund that is invested.in a
GIC. This investment represents a privately negotiated agreement between Sherman and various
banks. Although the invesiment is not traded on any market and is nontransferablc for the
duration of the bonds, the underlying assets are traded in active markets.

The System’s investments are cxposed to various kinds and levels of risk. Equity securities and
equity mutual funds expose the System to market risk, performance risk, and liquidity risk for
both domestic and international investments. Market risk is the risk associated with major
movements of the equity markets. Performance risk is the risk associated with a company’s
operating performance. Fixed income securities and fixed income mutual funds expose the
System to interest rate risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk. As intcrest rates change, the value of
many fixed income securities is affected, including those with fixed interest rates. Credit risk is
the risk that the obligor of the security will not fulfill its obligations. Liquidity risk is affected by
the willingness of market participants to buy and scll particular securities. Liquidity risk tends to
be higher for equitics related -to small capitalization companies and certain alternative
investments, Due to the volatility in the capital markets, there is a reasonable possibility of
subsequent changes in fair value resulting in additional gains and losses in the near term.
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4. Fair Value Mcasurements (continued)

The following are assets and liabilitics measured at fair value on a recusring basis at

December 31, 2013:
Fair Value Mcasurements at
Reporting Date Using
Quoted Pricesin  Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable  Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Description 2013 (Level1) (Level 2) (Level3)

Assets
“Cash and short-term investments ~ $ 956,883 $
Corporate bonds and other debt

952,558 $ .. 4325 S

securities 326,163 - 326,163 -
.Inited States government
... obligations 199,689 -, 199,689 -
Government mutual funds 502,072 410,712 - 91,360 -
Bond and other debt security e

mutual funds 479,855 290,815 189,040 -
Commodity mutual funds 4,631 - 4,631 -
Equity secutities 1,083,000 1,083,000 - -
Equity mutual funds 605,553 463,931 141,622 -
Guaranteed investment contract 17,218 - 17,218 -
Investments at fair value 4,175,064 § 3201,016 § 974,048 § -
Investments not at fair value 1,231,758
Total investments $ 5,406,822
Collaterel proceeds received under

securities lending program $ 19,165 3 19,165
Linbilities
Obligations under swap

agreements $ (47,908) s (47,908)
Net liability under swap

agreements $ !47!908! 5 (47,908)
Obligations to return collatera)

under securities lending

program $ (19,440 $ (19,4440)
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4. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

The following are assets and liabilities measured at fair value an a recurring basis at
December 31, 2012:

Fair Value Measurements at

Reporting Date Using
Quoted Prices in  Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable  Unobservable
Assets Inputs * Inputs
Description 2612 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets o '
Cash and short-term investments ~ § 648201 $ 646,169 $ 2,032 $ -
Corporate bonds and other debt :
securities 426,203 - 426,203 ~
United States government . .
obligations 151,743 - 151,743 -
Government mutual funds 643,506 535,188 108,318 -
Bond and other debt security
mutual funds 513,124 289,388 223,736 -
Commodity mutual funds 4,666 - " 4,666 -
Equity sccurities 1,028,242 1,028,242 - ~
Equity mutual funds 340,344 248,234 92,110 -
Investments at fair value 3,756,020 $ 2,747221 § 1008808 § -~
Invesiments not at fair value 985,682
Total investments $ 474,711
Collateral proceeds received under
securities lending program $ 20,794 $ 20,794
Liabilities
Obligations under swap
agreements $ (89,144) $ (89,144)
Collateral under swap agreements 4,330 . 4,330
Net liability under swap -
agreements $ (84,314) $ (84,814)
Obligations to return collateral
under securities lending
program $ (21 ,069! $ (21,0692
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4. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

The carrying: values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and payable, accrued
expenses, and short-term borrowings arc rcasonable estimates of their fair values due to the
short-term nature of these financial instruments.

Investments not at fair value include hedge funds and private equity limited partnerships
(alternative investments). The fair values of the alternative investments that do not have readily
determinable fair values are determined by the general partner or fund manager taking into
consideration, among other things, the cost of the securities or other investments, prices of recent
significant transfers of like &3scts, and subsequent developments concerning the companies or
other assets to which the alternative investments relate. Based on the inputs in determining the
estimated fair value of these investments, these assets would be considered Level 3.

The valuation for the estimated fair value of long-term debt is completed by a third-party service
and takes into account a number of factors including, but not limited to, any one or more of the
following: (i) general interest rate and market conditions; (ii) macroeconomic and/or deal-
specific credit fundamentals; (iii) valuations of other financial instruments that may be
comparable in terms of rating, structure, maturity, and/or covenant protection; (iv) investor
opinions about the respective deal parties; (v) size of the transaction; (vi) cash flow projections,
which in turn are based on assumptions about certain parameters that include, but are not limited
to, default, recovery, prepayment, and rcinvestment rates; (vii) administrator reports, asset
manager cstimatcs, broker quotations, and/or trustee reports, and (viii) comparable trades, where
observable. Based on the inputs in determining the estimated fair value of debt, this liability
would be considered Level 2. The cstimated fair value of long-tcrm debt based on quoted market
prices for the same or similar issues was $1,573,401 and $1,385,228 at December 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively, which included consideration of third-party credit enhancements, of which
there was no effect.
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5. Interest in Health Care and Related Entities

During 2000, in connection with the acquisition of a medical center, the System acquired an
intercst in the net assets of the Masonic Family Health Foundation (the Foundation), an
independent organization, under the terms of an asset purchase agreement (the Agreement). The
use of substantially all of the Foundation’s net assets is designated to support the operations
and/or capital needs of one of the System’s medical facilities. Additionally, 90% of the
Foundation’s investment yield, net of expenses, on substantially all of thc Foundation’s
investments is designated for the support of one of the System’s medical facilities. The
Toundation must pay the System, annually, 90% of the investment yield or an agreed-upon
percentage of the beginning of the year net assets.

The intercst in the net assets of this organization amounted to $91,400 and $82,700 as.eof
Dccember 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, which {5’ reflected in interest in health care and
related entities in the consolidated balance sheets. The System’s interest in the investment yield
is reflected in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets and amounted
to $13,348 and $8,959 for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Cash
distributions received by the System from the Foundation under terms of the Agreement
amounted to $4,531 and $3,998 during the years- ended December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. In addition to the amounts distributed under the Apgreement, the Foundation
contributed $931 and $445 to the Systcm for program support of one of its medical facilities
during the years ended Decomber 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The System has a 50% membership and governance interest in Advocate Health Partners (d/b/a
Advocate Physician Partners) (APP), which has been accounted for on an equity basis, The
System’s carrying value in this interest was $0 at December 31, 2013 and 2012. Financial
information relating to this interest as of and for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, is
as follows:

2013 2012
Asscts $ 144491 $§ 162,604
Liabilities 145,085 158,888

Revenues in excess of expenses : - -
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5. Interest in Health Care and Related Entities (continned)

The System contracts with APP for certain opcrational and administrative services. Total
expenses incurred for these services were $25,291 and $22,271 in 2013 and 2012, rcspectively,
which is inctuded in purchased services and operating supplics and other in the consolidated
- statements of operations and changes in net asscts, At December 31, 2013.and 2012, the System
had an accrued liability to APP for those services for $1,226 and $1,703, respectively, which is
included in accrued cxpenses in the consolidated balance sheets.

APP purchased claims processing and certain management services from the System in the
amounts of $8,810 and $7,773 in 2013 and 2012, respectively, which is included in other
revenue in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. Under terms of an
agreement with the SystemgAPP reimburses the System for salaries, benefits, and other expenscs
that are incurred by the System on APP’s behalf. The amount billed for thesc scrvices in 2013
and 2012 was $23,018 and $20,775, respectively, which is included in other revenue in the
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets, The System had-a.receivable
from APP at December 312013 and 2012, for claims processing and management services of
$5,155 and $4,557, respectively, which is included in prepaid cxpenses, inventories, and other
current assets in the consolidated balance sheets.
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6. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt, net of unamortized original issue discount or premium, consisted of the

following at December 31:

2013

2012

Revenue bonds and revenue refunding bonds, Hlinois Finance Authority
Scries: '

1993C, 6.00% to 7.00%, principal payablc in varying annual

installments through April 2018 s 19,857 $
2003 A (weighted-average rate of 4.38% during 2013 and 2012),

principal payable in varying annual installments through

November 2022; intcrest based on prevailing market conditions at

time of remarkcting - 21,930
2003C (weighted-average rate of 0.22% and 0.30% during 2013 and i

2012, respecfively), principal payable in varying annual

intallments through November 2022; interest based on prevailing

market conditions at time of remarkcting : 21,225
2007A Sherman, 5.50%, principal payable in varying annuat - - .

instaliments:through August 2037 176,970,
2008A (weighted-average rate 0f 4.76% and 2.03% during 2013 and

2012, respectivety), principal payable in varying annual

installments through November 2030; interest based on prevailing

market conditions at time of remurketing 141,306
2008C (weighted-average rate of 0.37% and 0.45% during

2013 and 2012, respectively), principal payable in varying annual

installments through November 2038; interest based on prevailing

market conditions at time of remarketing 343,270
2008D, 5.00% to 6.50%, principal payablc in vatying annual

installments through November 2038 156,125
2010A, 5.50%, principal payable in verying annual installments

through April 2044 37,277
2010B, 5.38%, principal payable in varying arinual instalfments

through April 2044 52,192
2010C, 5.38%, principal payable in varying annual installments

through April 2044 25,536

1312-1179280
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6. Long-Term Debt (continued)

2013 2012
Revenue bonds and revenue refunding honds, Illinois Finance Authority
Series {continued):
2010D, 4.00% to 5.25%, principal payable in varying annual installments
through April 2038 $ 110289 $ 116,464
2011A, 3.00% 1o 5.00%, principal payablc in varying annual installments .
through April 2041 38,511 41,366
2011B (weighted-average rate of 0.21% and 0.28% during
2013 and 2012, respectively), principal payablc in varying annual
installments through April 2051, subjcct to a put provision that
provides for a cumulative seven-month notice and remarketing period;
~ interest tied to a market index plus a spread E 70,000 70,000
2011C (weighted-average rate of 0.83% and 0.87% during .
7013 and 2012, respectively), principal payable in varying annual e
installments through April 2049, subject to a put provision at the'gnd
of the initial seven-year period; interest tied to a market index plusa .
spread 50,000 50,000
2011D (weighted-average rate of 0.93% and 0.97% during
2013 and 2012, respectively), principal payable in varying annual v
installments through April 2049, subject to a put provision at the end
of the inilial 10-year period; interest tied to a market index plus &
spread 50,000 50,000
2012, 4.00% to 5.00%, principal payable in varying annual installments .
through June 2047 149,852 149,991
2013A, 3.00% to 5.00%, principal payable in varying annual Installments
through June 2031 102,946 -
Capital lcasc obligations 30,711 31,113
Other 71,052 7,469
1,605,049 1,349,356
Less current portion of long-term debt 17,810 19,103
187,795

Less [ong-term debt subject to short-term remarketing arrangements 135,136

$ 1452169 § 1,142458

1312-1£79290

Maturities of long-term debt, capital lcases, and sinking fund .requirements, assuming
remarketing of the variable rate demand revenue refunding bonds, for the five years ending
December 31, 2018, are as follows: 2014 — $17,810; 2015 - $20,074; 2016 — $19,722; 2017 -
$20,933; and 2018 — $23,082.

The System’s unsecured variable rate revenue _bonds, Series 2003A of $21,930, Series 2003C of
$21,225, Series 2008C-3B of $21,975, and Serics 2011B of $70,000, while subject to a long-
term amortization period, may be put to the System at the option of the bondholders in
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6. Long-Term Debt (continued)

connection with certain rcmarketing dates. To the extent that bondholders may, under the terms

of the debt, put their bonds within a maximum of 12 months after December 31, 2013, the

principal amount of such bonds has been classified as a current obligation in the accompanying

consolidated balance shcets, Management believes the likelihood of a material 2mount of bonds

being put to the System is remote. However, to address this possibility, the System has taken

steps to provide various sources of liquidity, including assessing alternate sources of financing,
" including lines of credit and/or unrestricted assets as a source of self-liquidity.

The System has standby bond purchase agreement with banks to provide liquidity support for the

- Séries 2008C Bonds, In the event of a failed remarketing of 4 Series 2008C Bond upon its tender
by: an existing holder and subject to compliance with thesterms of thc standby bond purchase
agreement, the standby bank would provide the funds for the purchase of such tendered bonds,
and the System would be obligatcd to repay the bank for the funds it provided for such bond
purchase (if -such bond is not subsequently remarketed),. with the first installment of such
repayment commencing on the date one year and onc day after the bank purchases the bond. As
of December 31, 2013 and 2012, therc were no bank purchased bonds outstanding. The
agreements expire in August 2015, August 2016, aitd August 2017.

All System outstanding bonds are secured by obligations issued under the Amended and
Restated Master Trust Indenture dated as of September 1, 2011, with Advocate Health Care
Network, Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation, Advocate Condeli, and’ Advocate North
Side (the Obligated Group or Restricted Affiliates) and U.S. Bank National Association, as
master trustee (the System Master Indenture). Under the terms of the bond indentures and other
arrangements, various amounts are to bc on deposit with trustees, and certain specified payments
are required for bond redcmption and interest payments, The System Master Indenture and other
debt agrecments, including a bank credit agreement, also place restrictions on the System and
require the System to maintain certain financial ratios.

On August 8, 2013, the Hlinois Finance Authority, for the benefit of the System, issued its
Revenue Bonds, Series 20134, in the amount of $96,905. The proceeds of the Series 2013A
Bonds were used, together with other funds available to the System, to finance, refinance, or
reimburse the System for a portion of the costs related to the acquisition, construction,
renovation, and equipping of certain capital projects and to pay certain costs of issuing the Series
2013A Bonds.
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6. Long-Terim Debt (continued)

On November 29, 2012, the Ulinois Finance Authority, for the benefit of the System, issued its
Revenue Bonds, Series 2012, in the amount of $145,620. The proceeds of the Series 2012 Bonds
were used, together with other funds available to the System, to finance, refinance, or reimburse
the System for a portion of the costs related to the acquisition, construction, renovation, and
equipping of certain capital projects and to pay certain costs of issuing the Series 2012 Bonds.

In 2013, the Scrics 2008A-1 Bonds and Series 2008A-2 Bonds, which currently bear interest at a
fixed interest rate set for a specified period, were remarketed at a premium for an approximate
seven-year period, and a portion of the outstanding par was redeemed in the amount of $9,095
and-$7,735, respectively. ] e

Tié System maintains an interest rate swap program on certain of its variable rate debt as
described in Note 7. .

Neither Sherman, Sherman West Court, nor any- other of the subsidiaries of Sherman are
members of the Obligated Group or Restricted Affiliates under the System Master Indenture,
Sh¥rman and Sherman West Court are the members of an obligated group (Sherman Obligated
Group) created pursuant to a master trust indenture datcd as of August 1, 1991, as supplemented
and amended (Sherman Master Indenture) with The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company,
N.A., as master trustee. As part cof the affiliation with the System on June 1, 2013, the System did
not assume the liability for or otherwise guarantee any bonds (Sherman Bonds) previously issued
for the benefit of the Sherman Obligatcd Group.

On July 5, 2013, Sherman retired $105,700 of the Sherman Bonds (Series 1997 bonds) with
praceeds of an intercompany loan from the System. Sherman remains obligated for the
repayment of $170,000 Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Bonds, Serics 2007A issued for its
bencfit and evidenced by and secured as provided under the Sherman Master Indenture.

The Sherman Series 2007A Bonds are secured by a direct notc obligation issued by Sherman
under the Sherman Master Indenture, a mortgage and security agreement on certain of Sherman’s
real and personal property, as well as a security interest in unrestricted reccivables of Sherman.
The related bond indenture requires a debt scrvice reserve fund, which is held by the bond trustee
for the benefit of the Sherman Series 2007A Bonds. The debt service reserve fund had a balance
of $17,218 at December 31, 2013, and is presented as assets limited as to use on the consolidated
balance sheet.

1312-1179250 29

186




Advocate Health Care Network and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars in Thousands)

6. Long-Term Debt (continued)

Interest paid, net of capitalized interest, amounted to $56,038 and $42,726 in 2013 and 2012,
respectively. The System capitalized interest of $5,065 and $2,621 in 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

At December 31, 2013, the System had lines of credit with banks.aggregating to $200,000. These
lines of credit provide for vatious interest rates and payment terms and expire as follows:
$25,000 in February 2014, $50,000 in December 2014, $75,000 in March 2015, and $50,000 in
November 2016. These lines of credit may be used to redeem bonded indebtedness, to pay costs
related to such redemptions, for capital expenditures, or for general working capital purposes. At
Deccmiver 31; 2013, no amounts were outstﬂndmg on these lines of credit. e

Tn Febiuary 2014, 2 $25,000 line of credit was extended to February 2015, e
7. Derivatives

* The System has interest rate-related derivative instruments to manage exposure of its variable
rate débt instruments and does not enter into derivative instruments for any purpuose other than
risk management purposes. By using dcrivative financial instruments to manage the risk of
changes in interest ratcs, the System exposes itself to credit risk and market risk. Credit risk is
the failure of the counterparty to perform under the terms of the derivative contracts, When the
fair value of a derivative contract is positive, the counterparty owes the System, which creates
credit risk for the System, When the fair value of a derivative contract is negative, the System
owes the counterparty, and therefore, it does not possess credit risk. The System minimizes the
credit risk in derivative instruments by entering into transactions that require the counterparty to
post collateral for the benefit of the System based on the credit rating of the counterparty and the
fair value of the derivative contract. Marlket risk is the adverse effect on the value of a financial
instrument that results from a change in intcrest rates. The market risk associated with interest
tate changes is managed by cstablishing and monitoring parameters that limit the types and
degree of market risk that may be undertaken. Thc System also mitigates risk through periodic
reviews of its derivative positions in the context of its total blended cost of capital.
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7. Derivatives (continued)

At December 31, 2013, the System maintains an interest rate swap program on its Scries 2008C
variable rate demand revenue bonds. These bonds exposc the System to variability in interest
payments due to changes in intcrest rates. The System believes that it is prudent to limit the
variability of its intcrest payments. To meet this objective and to take advantage of low interest
rates, the System entered into various interest rate swap agreements to manage fluctuations in
cash flows resulting from interest rate risk. These swaps convert the variable rate cash flow
exposure on the variable rate demand revenue bonds to synthetically fixed cash flows. The
notional amount under each interest rate swap agrcement is reduced over the term of the
mspective agreement to correspond with reductions in the principal outstanding under various
bond series. The following is a summary of the outsianding positions under these interest rate
swap agreements at December 31, 2013 and 2012:

Bond Notional A Rate .

Series Amount Maturity Date Rate Received Paid .
2008C-1 $ 129900 November1,2038 ~ 61.7%of LIBOR +26bps  3.60%
2008C-2 108,425 November 1,2038 “961.7% of LIBOR +26 bps  3.60
2008C-3 88,000 November1,2038 61.7% of LIBOR +26bps  3.60

The swaps are not designated as hedging instruments, and therefore, hedge accounting has not
been applied. As such, untealized changes in fair value of the swaps are included as a component
of nonoperating income (loss) in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net
assets as changes in the fair value of interest rate swaps. The net cash settlement payments,
representing the realized changes in fair valuc of the swaps, are included as interest expense in
the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets.
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7. Derivatives (continued)

The fair value of derivative instruments is as follows:

December 31
: 2013 2012
Consolidated balance sheet location
Obligations under swap agreements $ (47908) % (89,144)
Collateral posted under swap agreetments - 4,330
Obligations under swap agreements, net $ (47,908) $  (84,814)

Amounts recorded in the consolidated statements of operations and ¢Hanges in net assets for the
derivatives are as follows:

Year Ended Deceraber 31
e 2013 2012

Consolidated statemeént of operations and changes in )

net assets location
Net cash payments on interest rate swap agreements

(interest expense) $ 10518 $ 10359
Change in the fair value of interest rate swaps

(nonoperating) ~ $ 41,236 § (52)

The aggregate fair value of all swap instruments with credit risk-related contingent features that
arc in a lability position was $47,908 and $89,144 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively,
for which the System has posted collateral of $0 and $4,330 at December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. The swap instruments contain provisions that require the System’s debt to maintain
an investment grade credit rating from certain major credit rating agencies. If the System’s debt
were to fall below investment grade on the valuation date, it would be in violation of these
provisions and the counterparty to the derivative instruments could request immediate payment
or demand immediate and ongoing full overnight collateralization on derivative instruments in
net liability positions. If the credit risk-related contingent features underlying these swap
agreements were triggered on December 31, 2013, the System would be required to post $47,908
in collateral with the counterparties.
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8. Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes at December 31:

2013 2012
Net assets currently available for:
Purchases of property and equipment $ 10617 $ 6,120
Medical education and other health care programs 70,757 67,111
Net assets available for future periods:
Purchases of property and equipment : 17,598 5,723
- Medical ediication and other health care programs = . + 12,363 11,397
- kS ' 8 111335 § 90,351
Permanently restricted nct assets generate investment income, which is used to benefit the
following purposes at December 31:
_ 013 2012
Net assets currently producing investment income: '
Purchases of property and equipment $ 1,000 $ 1,000
Medical education and other health care programs 36,558 35,166
Net assets available to produce investment income in
future periods: ‘
Medical education and other health care programs 10,008 9,248

$ 47566 § 45414
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9. Retirement Plans

The System maintains dcfined benefil pension plans, the Advocate Health Care Network Pension
Plan and Condell Health Network Retirement Plan (the Plans), which cover a majority of its
employees (associates). The Condell Health Network Retirement Plan was frozen effective
January 1, 2008, to new participants, and participants ceased to accrue additional pension
benefits. The System may elect to terminate the Condell Health Network Retirement Plan in the

future subject to the provisions set forth in Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.

A summary of changes in the plan assets, projected benefit obligation, and the resulting funded

status of the Advocate Health Care Network Pension Plan is.as follows:

12013 2012
Change in plan assets: o

Plan assets at fair value at beginning of year $ 727,394 $ 609,722
Actual return on plan assets .- 77,242 84,756
Employer contributions 31,680 63,550
Benefits paid ) (35,847) (30,634)

Plan assets at fair value at end of year - $ 800469 $ 727,39

Change in projected benefit obligation:

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 761,361 $ 687,118
Service cost 43,989 38,541
Interest cost 30,183 33,401
Actuarial (loss) gain (24,999) 32,935
Benefits paid (35,847) (30,634)

Projected benefit obligation at end of year § 774,688 $ 761,361

Plan assets greater (less) than projected benefit obligation § 25,781 $  (33,967)
Accumulated benefit obligation at end of year $§ 702,689 $ 685,791
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9. Retirement Plans (continued)

A summary of changes in the plan assets, projected benefit obligation, and the resulting funded

status of the Condell Health Network Retirement Plan is as follows:

2013 2012
Change in plan assets: .

Plan assets at fair value at beginning of year $ 40,720 $ 43,796
Actual return on plan assets 3,909 5,383
Employer contributions 270 5,465
Benefits paid (5,231} (13,924)

Plan assets at fair value at end of year C § 39668 $ 40,720

Change in projected benefit obligation: :

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of ycar $ 73469 $ 74,772
Interest cost e . 2,726 3,417
Actuarial (loss) gain N (7,559) 9,203
Benefits paid N (5,231) (13,923)

Projected benefit obligation at end of year $§ 63405 $ 73,469

Plan assets less than projected benefit obligation $ (23,737) $ (32,749)
Accumulated benefit obligation at end of year $ 63405 $ 73,469
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9. Retirement Plans (continued)

The Condell Health Network Retirement Plan paid lump sums totaling $3,864 and $12,421 in
2013 and 2012, respectively. These amounts are greater than the sum of the plan’s setvice cost
and interest cost for 2013 and 2012. As a result, the System recognized a settlement charge in the
amount of $771 and $4,101 in 2013 and 2012, respectively.

2013 2012

Net Plans’ pension expense consists of the following for
the years ended December 31:
Service cost $ 43989 § 38,541
Interest cost : . S 32,909 36,818
Expected return on plan assets . (55,734) (54,706)
Amortization of: ’
Prior service credit {4,823) . (4,823)
Recognized actuarial loss 17,412 12,496
Settlement/curtailment : 771 4,101
Net Plans’ pension expense $ 34524 § 32427

The amount “of actuarial loss and prior service cost {credit) included in other changes in
unrestricted net assets expected to be recognized in net periodic pension cost during the fi qcal
year ending December 31, 2014, is $10,284 and $4,823, respectively.

For the defined benefit plﬁns previously deseribed, changes in plans assets and benefit
obligations recognized in unrestricted net asscts during 2013 and 2012 include an actuarial loss
of $76,159 and $9,891, respectively, and net prior service credit of $4,823 in both years.

Included in unrestricted net assets at December 31 arc the following amounts that have not yet
been recognizcd in net pension expense:

2013 2012
Unrecognized prior credit $ (23417) $ (28,240)
Unrccognized actuarial loss 161,366 237,525

$ 137949 § 209,285
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9. Retirement Plans (continued)

Employer contributions were paid from employer assets. No plan assets are expected to be
returned to the employer. All benefits paid under the Plans were paid from the Plans’ assets. The
System anticipates making $18,650 in contributions to the Plans’ assets during 2014. Expected
associate benefit payments are 2014 — $50,330; 2015- $53,920; 2016 - $60,910; 2017 —
$62,440; 2018 — $67,770; and 2019 through 2023 — $378,900.

The Plans’ asset allocation and investment strategies are designed to earn returns on plan assets
consistent with a reasonable and prudent level of risk. Investments are diversified across classes,
economic sectors, and manager style 1o minimize the risk of loss. The System uses investment
managers specializing in each asset category and, where appropriate, provides the investment
. manager with specific guidelines that include allowable and/or prohibited investment types. The
System regularly monitors manager performance and compliance with investment guidelines.

The System’s target and actual pension'ésset allocations for the Advocate Health Care Network .

Pension Plan are as follows:

Actual Asset Allocation
Asset Category Target - 2013 2012
Domestic and international cquity securities 42.5% . 47.5% 44.6%
Private cquity limited partnerships and .
hedge funds 17.5 172 16.5
Fixed income secutitics 30.0 25.6 293
Real estate 10.0 8.7 8.5

Cash and cash equivalents - 1.0 1.1
: 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Within the domestic and international equity portfolio, investments are diversified among large
and mid-capitalizations (15%), non-large capitalizations (2.5%), and international and emerging
markets (25%).
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9. Retirement Plans (continued)

Fair value methodologies for Level 1 and Level 2 are consistent with the inputs described in
Note 4. Real estate commingled funds for which an active market exists are included in Level 2.
Fair value for Level 3 represents the Plans’ ownership interests in the NAVs of the respective
private equity partnerships, hedge funds, and real estate commingled funds for which active
markets do not exist. The System opted to use the NAV per share, or its equivalent, as a practical
expedient for fair value of the Plans’ interest in hedge funds and private equity funds. The
alternative investment assefs consist of marketable securities as well as securities and other
assets that do not have readily determinable fair values. The fair values of the alternative
investments that do not have readily determinable fair valucs are determined by the general
partner or fund manager taking into consideration, among other things, the cost of the securities
. or other investments, prices.of recent significant transfers of like assets, and subsequent
-developments concerning the companies or other assets to which the alternative investments
relate. There is inherent uncertainty in such valuations, and the estimated fair values say differ
from the values that would have been used had a ready market for these investments existed.
Private equity partncrships and seal estate commingled funds typically have finite lives ranging
. from 5 to 10 years, at the end of which all investcd capital is returned. For hedge funds the
typical lockup period is one year, after which invested capital can be redeemed on a quarterly
basis with at Icast 30 days’ but no more than 90 days’ notice. The Plans’ investment assets are
cxposed to the same kinds and levels of risk as described in Notc 4. -

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the System, on behalf of the ‘Plans, has commitments to fund

private equity investments an additional $56,196 and $48,974, respectively. The unfunded
commitments at December 31, 2013, are expected to be funded over the next seven yeats.
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9. Retirement Plans (continued)

The following are the Plans’ financial instruments at December 31, 2013, measured at fair value
on a recurring basis by the valuation hierarchy defined in Note 4:

Fair Yalue M. ts al Reporling Date Using
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets Siguificant

for ldentical  Significant Other  Unobservable
Assets Observable Inputs Tuputs

Deseription Fair Value (Level 1} {Level 2) (Level 3)
Cash and cash equivalents s 10,133 $ 8,119 § 2014 8 ’ -
. e L
Equity securities: 2 ' o
Small cap dn 2,442 - 2,442 ’ -
Large cap T 66,677 57,074 9,603 -
Value equity - 43,439 43,261 178 -
Growth equity ) 58,214 58,214 - -
U.S. equity o 14,655 13,683 (7, 2 -
Tnternational cquity  *° 154,819 53,793 101,026 h -
International equity — emerging = 64,609 61,005 3,604 -
Fixed income securities: .
Core plus bonds 157,704 144,985 12,719 -
Long duration bonds . 57,534 - 57,534 -
High-yield bonds 1,823 - 1,823 -
Emerging market bonds 990 - . 990 -
Other types of investments:
Hedge funds 69,639 - - 69,639
Private equity funds 67,541 - - 67,541
Real estate . 69,918 - 52,405 17,513
Total 3 840,137 $ 440,134 § 245310 § 154,693
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9. Retirement Plans (continued)

The table below sets forth a summary of changes in the fair value of the Plans’ Level 3 assets for
2013:

Hedge Funds Private Equity Real Estate

Fair value at January 1, 2013 § 50,201 $ 68,868 8§ 17,207
Net purchases and sales 12,604 (9,558) @)
Realized gains and losses - 6,213 891
Unrealized gains and losses 6,834 2,018 . (577)

Fair velue at December 31, 2013 ) S 69,639 § 67,541 § 17,513

The fol]owingére the Plans’ financial instruments at December 31, 2012_f_ measured at fair value
on a recurring basis by the valuation hierarchy defined in Note 4: '

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using
™ Quoted Prices in e

Active Markets A Significant
.o for Ydentical  Significant Other  Unobscrvable
Assets Observablc Inputs Inputs
Description v Fair Value Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 13,053 § 8403 § 4650 § -
Equity scouritics:
Small cap 2,450 o= 2,450
Large cap 52,555 42,842 - 9713 -
Value equity 39,673 37,887 1,786 -
Growth cquity 54,226 52,176 2,050 -
U.S. equity 17,613 16,862 751 -
International equity 117,811 39,984 71,827 -
International equity — emerging 64,885 60,983 3,902 -
Fixed income securities:
Core plus bonds 159,168 145,930 13,238 -
Long duration bonds 62,987 — 62,987 -
High-yicld bonds 1,831 - 1,831 -
Emerging market bonds 1,018 - 1,018 -
Other lypes of investmenis:
Hedge funds 50,201 - - 50,201
Private equity funds : 68,868 - - 68,868
Real estate 61,775 - 44,568 17,207
Total $ 768,114 $ 405,067 3§ 226,771 _§ 136,276
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9. Retirement Plans {continued)

The table below sets forth a surmmary of changes in the fair value of the Plans’ Level 3 assets for
2012: '

: Private
Hedge Funds  Equity Real Estate

Fair value at January 1, 2012 $ 43,083 $ 53,737 $ 16,130
Net purchases and sales 4,256 8,269 (370)
Realized gains and losscs - 3,017 275

. Unrealized gains and losses 2,862 3,845 1,172

Fdir value at December 31, 2012 $ 50,201 $ 68,868 $ 17,207

Assumptions used to determine bznefit obligations at the measurement date are as follows:

2013 2012
Discount rate . 4.70% 3.85%
Assumed rate of return on assets 725 7.50
Weighted-average rate of increase in future compensation
(age-based table) 4.15 4.15

Assumptions used to determinc net pension expense for the fiscal years are as follows:

2013 2012
Discount rate 3.85% 4.75%
Assumed ratc of return on assets 7.50 7.75
Weighted-average rate of increase in future compensation
(age-based table) 4.15 4.80

The assumed rate of return on pian assets is based on historical and projected rates of retum for
asset classes in which the portfolio is invested. The expected return for each asset class was then
weighted based on the target asset allocation to develop the overall expected rate of return on
assets for the portfolio, This resulted in the selection of the 7.25% and 7.50% assumption for
2013 and 2012, respectively.
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9. Retirement Plans (continued)

In addition to the defined benefit pension plans, the System sponsors various defined
contribution plans. The System contributed $40,641 and $34,797 in 2013 and 2012, respectively,
which are included in salaries, wages, and employee benefits expense in the consolidated
statemcents of operations and changes in net assets.

10. General and Professional Liability Risks

The System is self-insured for substantially all general and professional liability risks. ‘I'he self-
insurance programs combine various levels of self-insured retention with excess commercial
insurance coverage. In addition, various umbrella insurance policies have been purchased to
& provide coverage in excess of the self-insured limits. Revocable trust funds, administered by a
trustce and a captive insurance company, have been established for the self-insurance programs.
Actuarial consultants have been retained to detcrmine the estimated cost of claims, as well as to

..+ determine the amount to fund into the irrevocable trust and captive insurance company.

The estimatcd cost of claims is actvarially determined based on past experience, as well as other
considcrations, including the nature of each claim or incident and relevant trend factors. Accrued
insurance liabilities and contributions to the revocable trust were determined using a discount
rate of 3.50% for 2013 and 2012. Accrued insurance liabilities for the System’s captive insurance
company were determined using a discount rate of 3.00% for 2013 and 2012. Total accrued
insurance liabilities would have been $60,048 and $53,308 greater at December 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively, had these liabilities not been discounted.

The System is a defendant in certain litigation related to professional and general liability risks.
Although the outcome of the litigation cannot be determincd with certainty, management
believes, after consultation with legal counscl, that the ultimate resolution of this litigation will
not have any material adverse effect on the System’s operations or financial condition.
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11. Legal, Regulatory, and Other Contingencies and Commitments

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject
to interpretation. During the last few years, as a result of nationwide investigations by
governmental agencies, various health care organizations have received requests for information
and notices regarding alleged noncompliance with those laws and regulations, which, in some
instances, have resulted in organizations entering into significant settlement agreements.
Compliance with such laws and regulations may also be subject to future government review and
interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action, including fines, penalties, exclusion from
the Medicare and Medicaid programs, and revocation of federal or state tax-exempt status.
Moreover, the System expects that the level of review and audit to which it and other health care
providers are subject will increasc. . Lo
Various federal and state agencies have initiated investigations, which are in various stages of
discovery, relating to reimbursement, billing practices, and other matters of thc System. There
can be no assurance that regulatory authorities will not challenge the System’s compliance with
these laws and regulations, and it is not possible to determine the impact, if any, such claims or
penalties would hdve on the System. As a result, there is a reasonable possibility that recorded
amounts will change by a material amount in the near term. To foster compliance with applicabie
laws and regulations, the System maintains a compliance program designed to detect and correct
potential violations of laws and regulations related to its programs.

In 2013 four desktop computers were stolen during a burglary at one of the System’s
administrative support locations. The computers did not contain patient medical records but did
contain ccitain paticnt information, including names, addresses, Social Security numbers, and
limited billing and clinical information, Affected patients were notified and offered free credit
monitoring and identify theft protection. This matter is under investigation by various
government agencies, and the System has received notice that it has been named in certain
lawsuits regarding this matter. The System continues to monitor and investigate these matters.
Although the outcome of these investigations and litigation cannot be determined with certainty,
management is not in possession of any information to suggest that the costs relating to the
resolution of this incident will have a material adverse effect on the System’s operations or
financial condition.

The System is committed to constructing additions and renovations to its medical facilities and
implementing information technology projects, which are expected to be completed in future
years, The estimated cost of thcse commitments is $638,828, of which $378,391 has been
incurred as of December 31, 2013.
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11. Legal, Regulatory, and Othcr Contingencies and Commitments (continued)

Futurc minimum rental commitments at December 31, 2013, for all noncancelable leases with
original terms of mogre than one year aré $40,374, $35,837, $29,987, $26,380, and $19,804 for
the years ending December 31, 2014 through 2018, respectively, and $75,650 thereafter,

Rent expense, which is included in other expenscs, amounted to $69,340 and $70,077 in 2013
and 2012, respectively.

12. Income Taxes and Tax Status

Certain Siibsidiaries of the System are for-profit corporations. Significant componeris of the for-

profit subsidiaries’ deferred tax (liabilities) assets are as follows at December 31:

2013 2012 .
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for uncollectible accounts $ 6654 $ 4346
Othqr accrued expenses ’ 39 39
Reserves for incurred but not reported claims 76 255
Accrued insurance ' 6,028 7,699
Accrued compensation and employec benefits 2,862 4,745
Third-party settlcments 848 848

Prepaid and other assets 380 380
Net operating losses 27,602 15,078
Total deferred tax assets 44,489 33,390
Less valuation allowance 26,074 12,354
Net deferred tax assets, included in deferred costs and

intangible assets and prepaid expenses, inventories, and

other assets 18,415 21,036
Deferred tax liabilities
Property and equipment (6,316) (7,165)
Other accrued expenses (7,208) (3,647
Deferred gain on acquisition (5,736) (4,827
Total deferred tax liabilities, included in other noncurrent

liabilities (19,260) (15,639)
Net deferred tax (liability) asset $ 845) § 5,397
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12. Income Taxes and Tax Status (continued)

As of December 31, 2013, the for-profit corporations had $63,314 of federal and $77,020 of state
net operating loss carryforwards with unutilized amounts expiring between 2019 and 2033.

During 2013 the valuation allowance increased by $13,720. This change is due to additional net
operating loss catryforwards from the acquisition of a for-profit entity. The valuation allowance
as of the end of 2013 primarily consists of net operating losses that are unlikely to be realized.

Significant components of the for-profit subsidiaries® provision (credit) for income taxes are as
follows for the years ended December 31:

. By 2013 2012,
Current: )
- Federal . $ 784 $ (1,012)
State 240 (309)
Defcrred B 6,242 (1,144)

$ 7,266 $ (2,465)

Federal and state income taxes paid relating to the System’s for-profit corporations were $2,392
and $7,284 in 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The System and all other controlled or wholly owncd subsidiaries are exempt from income taxes
under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3). They do, however, operate certain programs that
generate uprelated business income. The current tax (credit) provision recorded on this income
was $(3,030) and $1,378 for the ycars cnded December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Federal,
state, and local governments are increasingly scrutinizing the tax status of not-for-profit hospitals
and health care systems.

13. Sherman Affiliation

Sherman owns and operates a 255-bed acute care hospital located in Elgin, Illinois. Sherman is
the sole member of various not-for-profit corporations or the shareholder of various business
corporations engaged in the delivery of health care scrvices or the provision of goods and
services ancillary thereto, which include a rehabilitation and skilled nursing facility (Sherman
West Court), a home health care company, and an employed physician medical group with
approximately 35 physicians.
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13. Sherman Affiliation (continued)

‘The Sherman affiliation was accounted for under the purchase accounting guidance and a
contribution of $151,663 was recorded in the consolidated statement of operations and changes
in net assets for the year ended December 31, 2013, This contribution reflected the fair value of
the unrestricted net assets of Sherman on the date of the affiliation. The total increase ir net
assets attributable to the affiliation, which included the fair value of temporarily and permanently
restricted net assets contributed, was $152,645. No goodwill was recorded as a result of this
transaction. In valuing these assets and liabilities, fair values were based on, but not limited to
professional appraisals, discounted cash flows, rcplacement costs, and actuarially determined
values.

The fair value of assets and liabilities of Sherman contribﬁteQ at Junc 1, 2013; consists of the
following: ’

Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,280
Investments - i » 123,355
Other current assets ' ' 65,949
Property and equipment = 318,398
Other long-term assets 29,601
Total assets 549,583

Current liabilities, excluding the current

portion of long-term debt 69,412
Long-term debt 284,217
Other long-term liabilities 43,309
Total liabilities 396,938
Increase in net assets $ 152,645

Total operating revenue and operating income from the date of affiliation for Sherman of
$170,246 and $5,033, respectivcly, have been included in the consolidated statements of
operations and changes in net assets.
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13, Sherman Affiliation (continued)

Following are the unaudited pro forma results for the year ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.
These results reflect the addition of Sherman’s unaudited results for the period January I to
May 31, 2013, end the year ended December 31, 2012, to the System’s results for the years
ended December 3%, 2013 and 2012, respectively. These results do not include the addition-to
revenues in excess of expenses that would have occurred on January 1, 2012, for the contribution
of Sherman’s unrestricted net assets.

December 31
2013 2012
Total operating revenue $ 5,062,920 $ 4,886,189
Operating income 301,479 298,380
Revenues in excess of cxpenses 771,600 677,360

The pro forma information provided is a compilation of results only and should not be construed
to accurately reflect what the actual results would have been had the affiliation been
consummated on January 1, 2012, and is not intended to project the System’s results of
operations for any future periods.

14. Subsequent Events

The System evaluated events occurring between January 1, 2014 and March 7, 2014, which is
the date when the consolidated financial statements were issued.

1313-1179290 47
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Eenst & Young LLP Tel: +1 312 879 2000
155 North Wacker Drive fax: +1 3128794000
Chicago, IL 60606-1787  ey.com

Building a hetter

working world

Report of Independent Auditors on Supplementary Information

The Board of Dircctors
Advocatc Health Care Network

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statement as a whole. The accompanying details of consolidated balance shect and dctails of
consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets and shareholders’ equity are
presented for the purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedurcs
applicd in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedutes,

including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the comsolidated financial statements or to the consolidated
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated

" in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Gt + MLLP

March 7, 2014
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Advocate Health Cere Network and Subsidiaries

Details of Comsolidated Balance Sheet
{Dollars in Thowsaiy)
December 31,2013
Advoeate Advoeate

Eenth and Network Advacie

Adrocite Hospitals Services, Advocate Advyocate Sherman Shaman

flealth Care  Corparation Lacorporated Charliable Txsprance Health Hospllal

Cony, ed _Fliminationy Nl 20d Subiidiarics and Subsiiaricy Fousdation SeC Insursoce Ca._nond Sobsldiarics
Asxts

Curméng avsets:

N Cosh gnd cash equirolents s san s - 3 M $ orin s 3150 $ i s [ 339 5 16116
Short-term investments 19401 - - . $- -~ 19401 - - v
Arscts Brniked 25 fo o 49,660 - - 76901 I - 12,588 - -
Patical accousts feceivoble, dess sllowramees for uncsflectitte accommts 381,033 Q&) - 306,802 247 - - - 36020
Amomts dus from primery think-pety payors 10,107 - - woite7 -~ - - - .

acopunts reccivable - (28,158} RARLS 45,005 350 (1] 7 21,10t 3519
Pregaid expenses, inventorfes, und other curvent esets 2863 - - 158422 2,568 33N 13676 n 17313
- Collateral posecds reocived under securitics lendies progrm. 19,68 = - 19,165 - - - - -
Total eurrent assets 1324917 Qas.e) 34075 1.294,606 93635 ST 26,590 21,307 558
Assets linfied @9 10 use: .
Interuefly 02d cxtemoRy designnted investments tmited 3 to 050 4715519 - 302470 3,993,213 nn 122639 059 - 126013
Investmenots wadcy secaritics kending progran. 19003 - - 19,013 - - - - -
o Invesiment fo subsidizries . - (134316) 184316 - - -~ - - - -
Accounts reeeivable from Advoeae Fleahh Core Nenwods
end subsidiaric - ©1310) 9ot,380 - - - - - -
Prepsid powsion expeniso and ofher noncarest axets 132,82 o - 123013 - 4307 - -
Interest e hoalth coro pd related entitics 152,103 - - 124,833 24,64 - - - 2646
Reigsermoce recefvablo mas - - 2,064 - - 151,805 - 12,489
Doferrod costs end intangibk less 2t 31331 3A14] = 41,036 1£598 - - - 400
5,242,566 (282,053) 535,166 431690 108,143 12713 24147 - 143,119
Property ond equipent - ot cott:
Laod wnd towd Emprovements 231,256 - - 203,561 13,157 - ~ - 34613
Buildings - - - -
Movable equipmeny - - - -
Constroction4n-progress - - - -
Lesy aflowances for deprechaion — . - .

49
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Advocate Health Cate Network and Subsidiaries

Dctails of Consolidated Batance Sheot (continued)

{Doliars tn Thowsandy)
Advoeate Advorale
Beakts 208 Network Advoesre
Advoenic Tuspliaky Sendces, Advocate Adrocate Sharman Sherman

Uedils Core Corporation Incurporsted Chariable Insuruace Henlth Hospiial
asd Subsidinricx _wid Subsidineles _Founflation $8C d Suf e

LiaMilitles and net assets aad sharcholders® equity

Corrent linbilities:
Curreal portion of (ang-tcrm deft $ 7810 -5 -§ 1265 s % s -8 -5 -3 16
Long-term debi satject to short-4am i 133,130 - - 138,130 - - - - L=
Accouate payshle 291306 - - 27731 6,19 142 R - 7348
Ascrecd satarics exd employeo beneftts 413,897 - - 393,146 12962 1,689 - L 13,100
Acaned oxpenzes 120,526 (564) - 5, 5499 4,28 6 Han 1 9213
Amonnts duso (o prirecry third-party payon 274,70 - - 242,138 2612 - - - 30,030
Cnreat portion of accreed intarmree and ¢laims costs mnd subsidierfes nAnR ~ - 54 A - 26068 - 3,349
Notes rod eccounts poyable to Advocats Health Cace Network ead sbnidindies - {88,15%) 1009 H30d | 10,453 2961 1215 13,864 24390
Obligations Lo tetw odar 3 ing program 15410 - - 19430 - - - - -
Totzl corrent lishilities 13935301 (3,762) 21009 1mAn »7 on 39,160 13368 92256
Noocmrrent Jobilitfes:
Losg-icrm dels, I35 cusreat portion 1,452,109 - - 1263612 345 - - - 172,039
Notesand mhmﬁhhM\m&dmCmNmmmﬁm L~ (91,380) - - - - - - - 91,380
Pention plan ishility nn7 - - 07 - - - - -
Acerucd imtorance end chalma cost, less carreat portion 6TATO - - 2 5P 8775 - 35,716 - 54
Aceraed boazes sohject to reinswrance recovery 1m3is - - 3,064 - - 151,805 - 1249
Oligations ender Foarp groesents, kel of collaicral posted 41508 - - $2,908 -~ - - = -
Otker ropraereat Febitities 151,668 5) 123 103, 156 2697 = =
- . 26210 2323 124 2, CH] 38339 597 187,521 - 282,
Total IabiliGes 392,511 (181,085) 2,133 3360392 97616 135 226,631 13,368 3122
Net um.hhmhldm equiyy: .
4963378 13428 502,108 4171808 - 19281 - 152 184624
Tanpcmib regtricted 11335 - - 1,030 - 110050 - - 208
Permanenily restrieted 41386 - - - - 47368 - - -
Cotamon stock - {13) - - .- - n -
Additionad paid-a eapifal - anan) - - 177163 - - 02 -
Tnterest 956 - - - 956 - - -
Retoined (defick) comingy/partnership lasyes - (25871} - - 13,512} - 438 = -
Totat net mascishharctoldzrs” eqnity 3,128,438 15, 602,108 [}7 162 60% 178597 ~ 41383 7642 134219
0. 3 62324} S 1
30

NuBE

208

o




Advocate Health Care Network end Subsidiaties

Detalls of Cansolidated S of Op and Changes in Nct Asscts end Shareholders’ Equity
{Dotiars t) Thowsamiy)
December 31,2013
Advocste Advocaie
Heal(h and Network Advoeate
Adrocate Hosplials Services, Adrocate Advocate Sherman Skerman
HaatthCerc  Corporsten  [ncorporsicd  Charltadke {rsarance Heulth Hoxphesl
Copsolidated iminntions 2nd Sebwidisrics _sad Subaidiaries Fouodatioa SBC Issurnece Co. gad Subildiartes
Unresteciod revenpes, gafns, nxd ofther support
Net paticot serviee revenws 3 4463468 § ®o4n s -~ 5 4090u47 § W75 -8 -3 -8 1713057
Frnvision for wncoliertiblo scconmy = = Q225400 13, = - = (13,292}
42N @siny - - 3387346 192409 - - - 161,763
i rovesue 389,516 - - 25413 64101 - - - -
Other pevenze 7 IH 007 6! 1,582 (AT 32342 1561 31, 69 1484
4,533,002 (6385 LR 4,500,133 308,282 1,561 31359 [ 170,246
Expeasey
Salarics, suges, ead employvo broofits 2510470, - 6 219349 126,121 780 - - iR
Porchused eervices snd opereting eapplies 125148 {2.713%) - 1057398 Hsu4 1,13 o™ 3l st
Contractd medica) servicas 133520 (020 - 1325 nwnt - - - -
Insorance and elajoe cotts 10849 QLo74y Q) 115138 (428) 3 9402 - 3120
Other - 404, @om - 383516 19886 ne 330 1 15,504
Depreciation and emostizasion 211,613 (1,299 - 250 2414 0 = - 12,183
Intorest 55, t - 49258 i) - U3
) 4,637,407 (7:4%) 1 4214932 N 13817 2 16513
Ojpenating income (oss) 300,195 1,089 . 1578 285,206 (1. 426) (10,236) 13367 3,033
“
Neaperatiog Income (oss)
Investment income (foss) ~ wmny {1306} 1229 2522 1008 - ~2018 ] a7
Change in ok valoe of imterest rafe syrwps a.ns - - 41,86 - - -t - -
Fairvalne of act assets nequined 151,563 {11 - 2,167 - - - 7248 13,847
Loss on refinoaoing of dett {6 - - [C5) - - - - -
Other scnopeeting ftems, el (15435) $496) 1,500 (870 {5A18) fi3)} - - 1)
Revenues in axeess of (fose than) exponsss 765320 B4 20375 513428 325 {10,234) 20388 [xi 34,066
Utresiricted ret asseis
Net essets relensed from restrictions and ased For copital purchases 394 - - 2200 - - - - 243
Nt esets rebensed from geashs used for capitsl porposes 1,147 - - 34 - - - . 1€
Coateibution of not nssers of Shermon Flospital - 0 - . - - - 120 -
Trmnsfers toffrom Advocsto Health Caro Netwark aud sobsidioricy - - 194,260 (170,800) - 10,800 B35,000) - -
Pogirefiremeni benefit plan edfstents o512 - - 70912 - - - - -
Other 1) - - o) ' 0 - - Z
Tnkromso (decronso) In enrestricied et assets [TXTH [RE) ST A% EXTH (3 1,619 78 TS558
sl
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Advocate Health Care Network and Subsidisries

and Changes in Net Assets and Sharcholders’ Fquity (continued)

Details of C

Temporarlly restrictrd nel gcsets
Coatrittions for medicnl educaibon programy, eapital purchases,

axd other purposes
Coztribution of et axsets of Shemen Hospita)
Reatired goins ont invertments
Unrealized gains oo Ievesiments. T
Net ssets releasad from restrietion £14 used for operations, medica]
education prograns, capital parchases, and otker purposcs
Incrense i temparanily rectricted oet msets

Fermaneatly restricted net st
Contribetions for medical educaiion programs,
copitel prrcheses, and gther parposes
Cortribution of nel assots of Shermen Hospitad
Increass in poroanently: estricted wet assets.

Inceraso (decteass) im net assets

Changn i mon-controfling Inkrest

Net ansctsishorebobdens® equity et boginaing of year
Net assetsicharehotders® equity of end of year

PNt

s of Op

(Dodlars in Thotreasnds)

Advacate Shormay Sherman
Tasuronee Health Foypiiat
SPC dasuraace Co. and Sobsidiarfes

s  ums -3 -8 0y s -5 nms -3 -3 ~

79 - - - - Si4 - - 208

2959 - - 15 - 204 - - -

2768 - ~ s - 3763 - - -

g’ - Q4240) - - -

20984 = 7 - nmn EX

1,889 - - - - 1,889 - - -

0 - - - = 0 - ~ -

FRES] = = = = 7152 = - -

M T (S 2 nsts 3258 B0 (4614 7642 15485

@ - - - - - - -

4264913 1 (184196 w833 36043 157379 123,487 1997 - -
el {18913 lDZI08 8 41REE $ 62,608 18,877
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Advocate Health and itals C ntion ond Subsidi
Details of Cansolidated Balance Shect
(Doliars in Thousands)
December 31,2013

Advoeate Adveente Advoeate
Health aad Northsite Codd)
Hospitals Headth Medicxt

EHS Home

Midwest Hleatth Care
Heart Senices, Inc,

ETIS Home

Heatr Care Advecate

Corusalidated Elimlontions  C System Center Spedialists _gnd Sobsidiary  Fftmiastions  Servfee, Inc. Hosphee
Assets
Cutrent sasefs:
Cashh sad cmb equivatents S 4 s - 5§ ss s 0y S “ne s 303 8 53458 ¢ -3 1094 $ 2519
Asycis timited as to use . 76933 - 76933 - C - - - - - -
Paticet accounts weclvabl, tess sflomnees for weollectible '
accounty 306302 {tosy 41,65 60,017 2409 - 352 - L X3 ‘2410
Amounts due from prizieey thindparty fayors 10,107 - 711 1930 1,066 - - - - -
Accouls receivable from Advocae Health Care Network g
snd pubsidintiex c 43005 - 4743 2,046 167 - L7 - 1,041 6
Ftercampany accounts reecivablo - (s3,421) 33,095 20,019 4793 32 462 (330 676 ns
Prepoid expenses, laventories, and other current assety 13422 - 131,023 031 ' 6403, 424 9 - 1y 20
Collatrn! prooeeds recived tndec sevurities lending program 19,165 - 19,168 = - - - - - -
Totsd cuerent moets Ve 1,294,606 63,52 1,H0,226 132,265 86,068 1389 21003 3309) 16,262 son
Asgets limited as o use: . .
Intemally and extemaafly designoted Investments limited as fo use 390518 C- 3,883,338 51990 41,658 6,163 1065 - T35 17060
Tavattments ender recrities looding progrsn. 15,013 - 19013 - - - - - - -
Prepald pewtlan cxpense tnd ather roncoerent ossety v 20818 - 23818 - - - - - - -
Inizrer in health care ond reloted cofifies 124233 (Q5,865) 44,170 92435 - n - - - -
Rebusuemnes recelvoble 8,064 - T4£02 - 462 ~ - - - -
Deforred coste md immmgible asscts, less atk 41,036 ~ 39,380 104 - 1352 = - = -
316979 (3863) 4,128,338 TS0 12,120 1501 10049 - 738 7,700
Property gad oquipment — i cost
Lsnd ead Iznd impeovements 209,561 - 727 41430 54904 - - ~ - -
Prildings 2,201,131 - 1,333,786 136,202 0659 - Hé - EL] -
Movable cquipment 1236761 - 1,038,113 64322 32965 - 436t - 1296 L3
Comlruction-in-progeess 309,790 - 258,004 49,138 255 - - - — -
397143 < 3339220 291,002 U136 = 5,205 = 5,140 3]
Less ollowances for deprecintion 2,056331 L 136338 112,684 BG - s - £310 36
1921512 - 1,468,385 173438 274,030 - [ -~ 830 29
3 1533097 8 W3S 607140 S 260253 5 402,208 ILI6L S k) VY QIR S 2245 1800,
3

121

211




Lizbillties and et assets

Cument lishilithes:
‘Cutrent portlan of long-term debt
Long-term debt subje hart

Accomts payble

Accrued saloris and emphoyes benefits

Accrued expenses.

Arounts due to priraary (hied-party pavory o,

Carrend portion of scoriced insorerce and chrinis costs

Notes and ocoounts payable to Advocats Bedlth Qe Nrtwods
wod obsidisdes

tntescompany paynbles

Oblicati e ot

Total current listilities

sccuritles Yending program.

Moncarrent linbilties: i
Long-erm debt, kss comtnl postion
Peaion pion fizbility
Accraed fnsursnco snd dlatms cast, fors currt portlca
Acerued lotses exbfedt to rinsurmcs recavery
Obligrticay under swap ngrecmends, uel of callatoral posted
Orhet noacoment lizbities

Total linkilitics

Net aasch:
Uarestricted
Tomporarily restrkted
Additkomal paid-in ezptat

Totol nel pasels

N

Advocate Health ond Hospitals €

- 4 Subsidiari

P

D+tuils of Consolidated Balance Sheet (continned)
(Dollars in Thomands)

Advorate Advoente Advachte EHS Honte:
ealih azd Northaide Condell Miwen Henhth Care EYS Home
Hospltals Health Medical Heart Senviees, Jec. Health Care  Advocate
Conolidated Efimitalions o fon System Center Spetlafisty _nad Sebsidinry _Bliminalioos _Service, Ioc Heospice
H 17285 § -8 1675 s -8 M0 s -3 -3 - $ -8 -
135,100 - 135,130 - .- - - - - -
mm - 1,202 .08 13,97 4355 4,69 - 347 146
LG - 330,553 2934 14,630 - 3977 - 8,120 853
L ()] 34377 21 K235 91 206 - nl 1o
20,133 - 163,604 39 35421 6613 - 6,580 s
7S - 78614 - - - - - e -
HIN - 50,714 2,12 »o - 1M - 1,002 %
- @) 28246 18,405 2 0 1347 (<21} m 700
19, - 1940 - = . - - - - -
127,428 (82,515) 1,117,685 121967 75932 52 20518 330) 17627 30
1,268,612 - 118452 - 30,180 - - - sl ~
1,737 - - - pikir) - - - - -
6,425 - 633428 - - - - - - -
£054 - 7,602 - 462 - - - - -
47908 - 47,908 fo- - - - - - -
103,228 - 100,008 J48 108 kAT - = = =
71 = 2027405 448 4437 3 - - o -
3,360,399 63,526) 3,145.0% 126,71% 130419 108 20518 G30) 17,627 30
4,171,618 - 3,560,979 333,338 271,799 [£X )] 11,093 - 6614 on
1,030 - 1010 - - ~ - - - -
= (15,869) - = - 1530 — = - e
6N 18, 3,562,059 FEERE 271,79 10193 - 6614 5
g 2 3 02318 S 24
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Advocate IHeslth and Hespitals Corp and Subsidiart
Details of Consolidated S olOp and Changes in Net Assets and Sharcholders” Equity
{(Dollars In Thensandy)
Decomber 31, 2013
Advacate Advoceie Advocste EHS Home
TSexft wad Norfhide Condell Alitwent Tlesith Care EHS Home
Eospitats fleslith Dedical Hart Services, Ine. HoslhCare  Advocre
Cotofidaed  Fitminadns  Corporafien Seskm o 3 Frbeld] Flhatnafiens  Servdee, T Iy
Uscnalrieled revenaes, g2, #nd ofter sappert B
Net patient service resenus S s (R DEY EETCHITIN T N 3 T ] -3 85604 § - &S50 5 10l
Provision for uacoliectible accounts 13,801 - 73,912 (0, 9, - - 102 16
3BT M6 [(05) 304,199 43535 206489 = 0135 - [5X] ALl
Captation revencs . Ly - MK LER - - 23 - 369 -
Obtrsovesno - 7 EAL 61 N5.249 29301 [1%:)] ur PR 79 )
4500438 [GLY) 3588555 16555 man 257 T awn w27 B
Expenver ~ e,
Sataries, pages, and employve beoclils 2298349 ~ 130,953 2,169 1878 - S1449 ~ n0u 8367
Purchased acvvices and operating empylics LI G640 30,161 o7 M0 39 0% 2om) 8928 2462
Cartracted medieal services 11885 1313) 133,219 - - - - - - -
Tsurance and cliims costs 1905 @n 99759 147790 4879 3 m0 - ™ &
Other 365516 160) 19917 e 4 40 - e 1
Drpieciation #r.d amanization 193.25% - 160558 107y 16313 Len 4t - 40 [3
Imeret 49,188 - 46357 - 2491 - - - - -
(Y] (62.56; 3 526 1 7] [V 3, 53
Operating iscoma (loss) - ’I206 - [AF 61460 35,730 [(177] B - 4.5 12590
Rowoperating Incorne (lotg
estouerst bcoine mm - nies 1,18 s 1o [-1E I - m us
Change b folr vale of insérest rte swaps 4125 - aLas - - - - - - -
Fairvulos of net asscts sequired 267 - ©L0l - - - 466 - 5
Losrenrefinancing of dett 9 - [2) - - - - - - -
Othes povoperuting ftems, net PR ).} S S 1) NN B ... S S— = - - -
Revenows in axoest of fioxs am) expeses mas - [=ou1y T YT [} 757 - S8 5%
Unrestricied net sasets
2809 - % m - - - - -
remis used for eap Y - [ - 186 - - - - -
Teonshers so/finm Advoesto Heolth Crxe Netwonk aed subifdisries (V7R000) - {47,009 73000 (#0000 - @000 - £.000} a0
Pottrelireracd bencft plan 0302 - 3917 - 1593 - - - - -
Ot @ -~ ) - - - - - - o
Terease (decenss) inwiestdend ot st e = BT 143 0,151 ®0 ®0) - T8 (1)
18
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Details of C

Ad:

Healthand ¥

itals C ion and Subsidi

Temporariy cestricted el wosety
Coatribations for mafen] education programm,
engital porctiases, sad ofher parposes

Reskired pxim o frestoents

e4in n inve e
Increass i temprndily restristed et anety
Lomease (deexcass) la el aseats
Netasszts ‘year
N iscts'nt eud of yens

(It

of Op

(Dollars ta Thous:

ond Changes in Net Asxets and Shareholders® Equity (continued)
ands) .

Adroente Adrocake  Adcocate £H5 Howe
Beathané Rortashic CodB  Mdwest  Hcalth Care IS Tere
Horplaks Heakh Bbediot Bexrt Serfces, dos. Healh Care  Advocate
Consoftdated Elsdeafion fom. Stz Ceater 8 ity d 80! Elindne ooy Sue.
3 {n s -3 am s - -3 - - - -3 -
[} - [} - - - - - -
s - s - - - - - -
7 - Kl = - - = = - =
s - o 45T 2428 1o [0 ®43) - &t (]
096319 g3 3 ¢ 60
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Advocate Sherman Hospital and Subsidiaries

Details of Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Dollars in Thousands)

December 31, 2013
Advocate Sherman
Sherman  West Health  Sherman
C lidated Eliminations Hospital  Ceurt Visions, Inc.  Choice
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 16,116 $ — $ 10,196 $ 2,021 § 650 $ 3,249
Patient accounts reccivable, lcss
allowances for uncollectible accounts 36,920 - 35,939 981 - -
Accounts receivable from Advocate
Health Care Network and subsidiaries 5,539 - 2,289 13 3,237 -
Intercompany accounts reccivable - (9,339) 9,299 40 - -
Prepaid expenses, inventories,
and other current assets . : 17,313 — --. 17,088 14 —- 211
Total current assets 75,888 9,339 74,811 3,069 3,887 3,460
B -
Assets limited as to use:
Internally and externally designated
investments limited as fo use 126,013 - 125953 60 - -
Intercompany accounts receivable - (4,150) 4,150 - - -
Interest in health care and related entitics 2,646 (2,130) = 4,776 - —
Reinsurance receivable 12,449 - 12,449 - - -
Deferred costs and intangible assets, less
allowances for amortization 4,011 - 4,011 - - —
- 145,119 (6,280) 151,339 60 - -
Property and equipment — at cost:
Land and land improvements 34,618 - 33,504 1,114 - -
Buildings 245,846 - 243330 2,516 - -
Movable equipment 37,512 - 37442 70 - -
Construction-in-progress 2,759 - 2,759 - ~ -
320,735 - 317,035 3,700 - -
Less allowances for depreciation 11,786 — 11,675 111 — —
308,949 - 305360 3,589 - -
$ 529956 8§ (15.619) $531510 $ 6718 $ 3887 $ 3.460
57
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Advocate Sherman Hospital and Subsidiaries

Details of Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)
(Dollars in Thousands)

Advocate Sherman
Sherman  West
Consolidated Eliminations Hospital Court

Health Sherman
Visions, Inc.  Cholce

Liabflities and net assets’

Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt $ 166 $ -3 166 $ $ - $ -
Current portion of intercompany long-term debt - 277 - 277 - -
Accounts payable 7,548 - 7,211 291 46 -
Accrued salaries and employee benefits 15,100 - 14,666 434 - -
Accrued expenses 9,213 - 5,592 154 7 3,460
Amountsdue to primary third-party payors 30,030 - 30,030 - -
Current pottion of acerued insurance 5,849 - 5,849 - - -
and claims costs .
Notes and accounts payable to Advocate
Health Care Network and subsidiaries 24,390 o - 22,723 2 1,663 2
Intercompany payables — (9,062) 40 510 8,496 16
Total current liabilities 92,296 (9,339) 86,277 1,668 10,212 3,478
Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt, less current portion 178,039 - 178,039 - - -
Long-term intercompany debt, less current portion - (4,150) - 4,150 - -
Notes and accounts payable to Advocate .
Health Care Network and subsidiaries 91,380 - 91,380 - - -
Accrued insurance and claims cost, 554 - 554 - - -
less current portion N
Accrued losses subjeet to reinsurance recovery 12,449 - 12,449 - -
Qther noncurrent liabilitics 409 — 409 - - -
282,831 (4,150) 282831 4,150 - —
Total liabilitics 375,127 (13,489) 369,108 5,818 10,212 3,478
Net assets:
Unrestricted , 154,624 —~ 162257 -840 (8,455) (18)
Temporarily restricted 205 - 145 60 - -
Common stock - (@) - - 1
Additional paid-in capital - (2,129) - — 2,129 —
Total net asscis : 154,829 (2,130) 162402 900 (6,325) (18)

$ 529956 § (15.619) § 531,510 $ 6718

$ _3.887 § 3460

1312-11792%0
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Advocate Sherman Hospital and Subsidiaries

Details of Consolidated Statement of Operations and
Changes in Net Assets and Shareholders’ Equity

(Dollars in Thousands)

December 31, 2013
Advocate  Sherman
Sherman West Health Sherman
fidated  Eli i Hospital Court __ Vislons, Ine.  Cholee

Unrestricted revenues, gains, and other support
Net patient service revenue 178,057 3 ~ 8§ 17,879 § 574 § 434 8 -
Provision for flectible (15292) ~ (15213) (103) 24 .-

162,765 - 156,666 5,641 458 -
Other revenue 7.481 (156) 7,600 37 - -

170,246 (156) 164,266 5,678 458 -
Expenscs
Salaries, wages, and employee benefits 78,112 - 73,898 3,525 689 -
Purchased services and operating supplies 50,121 (156) 48,909 L110 240 18
Insurance and claims costs 2,120 -~ 1,856 201 63 -
Other 15,504 ~ 15,005 w497 302 -
Depreciation and amartization - 12,183 - 12,072 11 - -
Tnterest 7,173 37) 7,151 59 = ~

165,213 (193) 158,891 5,203 1,294 18
Operating income (foss) 5,033 37 5375 . 475 (836) (18)
Nonoperating income (foss)
Inves(ment income (foss) 5217 {37) 5,254 - - ~
Fair value of net asscts acquired 143,849 (2,130) 151,103 365 (5,489) -
Othier nonoperating items, nct {33) ~ (33) —~ ~ -
Revenues in excess of (less than) expenscs 154,066 2,130) 161,699 840 (6,325) (18)
Net assets released from restrictions and used for capital purposes 245 -~ 245 - - -
Net assels released from grants used for capital purp: 313 ~ 313 — — ~
Incrcasc (decrcase) in unrestricted net assets : 154,624 (2,130) 162,257 840 (6,325) (18)
Temporarily restricted net assefs
Coniribution of net assets of Sherman Hospital 205 -~ 145 60 ~ ~
Increase in temporarily restricted pet ssseis 205 - 145 60 — -
Increase (decrease) in net assets 154,829 (2,130) 162,402 900 (6,325) (18)
Nt assets at end of year 154820 § (130) § 162402 § 900 $ _ (6325) § (18}

1312-1179290
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Advocate Northside Health System and Subsidiaries

Details of Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Dollars in Thousands)
December 31, 2013
Advoeate
Northside
Health HispanoCare,
Consolidated Eliminations System Inc.
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 32,983 § - 3 32459 § 524
Patient accounts receivable, less allowances
for uncollectible accounts 60,017 - 60,017 -
Amounts due from primary third-party payors 1,930 - 1,930 -
Accounts receivable from Advocate Health
Care Network and subsidiaries 2,046 - 573 1,473
Intercompany accounts receivable 20,019 (1,455) 21,474 -
Prepaid expenses, inventories, and
other current assets 20,271 — 20,271 —
Total current asscts 137,266 (1,455) 136,724 1,997
Assets liniited as to use:
Internally and externally designated
investments limited as to use 51,990 - 51,930 -
Interest in health care and related eniities 92,455 - 92,455 -
Deferred costs and intangible assets,
less allowances for amortization 104 — 104 —
144,549 - 144,549 -
Property and equipment — at cost:
Land end land improvements 41,430 - 41,430 -
Buildings 136,202 - 136,202 -
Movable equipment 64,322 - 64,315 7
Construction-in-progress 49,138 — 49,138 —
291,092 - 291,085 7
Less allowances for depreciation 112,654 — 112,649 5
: 178,438 — 178,436 2
§ 460253 §  (1455) § 459709 § 1999
60
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Advocate Northside Health System and Subsidiaries

Details of Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

(Dollars in Thousands)

Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and employee benefits
Accrued expenses
Amounts due to primary third-party payors
Notes and accounts payable to Advocate
Health Care Network and subsidiarics
" Intercompany payebles
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Other noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

an
Net assets:
Unrestricted
Total net assets

1312-1179290

Advocate

Northside
) Health  HispanoCare,

Consolidated Eliminations System Inc.

$ 271725 - § 2275 § 10
22,934 - 22913 21
7,270 - 7,270 -
33,491 - 33,491 -
2,112 - 2,033 79
28,435 - (1,455) 28,435 1,455 -
121,967 (1,455) 121,857 1,565
4,748 - 4,748 -
4,748 - 4,748 =
126,715 (1,455) 126,605 1,565
333,538 - 333,104 434
: 333,538 - 333,104 434
$ 460253 (1455) § 459,709 § 1,999
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Advocate Northside Health System and Subsidiaries

Details of Consolidated Statement of Operations and
Changes in Net Assets and Shareholders’ Equity

(Dollars in Thousands)

December 31, 2013

Advocate

Northside HispanoCare,

C lidated Eliminations Health System Inc.
Unrestricted revenues, gains, and other support
Net patient service revenue 465,980 $ - 8§ 465980 §
Provision for uncollectible accounts (30,585) - . (30,585) —
435,395 - 435,395 -
Capitation revenue 1,890 - 1,890 -
Other revenue 29,301 — 29,144 157
466,586 - 466,429 157
Expenses
Salaries, wages, and employee benefits 214,169 - 213,985 184
Purchased services and operating supplies 123,078 - 123,062 16
Insurance and claims cosls 14,720 - 14,720 -
Other 38,880 - 38,741 139
Depreciation and amortization 14,079 — 14,078 1
404,926 - 404,586 340
Operating income (Joss) 61,660 - 61,843 o (183)
Nonoperating income (loss)
Investment income 15,198 - 15,197 1
Other nonoperating items, net 120 — 76 44
Revenues in excess of (less than) expenses ’ 76,978 - 77,116 (138)
Unrestricted net assets
Net assets released from restrictions and

used for capital purposes 460 - 460
Transfers to/from Advocate Health Care :

Network and subsidiaries (75,000} — (75,175) 175
Increase in unrestricted net asscts 2,438 - 2,401 37
Unrestricted net assets at beginning of year 331,100 — 330,703 397
Unrestricted net assets at end of year § 333538 § - § 333,104 § 434

62
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Evangelical Services Corporation and Subsidiarics
d/b/a Advocate Network Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Dctails of Consolidated Balance Sheet

{(Dollars in Thonsands)

Dcoember 31, 2013

Advocate
Network

Hizh

Advoeste Dreyer

Technelogy, Home Care Clinle,

Advecate ‘BroMemn
Health Medical

Consolidated _ Eliminations _ Services, Ine. Inc. Producty, Ine. Ine. Centers, Ine. Group

Astets
Corem assets B

Cash s cath eguivatests s 3730 s R 15664 § 3084 § 4384 S 9312 § 1094 8 ‘14019

Assers Btited 85 fo use 139 - - - S - - 139

Patient accounts receivable, less aliowancrs for umeolleciible socounts 23,875 - - 1,963 2,633 15814 - 3,415

Acomms receivable from Advocate Tlealth

Care Network and subsidiaries 8532 - 6,360 335 LI136 59 403 Fii)

Intercomparty nccounts and notes receivable - (29,803) 20,842 536 7 6,595 1,763 ]

Prepaid expenscs, inveatarics, snd other corent sssets 29,566 - 21,933 » 1,042 5,5M 144 714
Total cusrent assety 99,639 (29,803) 64,799 5987 9352 37314 3,404 78,586
Assets limited 8s to uso: .

Intemally and extemally desigrated investments limited a5 to use 72,823 - 16,564 24709 18765 - 10,048 241
Totercompany notes reccivable - {48,965) - 48,965 - - - -
Investments and other poncurrent pascts - (166,758) 166,758 - - - - -
Traerest In heslth care and related cntities 24,624 - 1310 - - 1,560 - 15,743
Deferted costs sad intanpible assets, less for izati 11,398 = 5,801 nd - 5,797 - -

108,745 (215,723) 196,433 73674 18,768 1,366 10,048 18,182
Property and equipment — ot cast:

Land and leod improvements 137 £,138 1,004 - 5488 - 487

Buildings 60,990 - 2,382 9717 428 46,219 - 2244

Movable equipment 62,891 - 8,184 19083 2911 2,701 - 4,042

Construction-in-progress 516 - - 196 - 309 - 1l

. 137514 - 16,704 29970 8339 8,17 - 6,784

Less allowances for depreciation 85,674 = 11,089 22,789 6,002 43643 - 2,151

51,840 - 5615 7181 2337 32,074 - 4,633
M 260224 $  (245526) § 266847 S 86842 § 30454 S 76754 § 13452 8 31,401

63
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Evangelical Services Corporation and Subsidiaries
d/bfa Advocate Network Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Details of Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

(Dollars in Thousands)
Adrucate igh Advocate Dreyer Advocate Brademt
Network Technology, Honte Care Clinle, Heahh Medicat
— , _Consolidated  Eliminntlons _Servites, bnc, Inc. _ Products, Inc. Ine. . CeotersIne. Group
Liabilities and sharebolder’s equity .
Curnent linbilities: .

/. Current portion of long-{crm dcbt s 359§ -3 EE BT -8 359 8§ S -8 -
Current portion of intercompany bong-term debt - @18 - . - 283 - 535
Accounts payable 6,189 - 2444 283 1,080 1,757 417 518
Accrued sataries end employee benefits 12,961 - 3908 855 710 6737 1 kil
Accnied expenses 4,769 - 385 876 37 1,922 910 639
Amounts dus to primary third-party payors - 2612 - - - 919 1,693 - -
Current portion of accnued insurence and clims costs ., 1,881 - - - - - L. L142 139
Nases and accounts paysble to Advocate Heslth Care Network aod subsidiaries 10,455 - 6,140 603 1,228 1,029 R - 1,428
Intercompany paysbles el (28,585) 8424 (3] 792 19,006 42 50

“om! current linbilities 39277 {29,803) 21,301 3,286 4,766 32,786 2,714 4,17

Noncurrent lisbifities:
Long-tenm debt, less current portion 5438 -~ - - - 5,458 - -
Long-term Intercompany debt, less current portion - {48,965) - - - - - 48965
Accrued insurance and claims cost, less corent poetion 8775 - - - - - 1425 1350
Oiher noncusrent liabilitles 4
B R IK 5
Total liabilities 39424 4,868 99
Sharcholders” equity: .
Common stock 1 5,163 1 3250 56 1,862 - 1
Addition) paid-in capital 177,163 (193,581) 17,163 22,294 5,098 34,017 87,081 41,691
‘Nen-contralling tmtares 956 - - - - 956 - -
Retnined (deficit) comings (15512) 31,986 3025 57898 16,438 (3834 (83,828) 80
Total shercholders' equity 162,608 {166,758) 207,423 83,442 25,586 33001 3253 (23.339)
S 260224 §  (2455%) S 266847 S 86812 § 304543 76754 134523 3140)
1312-1179290
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Evangclical Services Corporation and Subsidiaries
d/b/a Advocate Network Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Details of Consolidated Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets and Shareholders’ Equity
(Dollars in Thousands)

Unrestricted revenues, galms, and other swpport
Net patient service revenus
Provision for uncollectlble sccoonts

Capitstion reveme
Other revenue

Eaxperses

Selarics, wages, and empfoyee benofits
Purchased services ond operating supplies
Contructed medical services

Insumnce and claims costs

. Other

Depreciation and smortization
tmercst

Operating (loas) income

65

December 31, 2013
Advecnie High Advornte Dreyer Advoente Brobfenn
Network Technology, Home Care Cliale, Healtk Medical
Consclidnted _ Eliminations _ Servites, Inc. Tne, Produets, Tac, Tne. Centers, Inc. Group
3 205705 § - 8 -5 N4 s 2955 S 130864 3 “32)s  283M
{13,296) = (1388) G330 - (74 1,783 (2,865)
192,409 - - 21,556 20,624 183710 1,351 25,508
84,101 - - - 1,559 60,950 1549 3
52342 4,008 35330 116 4,208 8,268 277 8.154
308,852 (4,008) 35330 2161 26,388 192,628 3177 33,665
126,121 - 26,253 7,486 6210 71,997 (660} 14,835
145344 (4,008) 5629 9313 15,012 92,105 202 21,0711
17 - - - - 11,926 @19 -
{428) - - 29 32 138 850 2,869 1,06¢
19,886 - 2,656 1,181 1,359 11,084 7 3,989
7414 - si8 1,587 T4 3,923 - 682 .
230 (3.909) 2 - - 260 377 3,500
310278 (7517) 35,087 19919 23963 192,175 0.087) 50,138
(1,426} 3509 243 1,753 2425 453 6,264 (16,473}

1312-11792%0
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Evangelical Services Corporation and Subsidiaries
d/b/a Advocate Network Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Details of Consolidated Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets and Shareholders’ Equity (continued)
(Dollars in Thousands)

Advacate High Advocate Dreyer Advocale BrolMenn
Network Tecbnology, Home Care Climie, Henlth Medicad
Consolidated _ Efiminations  Services, Ine. Ing, Products; Toc. Inc. Centers, Ine. Group
Nonoperniing income (tosy)
Tavestment income (loss) S 12098 § (3.909) $ 4439 § 7080 $ 3488 § 6 S 45 8 929
Other nonoperating items, net . [£X10)] - (9:493) (2,839) ' (2,089) (459 4577 4,865
Revenues in excess of (fess than) expenses 5254 - [T )] 3994 3,844 - 10,886 (10,679)
TUnrestricted net nsséts
“Transfers to/from Advocale Health Care Network and subsidiaries - (67,989) 30,000 - {30,000) 6,489 55,000 6,500
Otber 1 = = = - = - 1
Increase (decrease) in Gnrestricted net assets . 5,255 (67,989 25,209 5,994 . (26,156) 6,489 65,886 (4,178)
Changs in non-cortreiliog interest 26 - - -~ -~ {26} - L=
Decreaso in noa-controlling interest 26} - —~ - — (26 — =
Total chango in shareholders™ equity 5229 - (67,989) 25,208 5994 26,156) 648 85,886 (4,178)
Shareholders® equity at beginning of year 157379 (98769 182,214 77448 S1,42 26,538 (62,633) {15.161)
b 62,608 S 66,758) § 207423 8 83442 § 25585 3% 33,001 $ 3283

Shareholders® equity at end of year

66 13121175200
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Ernst & Young LLP Tel: +1 312 879 2000
155 North Wacker Drive Fax: +1 312 879 4000
Chicago, I. 60606-1787  ey.com
Building a better
working world
Report of Independent Auditors
The Board of Directors

NorthShore University HealthSystem

We have aundited the accompanying consolidated financial statcments of NorthShore University
HealthSystem and its affiliatcs (collectively, the Corporation), which comprise the consolidated balance
sheets as of Scptember 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of opcrations and
changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsiblc for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
cotiformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implcmentation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to thc preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or crror.

Avditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on thesc financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Statcs. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements arc free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidetice about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statemecnts. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial staternents in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purposc of expressing an ‘opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit alse includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies uscd and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimatcs
made by imanagément, as well as cvaluating the overall presentation of the financial statcments,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient aiid appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

1310-1150979 1

Amember frm of Emst & Young Global Limited
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements rcferred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of NorthShore University HealthSystem and its affiliates at September 30,
2013 and 2012,.and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the ycars then
ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Adoption of ASU No. 2011-07, Presentation and Disclos:-lre of Patient Service Revenue, Provision for
Bad Debts, and the Allowances for Doubtful Accounts for Certain Health Care Entities

As discussed in Notc 2 to the consolidated financial statements, NorthShore University HealthSystem

. changed the prescatation of the provision for uncollectible accounts as a result of the adoption of the

amendmcnts to the FASB Accounting Standards Codification resulting from Accounting Standards
Update No. 2011-07, Presentation and Disclosure of Patient Service Revenue, Provision for Bad Debts,
and the Allowances for Doubtful Accounts for Certain Health Care Entities, cffective October 1, 2012
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

. ; . M ¥ MLL?

February 3, 2014

1310-1150979 2

A member firm of Ernst & Young Globat Limited
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NorthShore University HealthSystem

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Dollars in Thousands)

September 30
2013 2012
Assets
Current assets: ]
Cash and cash equivalents $ 41,295 § .. 21,856
Other short-term investments 36,565 17,016
Internally designated investments, current portion 49,575 44,960
Patient accounts receivable, less allowances for uncollectible
and charity accounts (2013 — 855,507; 2012 — $53,472) 246,113 269,933
Inventories, prepaid expenses, and other 66,221 65,489
Total cutrent assets 439,769 419,254
Investments available for general use 1,313,198 1,211,716
Inté’rng]ly designated investments for capital replacement aitd other 171,602 164,185
Property and equipment:
Land and improvements 96,199 89,396
Buildings 1,351,161 1,221,467
Equipment and furniture 517,492 495,051
Construction-in-progress 26,548 77,332
1,991,400 1,883,246
Less accumulated depreciation 1,023,604 918,696
Total property and cquipment, net 967,796 964,550
Other noncurrent assets 213,001 203,462
Total assets $ 3105366 $ 2963,167

1310-1150979
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NorthShore University HealthSystem

Consolidated Balance Sheets (continued)

{Dollars in Thousands)

Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilities:
Accouats payable
Accrued expenses and current portion of self-insurance
Due to third-party payors
Current maturities of long-term dcbt
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilitics:
Long-term debt, less current maturities
Employee retirement plans
Accrued self-insurance and other
Total noncurrent liabilities

Net assets:
Unrestricted
Tcmporarily restricted

Permancntly restricted
Total net asscts

Total liabilitics and net assets

See accompanying notes.

1310-1150979

September 30

2013 2012
$ 55,124 § 81,296
198,718 178,494
81,612 88,067
9,263 8,948
344,717 356,805
367,200 376,463
79,565 171,036
308,061 291,277
754,826 838,776
1,830,622 1,596,857
100,951 98,205
74,250 72,524
2,005,823 1,767,586

$ 3105366 § 2963,167
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NorthShore University HealthSystem

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

(Dollars in Thousands)

Unrestricted revenues and other support

Net patient service and premium revenue

Provision for uncollectible accounts

Net patient service and premium revenue after provision
Investment earnings supporting current activities

Net assets released from restrictions used for operations
Other revenue

Total unrestricted revenues and other support

Expenses

Salaries and benefits

. Supplies, services, and other
Depreciation and amortization
Insurance

Medicaid assessment

Interest

Total expenses

Income from operations

Nonoperating income

Dividend and interest income

Net realized gains on investiments

Net unrealized gains on investments

Transfer of investment earnings supporting current activitics
Other, net

Total nonoperating income

Revenue, gains, and other support in excess of expenses

Continued on next page.

1310-£150979

Year Ended September 30
2013 2012
$ 1,765,898 $ 1,677,385
(62,965) (46,960)
1,702,933 1,630,425
33,000 30,000
11,661 13,256
68,348 82,552
1,815,942 1,756,233
980,869 912,089
571,582 573,611
118,817 115,262
45,699 39,960
24,828 24,828
7,668 7,469
1,755,463 1,673,219
60,479 83,014
27,735 33,046
52,764 20,664
59,117 121,898
(33,000) (30,000)
(41,055) (36,403)
65,561 109,205
126,040 192,219
5
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NorthShore University HealthSystem

233

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets (continued)

(Dollars in Thousands)

Unrestricted net assets

Revenue, gains, and other support in excess of expenses
Pension-related changes other than net periodic costs
Net assets released from restrictions used for capital

Other transfers, net
Increase in unrestricted net assets

Temporarily restricted net assets
Contributions and other

Net realized gains on investments

Net unrealized gains on investments

Net assets released from restrictions
Increase in temporarily restricted net assets

Permanently restricted net assets
Contributions

Increase in permanently restricted net assets
Increase in net assets

Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

See accompanying notes.

1310-1150979

Year Ended September 30
2013 2012
$ 126,040 $ 192219
105,412 (20,162)
986 1,344
1,327 1,149
233,765 174,550
7,702 15,802
5,559 2,138
2,132 11,010
(12,647) (14,600)
2,746 14,350
1,726 1,405
1,726 1,405
238,237 190,305
1,767,586 1,577,281

3 2,005,823

$ 1,767,586




NorthShore University HealthSystem

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Dollars in Thousands)

Operating activities
Increase in net assets
Adjustments to réconcile increase in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Change in net unrealized gain on investments
Change in trading portfolio investments, net
Restricted contributions
Depteciation and amortization
Bond preminin amottization
Pension-relsted changes other than net periodic cost
Provision for uncollectible accounts
Changes intzperating asscts and liabilities:
Patient accounts receivable
Other current assets
Noncurrept assets and liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Due to third-party payors
Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities

Investments in property and equipment, net
Acquisition of other long-term assets, net
Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Restricted contributions

Payments of long-tcrm debt

Net cash provided by financing activities

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

See accompanying notes.

1310-1150979

Year Ended September 30
2013 2012

$ 238237 § 190,305

(61,249)  (132,909)

(d7,651) 80,737
9,428) (17,207)
118,817 115,262
88) (88)
(105,412) 20,162
62,965 46,960
(39,145)  (116,443)
(24,478) (3,513)
21,650 (16,714)
(5,948) 9,019
(6,455) 28,057
141,815 203,628

(118,771)  (178,216)
(4,173 (36,836)

(122,943)  (215,052)

9,428 17,207
(8,860) (8,555
568 8,652
19,439 @,772)
21,856 24,628

$ 41,295 § 21,856
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NorthShore University HéalthSystem

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Dollars in Thousands)

September 30, 2013

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation

NorthShore University HealthSystem (NorthShore) is an integrated health care system dedicated
to providing health care services, including inpatient acute and non-acute care, primary and
specialty physician services, and various outpatient services. NorthShore operates four acute care
facilities, including Evanston Hospital, Highland Park Hospital, Glenbrook Hospital, and Skokie
Hospital, that service the greater Chicago “North Shore” and northern Illinois communities.
NorthShore also includes research activities, home health and hospice care, and foundation
opetations, -
NoithShore is the sole corporate member of NorthShore University -HealthSystem Faculty
Practice Associates (FPA), Radiation Medicine Institute (RMI), and NorthShore University
HealthSystem Insurance International (Insurance International). Effective January 1, 2012,
NorthShore University HealthSystem Medical Group, Inc. (MG) changed its name to
NoithShore Physician Associates, Inc. (NPA). FPA is the sole shateholder of NPA. All
sigtitficant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation, The
accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts and transactions of
NorthShore and its affiliates (collectively, the Corporation).

NorthShore, FPA, and RMI are tax-exempt organizations under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code (IRC). NPA is a for-profit corporation. Insurance International is a foreign
corporation organized in the Cayman Islands, which does not tax the activities of this
organization. :

The Corporation is the primary teaching affiliate of the University of Chicago Pritzker School of
Medicine (Pritzker), under which the Corporation sponsors graduate medical education programs
for physicians and other health care-related personnel.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the amounts disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements at the date of the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars in Thousands)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Although estimates are considered to be fairly stated at the time that the estimates are made,
actual results could differ.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include investments in highly liquid debt instruments, which are not limited as
to use, with a remaining maturity of three months or lcss from the date of purchase.
e
Accounts Receivable
8 s

The Corporation evaluates the collectibility of its accounts receivable based on the length of time
the teceivable is outstanding, payor class, and the anticipated fuiure uncollectible amounts based
on historical experience, Accounts receivable are charged to the allowance for uncollectible

accounts when they are deemed uncollectible.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, based on the first-in, first-out method.

Investments

Investments in equity securities and mutual funds are carried at fair value based on quoted
market prices. Debt securities are valued using institutional bids or pricing services. Alternative
investments, primarily limited partnerships and hedge funds, are accounted for using the cost or
equity method, depending on the extent of the Corporation’s ownership within the fund, which is
cvaluated quarterly.

The Corporation classifies substantially all of its investments as trading. Under a trading
classification, all unrestricted realized and unrealized gains and losses are included in revenues,
gains, and other support in excess of expenses.

Pursuant to Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 820, Fair Value Measurement, the

Corporation has no nonfinancial assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair
value on a recurring basis as of September 30, 2013 and 2012,
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' Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments Limited as to Use

Investments Jimited as to use include investments intetnally designated by the Board-of Directors
(the Board) for property and equipment replacement and expansion that thc Board, at its
discretion, may subsequently usc for other purposes and investments externally designated under
indenturc or donor restriction.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. Typical useful lives are 5 to 40 years for buildings and
lmplovcmcnts and 3 to 20 years for equipment and furniture. Interest cost incurred on botrowed
funds during the period of construction of capital assets is capitalized as a component of the cost
of acquiting those assets.

DY r

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill has been recorded at the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the assets
purchased in-acquisitions. In fiscal year 2012, the Corporation adopted Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) 2011-08, Testing Goodwill Impairment. Under the guidance, a qualitative
assessment of the Corporation’s base year impairment analysis, fiscal year 2011, is required. The
base year analysis included the market and income valuation approaches. In 2013 and 2012, both
valuation approaches were qualitatively reviewed against several variables, including
macroeconomic conditions, industry/market considerations, cost factors, and overall financial

- performance. The assessmcnt determined that it is more likely than not (>50%) the Corporation’s
fair valuc cxceeds its carrying aniount, and therefore, as of September 30, 2013, no goodwill kas
been impaired. The Corporation has goodwill of $116,300 and $113,502 included in other
noncurrent assets at Scptember 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Other intangible assets with
definite lives, such as noncompete clauses or trade names, are amortized over the estimated
useful life of the asset. The Corporation has $4,369 and $6,361 included in other noncwrent
assets at September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Amortization expense related to these other
intangible assets for the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, was $2,444 and $3,169,
respectivcly.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars in Thousands)

2. Smmnary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Asset Impairment

The Corporation considers whether indicators of impairment are present and performs the
necessary tests to determine if the carrying value of an asset is appropriate. Impairment write~
downs are recognized in operating expenses at the time the impairment is identified, except for
alternative investment impairments, which are recognized in nonoperating income (loss) or
changes in temporarily restricted net asscts at the time the impairment is identified. There was no
impairment of long-lived assets in fiscal years 2013 and 2012, except for the alternative
investment impaitment described in Note 4.

aw

. Asset Retirement Obligations

The Corporation accounts for the fair value of legal obligations associatcd with long-lived asset
retirements in accordance with ASC 410-20, 4ssef Retirement and Environmental Obligations.
" The asset retirement obligation, which primarily relitcs to future asbestos remediation, is
" recorded in accrued self-insurance and other liabilities and was accreted to its present fair value
at September 30, 2013 and 2012, of $9,112 and $9,320, respectively.

Derivative Instruments

Derivative instruments are recorded on the consolidated balance sheets at their respective fair
values. The change in the fair valuc of those derivative instruments is recognized in nonoperating
income (loss) unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met. The Corporation had no
derivative instruments outstanding as of September 30, 2013 and 2012,

General and Professional Liability

The provision for self-insured general and professional liability claims, per actuarial calculations,
includes estimates of the ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not
reported. The estimated reccivable from the excess insurance carrier is reported in other
noncurrent assets.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are assets whose use has been limited by donors or grantors toa
specific period of time or a specific putpose. Temporarily restricted gifts, grants, and bequests
are reported as an increase in temporarily restricted nét assets in the period received. When
specific purposes are satisfied, net assets used for capital purposes are reported in the
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets as additions to unrestricted net
assets; net assets used for operating purposes are reported in the consolidated statements of
operations and changes in net assets as unrestricted revenues and other support. Contributions
received with donor-imposed restrictions are reported as unresmcted if the restrictions are met in
the same reporting period.

Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by donors to be invested by the
Corporation in perpetuity. Certain income from such investments may be temporarily restricted
as to use. Associated income that is without .donor restrictions is recorded in nonoperating
income (loss).

Contributions

Unconditional pledges of others to give cash and other assets to the Corporation are reported at
fair value at the date the pledge is received, to the extent estimated to be collectible. Pledges
received with donor restrictions that limit the use of the donated assets are reported as increases
in temporarily restricted net assets. When donor restrictions are satisfied or met as a result of
meeting the specified requirement or the time frame indicated, temporarily restricted net assets
are- reclassified to unresiricted net assets and reported in the consolidated statements of
operations and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions used for operations.
Contributions of long-lived fixed assets are recorded at fair value as an increase to property and
equipment and an increase to unrestricted net assets.

Net Patient Service Revenue

Net patient service revenue is revenue generated from services provided by the Corporation to
patients. The Corporation receives payments for these services either directly from patients or on
behalf of patients from third-party payors. Net patient service revenue is reported at the
estimated net realizable amounts in the period the related services are provided and is adjusted in
future periods as final settlements and payments are made.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars in Thousands)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Community Service and Care to the Indigent

The Corporation provides care to patients who meet certain criteria established under its charity
care policy without charge or at amounts less than the Corporation’s established rates.
Community service and care to the indigent provided by the Corporation are deducted to arrive
at net patient service revenue. The estimated costs incurred by the Corporation to provide these
services were $30,357 and $29,854 for the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. These estimates were determined using a ratio of cost-to-gross charges calculated

from the Corporation’s most recently filed Mcdicare cost reports and applying that ratio to the

gross charges of charity care provided iii the period. e

Premium Revenue

The Corporation has agreements with health maintenance organizations to provide medical.

services to subscribing participants. Under these agreements, the Corporation receives monthly
payments based primarily on the number of participants, regardless of actual medical scrvices
provided to participants.

Revenues, Gains, and Other Support in Excess of Expenses

The consolidated statements of operations and changes in nct assets include revenues, gains, and
other support in excess of expenses. The Board has approved a policy to include certain
investment earnings in support of academic initiatives, as well as to provide funding to support
research. Changes in unrestricted net asscts that are excluded from revenues, gains, and other
support in excess of expenses include contributions of long-lived assets (including assets
acquired using contributions that by donor restriction were used for the purposcs of acquiring
such assets) and pension-related changes other than net periodic costs.

Other Revenue and Other Nonoperating Income (Loss)
Other revenue includes all other miscellancous activities, such as retail pharmacy, rental income,
cafeteria sales, unrestricted donations, and other miscellaneous revenue. Other, nct, within

nonoperating income (loss), consists primarily of the expenses of the Foundation, investment
mianagement expenses, and transfer of professional liability eamings to operating income.
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~ Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue from the government as part of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009,
such as adopting electronic health record (EHR) technology or becoming “meaningful users” of
EHRs, is recorded on a grant accounting basis as part of other revenue.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In May2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU 2011-04,
Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measuremient and Disclosure Requirement in U.S.
GAAP and IFRSs. ASU 2011-04 changes the wording used to describe many of the requirements
in US. GAAP for measuring fair value and for disclosing information about fair value
measurements. This update was issued to improve the comparability of fair value measurements
presented and disclosed in financial statements prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). ASU 2011-04 includes amendments that
clarify the FASB’s intent about the application .of existing measurement and disclosure and
change certain principles and requirements for measuring fair value and for disclosing
information about fair value measurements. This new guidance was effective for interim and
annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. Early adoption was not permitted. The
Corporation adopted the new guidance on October 1, 2012, and there was no significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

In July 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-07, Presentation and Disclosure of Patient Service
Revenue, Provision for Bad Debts, and the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts for Certain Health
Care Entities (a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force). The amendments in this
update require certain health care entities to change the presentation of the statement of
operations by reclassifying the provision for bad debts associated with patient service revenue
from an operating expense to a deduction from patient service revenue (net of contractual
allowances and discounts). Additionally, those health care entities are required to provide
enhanced disclosures about their policies for recognizing revenue and assessing bad debts. The
amendments also require disclosures of patient service revenue by major payor source (net of
contractual allowances and discounts), as well as qualitative and quantitative information about
changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts. The amendments in ASU 2011-07 were effective
for fiscal years and interim periods within those fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011,
with early adoption permitted. The amendments to the presentation of the provision for bad debts
related to patient service revenue in the statement of operations should be applied retrospectively
to all prior periods presented. The disclosures required by the amendments in ASU 2011-07
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NorthShore University HealthSystem

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars in Thousands)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

should be provided for the period of adoption and subsequent reporting periods. The Corporation
adopted the new guidance on October 1, 2012, As a result of adeption, the prior year provision
for uncollectible accounts on the consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets
has been reclassified to be consistent with the cutrent year presentation.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications were made to the 2012 consolidated financial statements to conform
with classifications made in 2013. The reclassifications had no effect on the changes in net assets
or on net assets as previously reported. -

e (U

3. Contractual Arrangements with Third-Party Payors

The Corporation has entered into contractual arrangements with various managed care
organizations, including Blue Cross Blue Shield (BCBS), the term$ of which call for the
Corporation to be paid for covered services at predetermined rates, Certain services provided to
~ BCBS program inpatients are paid at interim rates with annual settlements based on allowable
reimbursable costs. Qutpatient services for this BCBS population are covered by an indemnity
fee-for-service policy and, therefore, are not covered under the cost settlefuent program. The
Corporation also provides care to certain patients with government insurance programs, such as
Medicare and Medicaid, at predetermined rates. Reported costs atid/or services provided, under
certain of the arrangements, are subject to audit by the administering agencies. Changes in the
various programs, including Medicare and Medicaid, could have an adverse effect on the
Corporation.

A provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements for contractual adjustments,
representing the differerice between the charges for services provided and estimated
reimbursement from the various third-party payors. Net patient service revenue increased by
$5,854 and $9,476 for the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, to reflect
changes in the estimated Medicare and Medicaid settlements for prior years. The amount
recorded in 2012 includes $9,900 from a nationwide settlement with the Centers for Medicare &
Medicaid Services (CMS) resulting from an error in the Rural Budget Neutrality adjustment
factor used in 1998.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3. Contractual Arrangements with Third-Party Payors (continued)

The percentages of gross paticnt service revenue applicable to specific payors’ contractual
arrangements for the years ended September 30 are as follows:

2013 2012
Medicare 40% 40%
Medicaid 7 7
BCBS 23 23
Managed care . ‘ 18 18
Other B 12 12
Total = ' 100% 100%

"The Corporation’s concentration of credit risk relating to accounts receivable is limited due to
the diversity of patients and payors.

The percentafies of gross patient accounts recejvable applicable to specific payors’ contractual
arrangements as of September 30 are as follows:

. 2013 2012
Medicare 29% 26%
Medicaid 16 27
BCBS 13 13
Managed care - 24 20
Other 18 14
Total 100% 100%

The Corporation’s estimation of the allowance for doubtful accounts is based primarily upon the
type and age of patient accounts receivable and the effectiveness of the Corporation’s collection
efforts.

The Corporation’s policy is to establish reserves for a portion of all self-pay reccivables,
including amounts due from the uninsured and amounts related to co-payments and deductibles,
as these charges are recorded. The allowance for uncollectible accounts as a percentage of all
accounts receivable was 12.2% as of September 30, 2013. The Corporation’s total reserve for
self-pay accounts rcceivable, including allowance for uncollectiblc accounts and charity care,
was 91% of self-pay accounts receivable at September 30, 2013.
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3. Contractual Arrangements with Third-Party Payors (continued)

‘On a monthly basis, the Corporation reviews its patient accounts receivable balances and
employs various analytics to support the determination of its estimates. These efforts primarily
consist of reviewing the following: historical write-off and collection experience, revenue and
volume trends by payor (particularly self-pay components), changes in the aging and payor mix
of patient accounts receivable (including accounts due from the uninsured and accounts that
represent co-payments and deductibles due from patients), trending of days revenue in accounts
receivable, and various allowance coverage statistics.

Total net patient seﬁice revenue was $1,697,952 for the year ended September 30, 2013.
JIncluded in this amount is third-party payor revenue of $1,568,955 and self-pay revenié of
$128;997.

The Corporation believes that it is in compliance with all applicable Medicare and Medicaid laws
and regulations and is not aware of any pending or threatened investigations or allegations of
potential wrongdoing. While no such Medicare or Medicaid-regulatory inquiries have ‘been
made, compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review
and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action, including fines, penalties, and
exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs.

Current liabilities include $81,612 and $88,067 for September 30, 2013 and 2012 respectively,
related to various estimated settlements due to third-party payors including Medicare, Medicaid
and BCBS. Laws and regulations governing Medicare and Medicaid change frequently, are
complex, and are subject to interpretation. Administrative procedures for both Medicare and
Medicaid preclude the final settlement until the related cost reports have been audited by the
sponsoring agency and settled. As a result, there is a reasonable possibility that these recorded
estimates will change as new information becomes available, and the amount of the change may
be material.

For the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, $67,946 and $62,496, respectively, of
premium revenue was generated through agreements with HMO Illinois.

In December 2008, the CMS approved continuing the State of Illinois’ Hospital Assessment
Program (the Program), with an effective date beginning on July 1, 2008 (the beginning of the
State’s fiscal year), through the State’s fiscal year 2013. Legislation has been approved to
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3. Contractual Arrangements with Third-Party Payors (continued)

enhance this program and extend it to December 31, 2014, Under this program, the Corporation
recognized $27,596 and $28,347 of net patient service revenue for the years ended
September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Additionally, $24,828 of program assessment
expense was recognized for both of the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012. There were
no accelerated payments or receipts in fiscal 2013 and 2012, .

4. Financial Instraments

The presentétion of investments at September 30 is as follows:

e . s

' w 2013 2012
Other short-term investments $ 36,565 $ 17,016
Investments available for general use ’ 1,313,198 1,211,716
Investments limited as to usc: .

Internally designated investments, current portion... 49,575 ' 44,960

Internally designated for capital replacement and other 171,602 164,185
Other noncurrent assets 45,677 35,346
Total investments $ 1,616,617 .8 1,473,223

Total investment return for the years ended September 30 is summarized as follows:

2013 2012

Nonoperating:

Dividend and interest income $ 27,735 $ 33,046

Net realized gains on investments 52,764 20,664

Net unrealized gains on investments 59,117 121,898
Total nonoperating investment return 139,616 175,608
Temporarily restricted:

Net realized gains 5,559 2,138

Net unrealized gains 2,132 11,010
Total temporarily restricted investment return 7,691 13,148
Total investment return $ 147307 $ 188,756
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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4. Financial Instruments (continaed)

Investment fces for the ycars ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, were $21,391 and $16,793,
respectively, included in other, net, within nonoperating income (loss).

The Corporation continually reviews its alternative investment portfolio recorded at cost and
evaluates whether declines in the fair valuc of such securities should be considered other than
temporary. Factored into this evaluation are general market conditions, the issuer’s financial
condition and near-term prospects, conditions in the issuer’s industry, and the length of time and
cxtent to which the fair value has been less than cost. Based on this evaluation, one investment in
the current year and one investment in the prior year held at cost were determined to be impaired.
As a result of this impairment, the Corporation'recorded a loss reserve of $5 237 and $1,102 for
the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

5. Fair Value Measurements

The Corporation holds certain debt securities, equity securities, and investments in funds, which
must bc measured using a prescribed fair value hierarchy and related valuation methodologies.
The concept of the “highest and best use” of an asset is used for valuation.

Highest and best use is determined by the “use of the asset by market participants, even if the
intended use of the assct by the reporting entity is different.” ASC 820 specifies a hierarchy of
valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to each measurement arc obscrvable or
unobservable. Observablc inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while
unobservable inputs reflect the Corporation’s assumptions about current market conditions,

The prescribed fair value hierarchy and related valuation methodologies are as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted market prices for identical instruments in active markets. Active
markets are defined by daily trading and investor ability to exit holdings at the daily
pricing. Redemption frequency is daily.

Level 2 - Quoted market prices for similar or identical instruments and model-derived
valuations in which all significant inputs are observable in the market. The separately
managed accounts are based on institutional bid evaluations. Institutional bid
evaluations are estimated prices computed by pricing vendors. These prices are
determined using obsetvable inputs for similar securities as of the measurement date.
Redemption frequency is daily or monthly.
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5. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

Level 3 — Valuations derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant
inputs are unobservable. These prices are based on the net asset value reported from the
investee and reviewed by an independent third party as its best estimate of fair market
value of the reporting date for its investments in limited partnerships and hedge funds.
Because there are no observable market transactions. for interests in investments in
limited partnerships and hedge funds, any investments of this nature would be classified
in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Redemption frequency varies from monthly to
longer than one year for hedge funds, Limited partnerships are expected to be held for
the life of the fund.

The Corporation’s financial assets that are carried at fair value at September 30, 2013, were as-’
follows:

Nature of Investment . Levell Level 2 Jevel3 Total
Open-ended mutuat funds .8 48,022 $ - 8 - 8 48,022
Domestic equity funds 91,665 177,270 . - 268,935
International equity funds 18,221 319,939 - 338,160
Domestic equities - 148,687 - - 148,687
" Real asset funds - 21,474 - 21,474
Bond funds 169,570 - - 169,570
Fixed income accounts - 162,380 - 162,380
Treasury inflation protected securities ) - 21,746 - 21,746
Total asscts at fair value $ 476,165 $ 702,809 § -~ $ 1,178,974

The Corporation’s financial asscts that are carried at fair value at September 30, 2012, were as
follows:

Nature of Investment Level 1 Level 2 Lcvel 3 Total

Open-ended mutual funds 3 37,417 S ~ $ - 8 37417
Domestic equity funds 91,905 155,237 - 247,142
Intcmational equity funds 18,358 255,660 - 274,018
Domestic equities 127,145 - - 127,145
Real asset funds - 23,466 - 23,466
Bond funds 226,723 - - 226,723
Fixed income accounts - 92,220 - 92,220
Treasury inflation protected securities - 22,347 — 22,347
Tolal assets at fair value $ 501,548 § 548930 § - $ 1,050,478
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5. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

ASC 825 permits entities to elect to measure many financial instruments and certain other itcms
at fair value, The fair value option may be applied instrument by instrument and is irrevocable.
The Corporation has made no such elections to date.

There were no {ransfers between Level 1, Level 2, and Level 3 asscts during the years ended
September 30, 2013 and 2012.

Total investments at September 30, 2013, are $1,616,617. Tn addition to total investments . .

recorded at fair value, this amount includes $428,216 in limited partnerships and funds recorded
at cost, $6,805 in limited partnerships recorded using the equity method, and other assets of
$2,622 recorded at cost. % o

Total investments at September 30, 2012, are $1,473,223. In addition to total investments
recorded at fair value, this amount includes $412,239 in limited partnerships and funds recorded
at cost, $8,438 in limited partnerships recorded using the equity method, and other assets of

'$2,068 recorded at cost.

The carrying values of patient accounts reccivable, accounts payable, and accrued cxpenses are
reasonable estimates of their fair values due to the short-term nature of these financial
instruments.

.The estimated- fair value of total debt was $379,555 and $401,188 at Scptember 30, 2013 and

2012, respectively. Under the guidance sct forth in ASU 2011-04, the Corporation’s debt is
classified as a Level 2 liability. The estimated fair value of the fixed rate debt is determined by
recalculating the dollar prices of each of the Corporation’s outstanding fixed rate bonds using
current market yields. The variable rate debt is remarketed daily or weekly, and par value is
considered as fair value. The fair value included a consideration of third-party credit
enhancements, which had no impact on the estimated fair value of the debt.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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6. Long-Term Debt and Debt with Self-Liquidity

All bonds issued by the Corporation were used to pay or reimburse the Corporation for certain
capital projects, to provide for a portion of the interest on the bonds, and to pay certain expenses
incurred in connection with the issuance of the bonds. The variable rate bonds arc subject to
petiodic remarketing and can be converted to a fixed rate subject to certain terms of the loan
agreements. The Series 2001B, 2001C, 1995, and 1996 bonds have standby bond purchase
agreements (SBPAs), and the 2008 commercial paper has a letter of credit (LOC) to provide
liquidity support in the event of a failed remarketing,

In November 2009, the Corporation remarketed the Series 1995 and 1996 bonds ($100,000) in a
weekly demand modé¢ to external investors. The Series 1995 bonds are backed by an SBPA
issued by a financial“institution that cxpires on September 22, 2016. The Series 1996 bonds are
backed by an SBPA issued by a financial instifition that expires on September 22, 2015, In the
event these bonds cannot be remarketed, the bond trustee will call the bonds and the bonds will
become bank bonds.held by the liquidity facility provider. The liquidity facility provider will
hold the bonds for 367 days or until a replacement liquidity facility is secured. After the 367-day
period, the bonds will begin to-amortize over a three-year period. In the event an SBPA cannot
be renewed or replaced, the liquidity facility provider will make a loan in the amount necessary
to complete the mandatory tender of the bonds. The principal and interest on the loan will be
amortized over three years.

The Corporation has two SBPAs in conjunction with the Scrics 2001B and 2001C bonds with
financial institutions. The Series 2001B bonds have an expiration of November 15, 2017, The
Series 2001C bonds have an expiration of November 15, 2016. In the event these bonds cannot
be remarketed, the bond trustee will call the bonds and the bonds will become bank bonds held
by the liquidity facility provider. The liquidity facility provider will hold the bonds for 367 days
or until a replacement facility is sccured. After the 367-day period, the bonds will begin to
amortize over a three-year period. In the ¢vent an SBPA cannot be renewed or replaced, the
liquidity provider will make.a loan in the amount nccessary to complete the mandatory tender of
the bonds. The principal and intcrest on the loan will be amortized over three years.

The Corporation has an LOC backup facility with a financial institution in conjunction with the
2008 Pooled Program that expires on November 30, 2014. The LOC may be drawn upon by the
trustee to make payments of principal and interest on maturing commercial paper in the event
that an issuance of commercial paper does not roll over. Repayments on any liquidity advance
received prior to the LOC expiration date will be made in equal quarterly installments beginning
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6. Long-Term Debt and Debt with Self-Liquidity (continued)

on the first subsequent quarter-end date, no less than 30 days after the commercial paper rollover
date.

The Corporation’s obligation to purchase the Series 1998, 1992, and 1990A debt issues with sclf-
liquidity upon optional or mandatory tender is not supported by a third-party liquidity facility;
however, when outstanding, the Corporation maintains liquid assets to redeem their maturing
obligations. During the year ended September 30, 2013, thc Corporation retired the 1985B and
1987A-E debt issues. As of September 30, 2013 and 2012, there were no bonds with self-
ligquidity outstanding with third parties.

The self-liquidity bonds held by the Ct]u_poration at September 30 are assfollows:

Final
: Maturity 2013 - 2012
1998 2032 $ 50,000 $ 50,000
1992 l ’ 2026 50,000 50,000
1990A ’ ‘ 2025 50,000 50,000
1987A-1987E - 2020 - 50,000
1985B 2015 30,000

$ 150,000 $ 230,000

For the sclf-liquidity bonds being held by the Corporation, the Corporation records telated
interest income and expense within nonoperating income (loss).

Under the terms-of the long-term debt arrangements, various amounts arc oh deposit with
trustees, and certain specified payments are required for bond redemption, interest payments, and
agset replacement, The terms of certain long-term debt agreements require, ainong other things,
the maintenance of various financia! ratios and placc limitations on additional indebtedness and

pledging of assets. The Corporation remained in compliance with these agreements during the -

reporting periods.

The Corporation has various outstanding LOCs in connection with construction projects and
property lease obligations, which amount to $2,013 and $3,287 for the years ended
September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. No amounts have been drawn against these letters.
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NorthShore University HealthSystem

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(Dollars in Thousands)

6. Long-Term Debt and Debt with Self-Liquidity (continued)

For the years cnding September 30, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017, and 2018, maturities of long-term
debt, assuming remarketing of variable rate demand bonds (including an $88 bond premium), are

$9,263, $9,638, $9,998, $10,383, and $10,793, respectively.

Interest paid for the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, was $6,924 and $7,125,
respectively. Interest of $638 and $1,110 was capitalized for the samc periods, respectively. In
addition, bond premium amortization was $88 for the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012,

Total long-term debt at September 30 is summarized as follows:

a5 Amortization Qutstanding Pgjucipa: Interest Rate
“ Years September 30 September 30
Typellssuer  Series Amount Range From —Teo 2013 2012 2013 2012
Hlinols Development Finaoce Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bands .
2001B  $1,500 ~ $5,000 2014-2031 § 40,700 S w42,200 0.07% 0.19%
2001C 1,500 ~, 5,000 2014203} 40,700 42,200 0.03% 0.19%
Tlineis Health Facilities Autharity Variable Rate Adjustable Demand Revenuc Bonds
1995 $1,420 - $8,605 2014 —2035 45,900 47,265 0.06% 0.17%
1996 1415 - 8,560 2014 -2035 45,934 47,285 0.07% 0.18%
Llinois Educational Pacilities Authority Commercial Paper Revenue Notes
2008 $995 ~ 813,30 2032 -2038 75,000 75,000 0.13% 0.14%

Mineis Finance Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds
2010 $825 — $9,685 2014 -2037 126,155 129,295

Total long-term debt 374,385 383,245
Less current maturities of deht 9,263 8,948
Tlus 2010 Scrics bond premium (current and long-term) 2,078 2,166
Total long-term debt, less current maturities $ 367,200 $ 376,463

1310-1150979
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NorthShore University HealthSystem

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars in Thousands)

7. Employee Benefit Programs

The Corporation sponsors a funded, noncontributory, defmned benefit pension plan (the
NorthShore Plan), which covers substantially all employees with at least one year of
cmployment. The funding poliey is to contribute amounts to meet or exceed the minimum
funding requirements sct forth in the Empioyee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974
(ERISA). .

In June 2013, the Corporation announced that it would freeze the NorthShore Plan on
December 31, 2013, and enroll all employees in a new defined contribution plan, As a result of
this change, a charge of $2,730 was recorded as a prior service cost and a $44,405 reduction to
the benefit obligaiion was rccorded as a curtailment.- Additionally, the Corporation recordzd a
charge of $4,219 related to an early retirement program,- .
Assets hcld by the NorthShore Plan consist primarily of fixed income securities,
domestic/international stocks, limited partnerships, and hedge funds. A plan measurement date of
September 30 is used for the NorthShore Plan,

For the year ended September 30, 2013, the Corporation made contributions of $25,000 for plan
year 2012, : . .
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NorthShore University HealthSystem

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statcments (continued)
(Dollars in Thousands)

7. Employee Benefit Programs (continued)

The summary of the changes in the benefit obligation and plan assets of the NorthShore Plan for
the years ended September 30 is as follows:

2013 2012

Change in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 502594 § 430,324
Service cost 25,519 21,401
Interest cost - 20,395 - 19,623
Special termination benefits 4,219 -
- “Curtailments (44,405) . - - - :
-Actuarial (gains) losses (37,606) . _ 44,94 e
Benefits paid (50,897)  (13,700)
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 419819 § 502,594
Accumulated berefit obligation - $§ 418,751 § 456,330
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of yeat $ 341,529 $§ 286,297
Actual return on plan assets 33,940 35,152
Employer contributions 25,600 33,780
Benefits paid (50,897)  (13,700)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $§ 349572 $ 341529

A summary of changes in the funded status of the NorthShore Plan and net periodic pension cost
as of and for the years ended September 30 is as follows:

2013 2012
Funded status of the plan $  (70247) § (161,065)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 92,471 192,899
Unamortized prior service benefit - 3,156
Prepaid pension cost 22,224 34,990
Accumulated adjustments to unrestricted net assets (92,471)  (196,055)
Amounts recognized in consolidated balance sheets § (70,247 § (161,065)
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NorthShore University HealthSystem

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars in Thousands)

7. Employee Benefit Programs (continued)

Changes in the NorthShore Plan’s assets and benefit obligation rccognized in unrestricted net
assets for the years ended September 30 include the following:

: 2013 2012
Current year actuarial (gain) loss $ (89,711) § 33,825
Current year amortization of prior service cost (3,156) (568)
Recognized loss . 10,717y (12,522)

$ (103,584) $ 20,735

" The estimated prior service cost and net loss that will be amortized over the next fiscal year are
$0 and $1,696, respectively. ks .

The Corporation’s target and actual pension asset allocations are as follows:

Acteal Asset Allocation
Strategic at September 30
Assct Category Target 2013 2012
Equity securities 39.0% 34.8% 34.8%
Debt securities 23.0 26.8 28.3
Other 38.0 384 36.9
Total _ 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

The Corporation holds certain debt securitics, cquity securities, and investments in funds, which
must be measured using a prescribed fair value hierarchy and related valuation methodologies.
The concept of the “highest and best use” of an asset is used for valuation,

Highest and best use is determined by the “use of the asset by market participants, even if the
intended use of the asset by the reporting entity is different.” ASC 820 specifies a hierarchy of
valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to each measurement are observable or
unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while
unobservable inputs reflect the Corporation’s assumptions about current market conditions,
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars in Thousands) '

7. Employee Benefit Programs (continued)

The following table presents the NorthShore Plan’s financial instruments as of September 30,
2013, measured at fair value on a recurring basis by the ASC 820 valuation hierarchy defined in

Note 5:

Nature of Investment Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Domestic equity funds $ 18066 $§ 39,748 $ - $ 57814
International equity funds - 73,493 - 73,493
Domestic equitics 28,536 - - 28,536
Real asset funds - 5,103 - 5,103
Bond funds _ N 49,308 o - 49,308
Fixed income accounts ) - 27236 - 27,236
Treasury inflation protected securities - 11,652 - 11,652
Limited partnership and hedge funds - - 94,902 94,902
Cash equivalents 1,528 - - 1,528
Total assets at fair value - - $ 97438 $ 157,232 § 94,902 § 349,572

The following table presents thc NorthShore Plan’s fmémciél_ instruments as of September 30,
2012, measured at fair value on a recurring basis by the ASC 820 valuation hierarchy defined in

Note 5:

Nature of Investment Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Domestic equity funds $ 18806 § 31429 $ - $ 50,235
International equity funds - 66,244 - 66,244
Domestic equities 34,102 - - 34,102
Recal asset funds - 5577 - 5,577
Bond funds 58,730 - - 58,730
Fixed income accounts - 21,642 - 21,642
Treasury inflation protected securities - 11,995 - 11,995
Limited partnership and hedge funds - - 91,073 91,073
Cash equivalents 1,931 - - 1,931
Total assets at fair value $ 113,569 $§ 136,887 $ 91,073 § 341,529
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NorthShore University HealthSystem

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)
(Dollars in Thousands)

7. Employee Benefit Programs (continued)

The table below scts forth a summary of changes in the fair value of the NorthShore Plan’s
Level 3 assets for the years ended Scptember 30:

2013 2012

Balance, beginning of year $ 91,073 $ 74,114

Dividends and interest income 338 533

Unrealized gains - 7,735 40

Realized gains 24 650

Purchases & 8,289 18,766

Sales ’ . (12,557) (3,030)
Balance, end of year $ 94902 § 91,073
The amount of total gains or losses for the period ‘

included in changes in net assets attributable to

the change in unrealized gains or losses relating”~ :

to assets still héld at the reporting date $ 7,735 § 40

The coinponents of net periodic benefit costs included in the consolidated statements of
operations and changes in net assets for the years ended September 30 are as follows:

2013 2012
Service cost $ 25519 § 21,401
Interest cost 20,395 19,623
Expccted retum on plan assets (26,240) (24,032)
Prior service cost recognized 3,156 568
Actuarial loss : 16,718 12,522
Special termination benefit 4,219 =
Net periodic pension cost $ 37,767 $§ 30,082

The Corporation anticipates that contributions to the NorthShore Plan’s assets will be made
during 2014 from employer asscts of $20,000. Expected employee benefit payments are $35,092
in 2014, $23,416 in 2015, $24,031 in 2016, $25,353 in 2017, $26,003 in 2018, and $139,820
during the period from 2019 through 2023.
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NorthShore University HealthSystem

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars in Thousands)

7. Employee Benefit Programs (continued).

Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at the measurement date for the years ended
September 30 are as follows:

2013 2012
Discount rate 4.99% 4.16%
Expected return on plan assets 7.75 7.75
Rate of compensation increase 3.60 3.60

Assumptions used to determine net pension expense for the years ended September 30 are as
follows: ~ '

ih e

203 2012

Discount rate 4.16% 4.70%
Expected retum on plan assets : 775 7.75
Rate of compensation increase 3.60 3.78

To develop the expected long-term rate of rcturn on assets assumption, the Corporation
considered the historical returns and the future expectations for returns for each asset class, as
well as the target asset allocation of the pension portfolio. This resulted in the selection of the
7.75% long-term rate of return on assets assumption for 2013 and 2012,

The Corporation also sponsors a defined contribution plan that matches employee contributions
at an annual discretionary percentage. Matching contributions to the defined contribution plan
totaled $18,305 and $18,607 in 2013 and 2012, respectively, and are included in salaries and
benefits expense. The related liability at September 30, 2013 and 2012, is $14,079 and $13,771,
respectively, included in accrued expenses.

The Corporation also sponsors a supplemental executive retivement plan. The total plan liability
is $12,456 and $14,305 for the years cnded September 30, 2013 and 2012, respeclively, and are
included in accrued expenses and current portion of self-insurance and employee retirement
plans based on the expected payout dates.
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NorthShore University HealthSystem

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars in Thousands)

7. Employee Benefit Programs (continued)

The Corporation also offers an Executive and Physician Income Deferral Plan (457B), which is
100% employee-funded. The plan assets and liabilities for September 30, 2013, are $45,959 and
for September 30, 2012, are $35,415. These amounts arc included in other noncurrent assets and
accrued self-insurance expense and other for the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

8. Professional Liability Insurance

The Corporation has claims-made basis policies in excess of the amounts retained by the
Corporation for profcssional and general liability claims. As of September 30, 2013 (beginning
with policy year March 26, 2009), claims are subject to. deductibles of $10,000 with a
$15,000/$15,000 buffer layer. The estimated professional liability losses are calculated with the
assistance of consulting actuanes, and an accrual has been made for potential claims to be paid.
The.discounted reserve balance (using a discount rate of 4%).was $290,340 as of September 30,
2013, and $281,116 as of September 30, 2012, Included in-these amounts is a receivable for
anticipated insurance recoveries of $17,360 as of September 30, 2013, and $15,116 as of
September 30, 2012. The undiscounted reserve balance would have been higher by
approximately $45,380 as of September 30, 2013, and $46,027 as of September 30, 2012, The
Corporation is not aware of any factors that would cause insurance expensc to vary materially
from the amounts provided. Should the claims-made policy not be rcnewed or replaced with
equivalent insurance, claims based on occurrences during its term but reported subsequently may
not be insured.

9. Litigation and Contingencies

In Fchruary 2004, the Federal Trade Commission (FTC) issued a complaint against the
Corporation challenging its January 2000 merger with Highland Park Hospital (HPH). On
April 28, 2008, the FTC issued a Final Order that requires the Corporation to conduct scparate
negotiations with private third-party payors for health care services of HPH unless a payor
specifically elects to opt out and ncgotiate jointly for all of the Corporation’s hospitals. The Final
Order also requifes the Corporation to give prior notification to the FTC for any future
acquisitions of hospitals within the Chicago Melropolitan Statistical Area through April 2018.
The Final Order terminates in April 2028.

1310-1150979 31

258




NorthShore University HealthSystem

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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9. Litigation and Contingencies (continued)

In August 2007, three individual private plaintiffs filed a purported antitrust class action lawsuit
against the Corporation in Federal District Court in Chicago, Illirois, alleging anticompetitive
price increases as a result of the Corporation’s January 2000 merger with HPH, In May 2008, an
entity titled the Painters District Counsil No. 30 Health and Welfarc Fund filed a nearly identical
antitrust class aclion against the Corporation. All four of the separate suits have been
consolidated into one action. On March 30, 2010, the District Court denied the plaintiffs’ motion

for class certification.-The plaintiffs appealed the District Court’s denial of class certification to..

the Seventh Circuit Court of Appeals, and on January 13, 2012, the Seventh Circuit issued an

opinion that vacated*the District Court’s decision and remanded the case back to the District-

Court for further proceedings. On April 4, 2012, the plaintiffs filed a renewed motion for class
certification that the Corporation opposed on July 124:2012. On December 10, 2013, the District
Court granted plaintiffs renewed motion for class certification. Fact and expert dlscovcry is
ongoing and a final resolutmn of the matter is not expected until 2015-2016.

The Corporation has denied all allegations within the»plaxntlffs’ complaints and intends to pursuc
its rights in defense of the claims. The Corporation is unable to predict the ultimatc outcomes,
including liability, if any, in this litigation; however, such liabilities could be material.

On June 14, 2012, the State of Ilinois enacted Illinois Public Act 97-0688, which includes
provisions governing property and sales tax exemptions for Illinois non-profit hospitals. Based
on initial interpretations and estimates, the Corporation believes that community benefits
provided by each of the hospitals will exceed their respective tax assessments and, therefore, no
property or sales tax will be due for the calendar year 2012 or 2013.

“Prior to the new legisiation, the Corporation filed required applications seeking real estate tax-
exempt status for certain of the Corporation’s Skokie Hospital and rclated facilities, which were
certified as tax-exempt as part of Rush NorthShore Medical Center prior to the merger with the
Corporation on January 1, 2009. Thesc applications are now subject to the provisions of Illinois
Public Act 97-0688 enacted on June 14, 2012. The Ilinojs Department of Revenue has recently
issued real estate tax exemption certificates, which have approved the Corporation’s tax
exemption filing for either full or partial exemption of the Skokie Hospital and related facilities
for tax years 2009, 2010, 2011, and 2012. A local taxing district has intervened in each of the tax
years and has requested a formal hearing before the Department of Revenue asserting that Public
Act 97-0688 is unconstitutional. The Corporation is reviewing this request and is in discussion
with the taxing district to resolve this matter.
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9. Litigation and Contingencies (continued)

The Corporation is a defendant in various lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of business.
Although the outcome of these lawsuits cannot be predicted with certainty, management believes
the ultimate disposition of such matters will not have a material effect on the Corporation’s
financial condition or operations.

10. Commitments

Future minimum lease payments for property and equipment for all noncancelable operating
leases for'thie next five years are as follows: : e

2014 w8 15,144

2015 14,632

2016 13,566

2017 . 12,930

2018 . 11,370

Lease expense for the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, was $22,001 and $24,553,
respectively.

At September 30, 2013, the Corporation is committed to $51,817 in construction-related
contracts.

At September 30, 2013, the Corporation is committed to fund $91,855 to limited partnerships,
which is expected to oceur over the next decade. At September 30, 2013, the pension plan is
committed to fund $24,909 to limited partnerships, which is expected to occur over the next
decade.

Future minimum intangible asset amottization for the next five years is as follows:

2014 $ 2,382
2015 1,034
2016 501
2017 184
2018 49
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11. Genersl, Administrative, and Fund-Raising Expenses

General and administrative expenses incurred in connection with providing inpatient, outpatient,
professional, and emergency care services amounted to $273,148 in 2013 and $266,753 in 2012.
Fund-raising expenses for thc years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, were $2,396 and
$2,728, respectively.

12. Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes at September 30:

i ai.

) 2013 2012
Restricted for: L
Research $ 18,080 $ 16,875
Special purpose 82,862 81,330
> Total temporarily restricted net assets $ 100951 $ 98,205

Permanently restricted net assets totaled $74,250 and $72,524 for the years ended September 30,
2013 and 2012, respectively. Earnings from permanently restricted net assets are used toward
research, special purpose, and general operations and to fund dcpartment chairs, as well as
uncompensated care offered to patients who meet certain criteria established under the
Corporation’s charity care policy.
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12. Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets (continued)
Activity in the endowment funds was as follows:

T'emporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Endowment net assets at September 30, 2011  § 5385 § 27,258 3 71,119 $ 103,762
Contributions - - 1,405 1,405
Investment return 796 4,544 - 5,340
Change of value in trust 1,926 11,01C - 12,936
Distributions (796) (5,374) - - (6,170)
Net asset reclassification from unrestricted -
investment ‘ (114) (2,045 - (2,159)
Endowment nct asscts at Scptember 30, 2012 7,197 35,393 72,524 115,114
Contributions - - 1,726 1,726
Investment return 1,307 . 1,573 - 8,880
Change of valuc in trust 263 2,133 - 2,394
Distributions . (1,307) (4,883 - . (6,190)
Net assct reclassification from unrestricted -
investment (13) 924) - 930

Endowment net assets at September 30, 2013 § 7,447 § 39,290 $ 74,250 $ 120987

The Statc of Illinois passed the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act
(UPMIFA) effective June 30, 2009. The Corporation has interpreted UPMIFA as sustaining the
preservation of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds
absent cxplicit donor stipulation to the contrary. In compliance with this interpretation of
UPMIFA, the Corporation classifies permanently restricted net assets as (a) the original value of
gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the
permanent endowment, and (¢) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance
with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accutnulation is added to
the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted cndowment fund that is not classified in
permanently restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those
amounts are appropriated in a manner considered with the standard of prudence prescribed by
UPMIFA.

The Corporation has adopted a policy of requiring a minimum donation of $1,500 to establish an

endowed chair and $1,000 to establish an cndowed research project or endowed clinical
program,

1310-1150979 35

262




NorthShore University HealthSystem

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars in Thousands)

12. Tempeorarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets (continued)

The Corporation has adopted endowment investment and spending policies that attempt to
provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment, while seeking
to maintain the purchasing power of endowment assets. Currently, the Corporation expects its
endowment funds over time to provide an avcrage rate of return of approximately 5% annually.
To achieve this long-term rate of return objective, the Corporation relies on a total return strategy
in which investment returns are achieved through capital appreciation (realized and
unrealized) and current yicld (intcrest and dividends). Actual returns in any given year may vary
from this amount. ‘

An endowment fund is considered to be underwater when the market value of the endowment is
less than the original (and any subsequent) donations received by the -Corporation. The
Corporation has adopted a policy that such shortfall amounts will be funded by the Corporation
from the Corporation’s unrestricted investment funds.. The funded amount was $108 and $1,046
as of September 30,.2013 and 2012, respectively. .

13. Income Taxes

The Corporation and its related affiliates, except for NPA, known as NorthShore Exempt Group,
have been determined to qualify as a tax-exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the
IRC. Most of the income reccived by NorthShore Exempt Group is excmpt from taxation under
Section 501(a) of the IRC, ds income related to the mission of the organization. Accordingly,
there is no material provision for income tax for these entities. Some of the income received by
exempt entities is subject to taxation as unrelated business income. NorthShore and its
subsidiarics filc federal income tax returns and returns for various states in the U.S.

ASC 740, Income Tuxes, yequires that realization of an uncertain income tax position is more
likely than not (i.e., greater than 50% likelihood of receiving a benefit) before it can be
recognized in the financial statements. Furthermore, this interpretation prescribes the benefit to
be recorded in the financial statements as the amount most likely to be realized assuming a
review by tax authorities having all relevant information and applying current conventions. This
interpretation also clarifics the financial statement classification of tax-related penalties and
interest and sets forth new disclosures regarding unrecognized tax bencfits. No amount was
recorded for the years ended Scptcmber 30,2013 or 2012,
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13. Income Taxes (continued)

 The Corporation currently has a net operating loss carryforward of $11,671, which generated
assets of $4,706. NPA currently has a net operating loss carryforward of $642, which generated
asscts of $259. These asscts are 100% offsct by valuation allowances.

14, Subsequent Events

The Corporation cvaluated cvents and transactions occurring subsequent to September 30, 2013
through February 3, 2014, the date of issuance of the consolidated financial statements. During
this period, there were no items requiring disclosure or recognition in the consolidated financial
statements,” . o

" i
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